gj\\ C‘ Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 1 of 426

JUN 15 2074

Mark ¢, Me6 i,
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT u.s. 0;@1-34@% ésiém

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

KIMBERLIE GILLILAND, an individual,

Petitioner,

90CV- 257 JFH- JI'J

Case No.

VS.

(1) T. LUKE BARTEAUX,

Judge for the District Court of the Cherokee Nation,
a federally recognized Indian nation,

(2) SARA E. HILL,

Cherokee Nation Attorney General,

(3) RALPH KEEN II,

Cherokee Nation Special Prosecutor,

NP AN AN AN RN N P . i

Respondents.

PETITION FOR A WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS UNDER 25 U.S.C.§ 1301

I. INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

1. Petitioner Kimberlie Gilliland (referred to herein as “Gilliland”) seeks a writ of
habeas corpus under the Indian Civil Rights Act of 1968 (25 U.S.C. §§1301-1303) (referred to
herein as “ICRA”) for relief from her unlawful detention by Respondent Cherokee Nation District
Court Judge T. Luke Barteaux (referred to herein as “Judge Barteaux™) and her unjustified
deprivation of fundamental liberty interests by the Cherokee Nation (referred to herein as the
“Nation”) without due process of law. Gilliland is not in physically custody: however, Judge
Barteaux on October 22. 2019 issued a bench warrant, on March 26, 2021 issued an arrest warrant
with the requirements to post a $10.000 cash bond, and on May 17. 2022 struck her case from the

Cherokee Nation District Court jury docket until she was arrested or posted bond.
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2. Gilliland prays for this Court to find that she is being unconstitutionally and
illegally held and detained by bail orders and Bench and Arrest Warrants issued by Judge Barteaux
(referred to herein as the “detention orders”),' 2 3order his detention orders to be set aside, and
order the criminal charges filed by the Nation in tribal court be dismissed with prejudice as
violating due process.*

3. Judge Barteaux’s detention orders are infirm on their face because they direct law
enforcement to arrest Gilliland outside the territory of the Cherokee Nation and on conditions
prohibited by law.

4. Judge Barteaux’s dentition orders are unconstitutional because they are based on
the Nation’s criminal prosecution of Gilliland which violate due process requirements failing to:
1) state an offense, 2) allege specific facts showing criminal intent, 3) clearly state the criminal
allegations without vagueness, 4) file charges within the statute of limitation, 5) not exceed the

punishment provided by the ICRAS, and 6) to have a prosecutor without a conflict of interest.

! The Tribal Court Record in the criminal action the Nation filed against Gilliland on July 28, 2016,
filed a nine counts criminal complaint which it titled of “Embezzlement by Officer of a
Corporation™, in Cherokee Nation v. Gilliland, CRM 2016-54 (hereinafter referred to as the
“Criminal Case™) is referred to in its entirety as “Exhibit A”. Individual pleadings within the Tribal
Court Record in the Criminal Case are referred to as “Exh. A-1, Exh. A-2, etc.”).

2Exh. A-23, 2019-08-01 Court Minute Bench Warrant Issued; Exh. A-24,2019-08-12 Bench
Warrant; Exh. A-25, 2019-08-16 Court Minute Order issuing bench warrant; Exh. A-31, 2019-
10-22 Order Denying Motion to Reinstate Personal Recognizance Bond; and Exh. A-41, 2021-
03-26 Warrant of Arrest.

3 Exh. A- 46, 2022-05-17 Order Striking the Case from the Jury Docket

4 Exh. A-1,2016-07-28 Complaint and Information: Exh. A-10, 2019-03-20 Amended Complaint.
3 The ICRA, provides as follows:

No Indian tribe in exercising powers of self-government shall—

2. violate the right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects against
unreasonable search and seizures, nor issue Warrants, but upon probable cause. supported by
oath or affirmation, and particularly describing the place to be searched and the person or thing
to be seized;
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5. In 2009, Gilliland began work as Executive Director of the Cherokee Nation
Foundation (“CNF™), a non-profit organization, then known as Cherokee Nation Education
Corporation as a contract employee. In 2011, she became a regular employee. In January 2013,
Gilliland resigned from her Executive Director position in good standing but stayed until June
2013 at the request of the CNF Board. Several CNF Board members resigned in 2013 including
Robin Flint Ballenger, Casey Ross Petherick, and John Gritts; Jay Calhoun resigned in 2014. The
Cherokee Nation Principal Chief appointed new CNF Board leadership afterward.

6. After leaving CNF in 2013, Gilliland heard nothing from the Nation until on or
about July 28, 2016, when the Nation filed the nine-count criminal complaint against her alleging
she, as Executive Director of the CNF, embezzled funds by paying for CNF business trip travel
expenses, taking an online Masters’ Degree program for non-profit organization development,
purchasing gifts for donors, paying for a parking ticket which she received while using her car for

CNF business purposes, and took missing miscellaneous computer equipment without any attempt

6. deny to any person in a criminal proceeding the right to a speedy and public trial, to be
informed of the nature and cause of the accusation, to be confronted with the witnesses against
him, to have compulsory process for obtaining witnesses in his favor, and at his own expense
to have the assistance of counsel for his defense;

7. (A) require excessive bail, impose excessive fines, or inflict cruel and unusual punishments;
(emphasis added)

(D) impose on a person in a criminal proceeding a total penalty or punishment greater than
imprisonment for a term of 9 years;

8. deny to any person within its jurisdiction the equal protection of its laws or deprive any
person of liberty or property without due process of law....

25 US.C. § 1302(a).
The privilege of the writ of habeas corpus shall be available to any person. in a court of the United
States. to test the legality of his detention by order of an Indian tribe. 25 U.S.C. § 1303.

3
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to inventory said equipment until months after she resigned (hereinafter referred to as the
“Complaint™).®

7. On August 12, 2016, Gilliland surrendered herself to the Cherokee Nation District
Court, was arraigned on the Complaint, and was released on a personal recognizance without any
conditions. The Nation knew she lived outside of boundaries of the Cherokee Nation in Tulsa,
Oklahoma.

8. In August 2018, Gilliland moved to Poland with her husband, a Polish citizen, and
their two children because of the stigma of the Nation’s criminal charges (she was terminated from
her job as the Bacone College Foundation Director in 2016 and could not obtain meaningful
employment afterward) and for her husband’s health care (he suffered from blood cancer and could
get affordable health care in Poland as a Polish native).

9. On March 20, 2019, thirty-two months later, the Nation amended the Complaint,
adding six counts which included providing scholarships to Cherokee students and paying for
travel of volunteer instructors who had expertise in Native American high school graduates
applying for college scholarships (hereinafter the “Amended Complaint™).’

10.  On August I, 2019, Judge Barteaux revoked Gilliland’s personal recognizance
bond because she did not appear for arraignment on the Amended Complaint although she had no
notice of the hearing. On August 16, 2019, Judge Barteaux ordered Gilliland to deposit $10,000
cash with the District Court by November 20, 2019 or else she would be arrested and jailed until

her trial. Gilliland did not post the $10,000 bond and remains in Poland.

® Exh. A-1,2016-07-28 Complaint and Information.
7 Exh. A-10. 2019-03-20 Amended Complaint.
4
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11.  On October 18, 2019, without objection by the Nation and permission of Judge
Barteaux, Gilliland appeared by phone at the arraignment on the Amended Complaint. Although
Gilliland appeared, entered her not guilty plea, and was arraigned, the Nation moved Judge
Barteaux to deny her personal recognizance bond which he granted on October 22, 2019 and
required her to post a $10,000 bond. Judge Barteaux set a trial date for April 26, 2021, thus the
requirement for a $10,000 bond restricted her freedom to come and go unlike other citizens of the
Cherokee Nation and the United States. On March 26, 2021, Judger Barteaux issued an Arrest
Warrant for Gilliland.®

12.  The criminal charges underlying Judge Barteaux’s Bench and Arrest Warrants are
prosecuted under the authority of the Cherokee Nation Attorney General, Sara E. Hill (“Hill”") by
Special Prosecutor Ralph Keen 11 (“Keen”) who was appointed for the sole purpose to prosecute
Gilliland. The Amended Complaint violates Cherokee Nation and federal requirements for due
process to 1) state an offense, 2) allege facts showing criminal intent, 3) clearly state the criminal
allegations without vagueness, 4) file charges within the statute of limitation, 5) not exceed the

punishment provided by the ICRA, and 6) to have a prosecutor without a conflict of interest.’

8 Exh. A-41, 2021-03-26 Warrant of Arrest.
¥ Exh. A-1, 2016-07-28 Complaint; Exh. A-10, 2019-03-20 Amended Complaint.
5
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13.  Inruling on Gilliland’s motions to dismiss on the aforementioned grounds,'® Judge
Barteaux held, “The law is sufficient to provide a defendant the knowledge to not commit
embezzlement.”"

14.  Gilliland then brought a Writ of Habeas Corpus in the Cherokee Nation Supreme
Court challenging the Nation’s violations of due process and the $10,000 bond required by Judge
Barteaux.'? In denying that writ, however, the Nation’s Supreme Court ignored the law that
Gilliland need not actually be physically incarcerated to be detained for purpose of the Nation’s
denial of her individual freedom violations, holding, “The fact of the matter is that Gilliland is
neither incarcerated nor detained by the Cherokee Nation.” The Court also failed to address the
underlying violations of due process and denied Gilliland’s appeal.'* In Hensley v. Municipal
Court, 411 U.S. 345, 351 (1973), the United States Supreme Court held a person is in custody of
the government for purposes of a Writ of Habeas Corpus even when released on his own
recognizance.

15.  Gilliland alleges that the Nation by and through Judge Barteaux has restricted her

freedom and detained her based on unconstitutional criminal charges which deny her due process

19 Exh. A-6, 2019-02-14 Defendant's Demurrer to Complaint; Exh. A-12, 2019-04-03 Defendant's
Motion to Strike Amended Complaint; Exh. A-8, 2019-02-15 Motion to Disqualify Keen;
Exh. A-11, 2019-03-25 Defendant’s Supplemental Motion to Disqualify Keen; Exh. A-13, 2019-
04-03 Defendant's Second Demurrer and Motion to Dismiss Amended Complaint; Exh. A-13,
2019-04-03, Defendant’s Motion to Strike Amended Complaint: Exh. A-14, 2019-04-26
Defendant's Reply Brief to Disqualify Keen; Exh. A-16. 2019-05-03 Supplement to
Demurrer; Exh. A-17, 2019-05-14 Additional Briefing on Void by Vagueness; Exh. A-18. 2019-
05-24 Defendant's Response to Nation Additional Briefing
""" Exh. A-19, 2019-07-02 Order on Demurrer to Complaint.
12 Exh. A-32, 2019-11-05 SC-19-15 Petition for Writ; Exh. A-35. 2019-11-07 Opening Brief
Habeas Corpus; Exh. A-33, 2019-11-07 Exhibits to Habeas Brief: Exh. A-37, 2019-11-19
Defendant's Objection to Nation's Motion to Dismiss Habeas Corpus: Exh. A-39, 2019-12-05
Defendant's Response to Nation's Motion to Dismiss Habeas Corpus.
3 Exh. A-40. 2020-11-04 SC-19-15 Opinion.

6
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as guaranteed under the United States Constitution, Cherokee Nation law, the Cherokee Nation
Constitution,'* and the ICRA.

16.  Gilliland exhausted her tribal court remedies by moving to dismiss charges before
Judge Barteaux, which he denied and seeking a writ of habeas corpus before the Cherokee Nation
Supreme Court which was denied on November 4, 2020.!°

II. PARTIES

17. Gilliland is a Cherokee Nation citizen, but at the times relevant herein, she resided
in Tulsa, Tulsa County, OK within the territorial boundaries of the Muscogee (Creek) Nation at
1417 E. 46™ Street, Tulsa, OK 74105. At times relevant herein, Gilliland was employed as the
Executive Director of the CNF, an Internal Revenue Code 501(c)(3) non-profit organization whose
headquarters was in Tahlequah, Ok, within the territorial boundaries of the Cherokee Nation.

18.  Judge Barteaux is a Judge of the Nation’s District Court.

19.  The Nation is a federally recognized Indian nation. The Nation’s territorial
boundaries include all or part of fourteen northeastern Oklahoma counties including Tulsa, Adair,
Cherokee, Craig, Delaware, Mayes, Mclntosh, Muskogee, Nowata, Ottawa, Rogers, Sequoyah,

Washington, and Wagoner Counties.

" Constitution of the Cherokee Nation 1999
Article 111 Bill of Rights, Section 2. “In all criminal proceedings. the accused shall have the right
to: counsel; confront all adverse witnesses; have compulsory process for obtaining witnesses in
favor of the accused; and, to a speedy public trial by an impartial jury . . . Excessive bail shall not
be required, nor excessive fines imposed, nor cruel and unusual punishment inflicted.” (Emphasis
added).
Section 3, “The right of trial by jury shall remain inviolate. and the Cherokee Nation shall not
deprive any person of life, liberty or property without due process of law, nor shall private property
be taken for public use without just compensation.”
'3 Exh. A-40. 2020-11-04 SC-19-15 Opinion.

7
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20. Hill is the Cherokee Nation Attorney General and supervises the prosecution of the
Nation’s criminal case against Gilliland.

21. Keen is the Special Prosecutor appointed to lead the prosecution of the Nation’s
criminal case against Gilliland.

III.  JURISDICTION AND VENUE

22.  Federal question jurisdiction is conferred by the ICRA, specifically 25 U.S.C.
§1303, which provides that “[t]he privilege of the writ of habeas corpus shall be available to any
person, in a court of the United States, to test the legality of his detention by order of an Indian
Tribe.” The ICRA prohibits Judge Barteaux from exercising the Nation’s authority to deprive
Gilliland of a fundamental liberty interest without due process of law.

23.  Venue is properly laid in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391(b)
because the Nation is within this judicial district and Gilliland at relevant times herein lived within
the judicial district.

24.  This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1331, because this action arises
under the Constitution, laws, or treaties of the United States, raising the federal question of Judge
Barteaux’s unlawful detention of Gilliland and the Nation’s unconstitutional actions against

Gilliland denying her due process.
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IV. CUSTODIAL STATUS OF PETITIONER

25.  Gilliland is not in physically custody of the Nation. Gilliland is detained by Judge
Barteaux’s detention orders including his October 22, 2019 Order issuing a bench warrant and
March 26, 2021 Arrest Warrant and imposing a $10,000 cash bond on each.

V. EXHAUSTION

26. On November 4, 2020, Gilliland exhausted tribal court remedies when the
Cherokee Nation Supreme Court denied her Writ of Habeas Corpus holding contrary to law, that
she was not in custody.'®

V1. RELIEF REQUESTED

27. A Petition for Habeas Corpus is a proper method to challenge the legality of orders
issued by Judge Barteaux. Gilliland requests this Court find the Cherokee Nation criminal charges
against her violation due process and order the Cherokee Nation District Court to dismiss them
with prejudice.

VII. PROCEDURAL HISTORY OF THE NATION’S CASE
AGAINST GILLILAND IN TRIBAL COURT.

A. Background of Controversy

28. Gilliland was the Director of CNF from the end of 2009 to 2011 by contract, and
then was employed from 2011 until the end of June 2013 as a regular employee. She had resigned
in January 2013 but was asked by CNF’s Board to stay until the end of June 2013. She negotiated
a termination agreement with Robin Flint Ballenger, then the Chairwoman of the CNF Board, and

experienced non-profit board member and former Chairperson of Flintco Construction. The

16 Exh. A-40, 2020-11-04 SC-19-15 Opinion.
9
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termination agreement was approved by the CNF Board.!”  Gilliland was succeeded by Jason
Denny. Several board members, including Chairwoman Ballenger, left their positions prior to
2016.

29. At all times relevant herein, CNF had periodic Finance Committee meetings of
Board members, annual accounting audits without any findings of fraud or wrongdoing,'® and
quarterly reviews before the Cherokee Nation Tribal Council.

30.  On July 28, 2016, Special Prosecutor Hammons (“Hammons™) filed the criminal
Complaint in Cherokee Nation v. Gilliland, CRM 2016-54 against Gilliland without referral,
investigation, or consultation with any law enforcement agency, including the Cherokee Nation
Marshal Service (“Marshal”), Bureau of Indian Affairs Police, or the Federal Bureau of
Investigation. No law enforcement agency investigated this case. The Complaint was verified by
Hammons who was appointed by Todd Hembree (“Hembree™), the Cherokee Nation Attorney
General at that time. Hammons withdrew as attorney of record in April 2019.

31. The standard protocol to investigate the allegations of a criminal offense occurring
within the Nation would be, at a minimum, for the Marshal to interview witnesses, gather evidence,

request the suspect to provide a statement, prepare an investigation report, make a recommendation

17 Robin Flint Ballenger, an enrolled member of the Cherokee Nation, is the first female chair of
The Flintco Companies, Inc. Flintco is the largest American Indian owned Construction Company
in the world and is ranked as one of the largest contractors in the nation. . She is currently a board
member of the Philbrook Museum of Art, Tulsa City-County Library Trust, Saint Simeon’s
Foundation, Oklahoma Housing Trust Fund Committee. and a member of the Smithsonian
National Museum of the American Indian. She is past president of the Cherokee Nation Education
Corporation and Clarehouse board of directors and has served on the boards of the Cherokee
National Historical Society, Hillcrest Medical Center and Planned Parenthood Eastern Oklahoma.
https://www tulsahistory.org/halloffame/robin-flint-ballenger/

'8 Exh. A-35, 2019-11-07 Opening Brief Habeas Corpus at p. 24, footnotes 28-33.

10
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to the Attorney General whether to prosecute, if so, what charges should be considered, and verify
the Complaint filed as true and correct. None of that was done.

32. If funds were suspected as embezzled from the Nation, the standard criminal
prosecution protocol would be for the Marshal to refer the case to the Bureau of Indian Affairs
Police, or Federal Bureau of Investigation for investigation and review by the U.S. Attorney,
especially in the amount the Nation alleges. If the Nation’s assets were embezzled, it would have
been an even greater reason for the U.S. Attorney to review prosecution by pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§ 1163. The Nation did not refer the case to the Marshall, BIA, FBI or Oklahoma State authorities.
Not one law enforcement officer investigated this case or is endorsed as a witness.

33.  Rather than conduct a regular law enforcement investigation, the Nation hired
Sherri Combs, a private contractor, to conduct a forensic audit of CNF’s bookkeeping which was
concluded before 2014. The Nation has refused to provide Gilliland with a copy of the audit
report.'® That report was not reviewed by law enforcement.

34, Hammons, Hembree, Hill and Keen violated all well-established process,
procedure. and protocol to prosecute a criminal case by excluding any law enforcement
involvement or investigation including federal resources for investigating white-collar crimes.

B. Tribal Court Chronology

35.  July 27, 2016: Keen, representing CNF, filed a civil case, Cherokee Nation
Foundation v. Gilliland, No. CV-2016-397, (hereinafter referred to as the “Civil Case™) based on
the same allegations as the Criminal Case. On September 6, 2016, Keen, on behalf of CNF. stated

to the Cherokee Nation District Court that, “Admittedly, eight counts in the civil petition involve

19 Exh. A-4. 2016-09-08 Defendant's Motion to Compel Discovery (Gilliland"s Motion to Compel
the Nation to produce a copy of the audit filed September 8. 2016.)
11
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the same transaction or occurrence as in the criminal information.”? In the Civil Case, on CNF’s
behalf, Keen sought a breathtaking $1,160,000 in damages from Gilliland of which $928,000 were
punitive damages.

36. July 28, 2016: The Nation filed the nine count Complaint against Gilliland in the
Criminal Case alleging that as CNF’s Director, Gilliland embezzled CNF property when she was
traveling and promoting the work of the CNF by taking family members with her, attending an
online master’s degree class for non-profit development, and by failing to account for certain office
equipment.?!

37.  August 12, 2016: District Court Judge Fite acknowledged that Gilliland
surrendered to the Court in the Criminal Case and entered his order releasing Gilliland on her own
recognizance without restriction.”? The Nation knew at the time of filing the Complaint that
Gilliland resided outside the Cherokee Nation in Tulsa, Oklahoma within the territorial boundaries
of the Muscogee (Creek) Nation.

38.  August 2018: Gilliland moved to Poland.

39.  November 11, 2018: Keen entered an appearance in the criminal case against
Gilliland and became the lead prosecutor. As a result, Keen became both CNF’s attorney in the

Civil Case against Gilliland and the lead prosecutor in the Criminal Case against Gilliland.?

* Exh. A-3,2016-09-06 Civil case- Plaintiff's Response and Combining Brief in Opposition to
Defendant’s Motion to Stay at page 3, CNF v. Gilliland, CV-16-397 (Cherokee Nation Foundation
v. Gilliland. No. CV 2016-397).
! Exh. A-1, 2016-07-28 Complaint.
2 Exh. A-2. 2016-08-12 Order of Arraignment and Personal Recognizance Bond.
3 Exh. A-5,2018-11-01 Entry of Appearance Keen.

12
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40. February 14, 2019: Gilliland filed (1) her Demurrer to Criminal Complaint on
grounds that no crime was alleged, and (2) a Motion to Dismiss because the embezzlement statute
denied Gilliland due process.?*

41.  March 6, 2019: Judge Barteaux issued a Criminal Trial Notice and Scheduling
Order providing that Pretrial Motions were due J uly 19, 2019, and a jury trial was set for October
21,2019.%

42.  March 7, 2019: Gilliland filed a Motion to Disqualify Keen because of his conflict
of interest becoming the lead Prosecutor in the criminal case while he represented CNF seeking
damages against Gilliland in the companion civil case.?®

43.  March 20, 2019: The Nation filed an Amended Complaint with six additional
counts alleging that Gilliland embezzled funds from CNF by giving scholarships to Cherokee
students. However, the Amended Complaint made no allegations that Gilliland received any funds
or benefited in any fashion from the award of the scholarships. The Amended Complaint also
alleged that she paid the expenses of a Cherokee Nation Council member who voluntarily
presented a program on the scholarships available to Cherokee students but cited no basis as to

why it was improper much less criminal ?’

> Exh. A-6, 2019-02-14 Defendant's Demurrer to Complaint; Exh. A-7, 2019-02-14 Defendant's
Motion to Dismiss
3 Exh. A-9.2019-03-06 Criminal Trial Notice and Scheduling Order
¢ Exh. A-8, 2019-03-07 Motion to Disqualify Keen; Exh. A-11, 2019-03-25 Defendant's Supp.
Motion to Disqualify Keen.
27 Exh. A-10, 2019-03-20 Amended Complaint.

13
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44.  April 3, 2019: Gilliland filed her Motion to Strike Amended Complaint on the
grounds the statute of limitations had expired for additional Counts Charged, and Demurrer to
Amended Complaint.?®

45.  July 2, 2019: The District Court issued orders denying Gilliland’s Demurrer,
Motion to Strike Amended Complaint, and Motion to Disqualify Keen, and issued its Order Re-
Setting Arraignment on the Amended Complaint for July 19, 2019.2° The Court Clerk did not mail
or email the Order Re-setting Arraignment to Gilliland who was on her own personal recognizance
bond. The Court Clerk did not mail the Order Re-Setting Arraignment to Gilliland’s attorney,
Chadwick Smith (“Smith”). Smith did not know of these Orders until September 25, 2019, when
he discovered the Orders had been emailed to him but had been blocked by his email server as
30

suspicious as possibly having a virus.

46.  July 19, 2019: Having no notice of the hearing, Smith and Gilliland did not appear
on July 19, 2019, for Gilliland’s arraignment on the Amended Complaint. Neither Keen nor the
Court extended the professional courtesy of notice to Smith that that Gilliland and Smith missed

the arraignment.

28 Exh. A-12, 2019-04-03 Defendant's Motion to Strike Amended Complaint; Exh. A-13. 2019-
04-03 Defendant's Second Demurrer and Motion to Dismiss Amended Complaint.
2 Exh. A-19, 2019-07-02 Order on Demurrer to Complaint: Exh. A-20, 2019-07-02 Order on
Motion to Disqualify; Exh. A-21, 2019-07-02 Order on Motion to Strike Amended Compliant:
Exh. A-22,2019-07-02 Order Re-Setting Arraignment.
30 Exh. A-26, 2019-9-30 Motion to Withdraw Bench Warrant.

14
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47.  August 1, 2019: Judge Barteaux entered a Minute Order issuing a Bench Warrant
for Gilliland for failure to appear.’!

48. August 8, 2019: Judge Barteaux entered a Minute Order and, on motion of the
Nation, issued a Bench Warrant for Gilliland’s failure to appear at the July 19, 2019 arraignment.
The Bench Warrant provided that it was to be served “Day or Night” on Gilliland and listed
Gilliland’s address to be 1417 E. 46™ Street, Tulsa, OK 74105, a location outside the Cherokee
Nation. No notice was given to Smith or Gilliland of the issuance of the bench warrant by the
Court or Keen 32

49.  September 30, 2019: Gilliland filed a motion to withdraw the bench warrant.*?

50.  October 1, 2019: Judge Barteaux withdrew the bench warrant on the condition
Gilliland appear for an October 18, 2019 arraignment on the Amended Complaint.

51.  October 9, 2019: Gilliland filed a Motion to Appear Telephonically for her second
arraignment. The Nation did not object and the Court permitted Gilliland’s telephonic
appearance.>*

52.  October 9, 2019: Gilliland moved Judge Barteaux to certify for appeal the District
Court’s Order Denying Motion to Strike Amended Complaint on Grounds the Statute of
Limitations Expired for Additional Counts Charged, and Demurrer to Amended Complaint, which

Judge Barteaux denied.*

3t Exh. A-23.2019-08-01 Court Minute Bench Warrant Issued.
Exh. A-24, 2019-08-12 Bench Warrant.
Exh. A-26, 2019-09-30 Motion to Withdraw bench warrant.
Exh. A-27.2019-10-09 Agreed Motion & Order Allowing Gilliland to appear by phone.
Exh. A-28. 2019-10-09 Motion to Certify Orders for Interlocutory Appeal.
15
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53. October 16, 2019: The Nation objected to reinstating Gilliland® personal
recognizance bond.*®

54.  October 18, 2019: Gilliland appeared telephonically for her arraignment,
acknowledged receipt of the Amended Complaint, and entered a second plea of not guilty.

55.  October 22, 2019: Judge Barteaux denied Gilliland’s Motion to reinstate her
Personal Recognizance bond and ordered her to deposit $10,000 cash with the court as bail before
November 20, 2019, or else a Bench Warrant would be issued.3’

56. October 22, 2019: The District Court denied Gilliland’s Motion for Certification
for Interlocutory Appeal.®

57.  October 31, 2019: Gilliland filed her Writ of Habeas Corpus in the Cherokee Nation
Supreme Court.®

58. November 15, 2019: Keen filed the Cherokee Nation’s Motion to Dismiss Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus.*

59.  November 19, 2019: Gilliland Objection to Cherokee Nation’s Motion to Dismiss

Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus.*!

3% Exh. A-29, 2019-10-16 Nation’s Objection to Defendant’s Motion to Reinstate Personal
Recognizance Bond.

37 Exh. A-31,2019-10-22 Order Denying Motion to Reinstating Person Recognizance Bond.

3% Exh. A-30, 2019-10-22 Order Denying Certification for Interlocutory Appeal.

39 Exh. A-32, 2019-11-05 Habeas Petition; Exh. A-35, 2019-11-07 Opening Habeas Brief:
Exh. A-33, 2019-11-07 Exhibits to Habeas Brief; Exh. A-34 Table of Contents of Habeas Corpus

Brief

40 Exh. A-36, 2019-11-15 Cherokee Nation’s Motion to Dismiss Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus

1" Exh. A-37, 2019-11-19 Objection to Cherokee Nation Motion to Dismiss Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus
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60. December 4, 2019: Keen filed the Nation Reply to Defendant’s Objection to
Cherokee Nation’s Motion to Dismiss Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus.*?

61. November 4, 2020: The Cherokee Nation Supreme Court denied Gilliland’s Writ
of Habeas Corpus.*

62. March 26, 2021: Judge Barteaux issued an Arrest Warrant for Gilliland without any
restriction to “Any Law Enforcement Officer” and ordered a $10,000 bond be posted for her
release.**

63.  August 27, 2021: Keen filed a “Motion in Opposition to Trial in Absentia and to
Strike Trial Setting Until Defendant is in Physical Custody.”* Keen filed this motion to avoid
filing a motion for continuance of the October 25, 2021 jury trial.

64.  August 30, 2021: Keen moved for continuance of the jury trial set for October 25,
2021 so as Captain of an eight-person competitive billiards team in the Ozark Mount APA League
who won the 2021 Northwest Arkansas Eightball Championship, he could take advantage of an
all-expense paid trip to Las Vegas to compete in the APA World Eightball championships.*®

65.  September 8,2021: Judge Barteaux granted CNF’s Motion for Continuance and set

the case for April 5, 2022 for pre-trial docket and April 25, 2022 for jury trial.

2 Exh. A-38, 2019-12-04 Keen filed the Nation Reply to Defendant’s Objection to Cherokee
Nation’s Motion to Dismiss Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
4 Exh. A-40, 2020-11-04 Cherokee Nation Supreme Court Opinion.
# Exh. A-41, 2021-03-26 Warrant of Arrest.
45 Exh. A-43, 2021-08-27 Nation's Motion in Opposition to Trial in Absentia, Exh. A-45
2021-09-09 Motion to Strike Absentia Motion
46 Exh. A-44, 2021-08-30 Motion for Continuance
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66. May 17, 2022: Judge Barteaux issued an Order Striking the Case from the Jury
Docket holding, “The Court hereby strike this matter from the jury docket until such time as the
Defendant settles the warrant issue against her.”’

67. May 19, 2022: as of date, Keen has not tendered a Pretrial Order requested by
Gilliland and required by Cherokee Nation District Court Rule 120.

VIII. ARGUMENT AND AUTHORITY
A. This Court has authority to review Gilliland’s Petition for Habeas Corpus

68.  Gilliland is entitled to have this Court review her Writ of Habeas Corpus because
the Amended Complaint in this case fails to conform with the fundamental requirements of due
process, and her freedom is wrongfully restricted by the Nation because of Judge Barteaux’s
detention orders.

69. In Fay v. Noia, 372 U.S. 391, 401-02, (1963), the United States Supreme Court
stated,

Its root principle is that, in a civilized society, government must always be

accountable to the judiciary for a man's imprisonment: if the imprisonment cannot

be shown to conform with the fundamental requirements of law, the individual is

entitled to his immediate release. Thus, there is nothing novel in the fact that today

habeas corpus in the federal courts provides a mode for the redress of denials of

due process of law. Vindication of due process is precisely its historic office.

70.  For purposes of a Writ of Habeas Corpus, Gilliland’s being on a personal
recognizance bond or required to post a $10,000 cash bond is deemed being detained because the
Nation restricts her liberty to come and go like other citizens. In Hensley v. Municipal Court, 411

U.S. 345. 351 (1973), the United States Supreme Court held a person is in custody of the

government for purposes of a Writ of Habeas Corpus even when released on his own recognizance.

7 Exh. A-46. 2022-05-17, Order Striking the Case from the Jury Docket
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71.  The ICRA mandates that the Nation provide Gilliland due process and the
equivalent of the U.S. Constitution Bill of Rights.*® In Randall, v. Yakima Nation Tribal Court,
841 F.2d 897, (9th Cir. 1988), the Ninth Circuit held, “Where the rights are the same under either
legal system, federal constitutional standards are employed in determining whether the challenged
procedure violates the Act (ICRA).” Therefore, federal case law is applicable to the due process
rights provided Gilliland by the ICRA.

72. In Jones v. Cunningham, 371 U.S. 236. 239 (1963), the U.S. Supreme Court
interpreting 28 U.S.C. § 2241, held, “Similarly, in the United States the use of habeas corpus has
not been restricted to situations in which the applicant is in actual, physical custody”. In Settler v.
Yakima Tribal Court, 419 F.2d 486, 490 (9th Cir. 1969), the Ninth Circuit held that 28 U.S.C. §
2241 habeas corpus relief was available to a party who was fined by a tribal court and posted bond.
The Ninth Circuit stated the law:

The second point pressed by appellee is that this case should be dismissed even if

the district court has jurisdiction since habeas corpus is not available to a petitioner

who is not "in custody"” within the meaning of 28 U.S.C. § 2241. We believe,

however, that the writ of habeas corpus is available to one who, like appellant, has

been fined by an Indian Tribal Court and has posted a bond pending procedural

review by an Indian appellate court. . .. Appellee cites no case directly supporting

its position. In fact, in the most recent case cited, Jones v. Cunningham, 371 U.S.

236, 83 S.Ct. 373, 9 L.Ed.2d 285 (1963), the Supreme Court held that a prisoner

placed on parole is "in custody” within the meaning of 28 U.S.C. § 2241 so as to

give him sufficient standing to request habeas corpus. The Court noted in its

analysis that "history, usage. and precedent can leave no doubt that, besides
physical imprisonment, there are other restraints on a man's liberty, restraints not

* No Indian tribe in exercising powers of self-government shall—
6. deny to any person in a criminal proceeding the right to a speedy and public trial, to be
informed of the nature and cause of the accusation, to be confronted with the witnesses
against him, to have compulsory process for obtaining witnesses in his favor, and at his
own expense to have the assistance of counsel for his defense;
7. (A) require excessive bail. impose excessive fines, or inflict cruel and unusual
punishments;

25 U.S.C.§ 1302 (a). The Sixth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution also provides that “In all

criminal prosecutions, the accused shall . .. be informed of the nature and cause of the accusation.”
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shared by the public generally, which have been thought sufficient in the English-

speaking world to support the issuance of habeas corpus.”" Id. at 240, 83 S.Ct. at

376; see, e. g., Brownell v. We Shung, 352 U.S. 180, 183, 77 S.Ct. 252, 1 L.Ed.2d

225 (1953) (habeas corpus available to an alien seeking entry into the United States

even though he is free to go anywhere else in the world); Ex parte Fabiani, 105

F.Supp. 139 (E.D.Pa.1952) (habeas corpus appropriate procedural vehicle for

testing legality of induction into the military); Ford v. Ford, 371 U.S. 187, 83 S.Ct.

273, 9 L.Ed.2d 240 (1962) (habeas corpus available to parents disputing proper

custody of child).”

73.  Custody and detention are not limited to actual physical detention in a jail or prison.
Rather, the petitioner must show that he is "subject to restraints 'mot shared by the public
generally’" See Payer v. Turtle Mt. Tribal Council, 2003 WL 22339181 .at 5 (D.N.D. Oct. 1, 2003).

74.  For purposes of habeas corpus, Judge Barteaux’s detention orders constitute

unconstitutional restraint that may be reviewed by this Court.

B. Judge Barteaux had no authority to issue a Bench or Arrest Warrant outside of the
Nation.

75. On August 12, 2016, Cherokee Nation District Court Judge Fite, with the Nation’s
agreement, allowed Gilliland to surrender herself to the Court and be on a personal recognizance
bond without restriction for appearance at trial; she was arraigned on the Complaint at that time.
The Nation knew at the time of filing the Complaint that Gilliland resided outside the Cherokee
Nation in the Muscogee (Creek) Nation, Tulsa, Oklahoma. There were no travel conditions in the
District Court’s Order; there was no prohibition on Gilliland's leaving the boundaries of the Nation
or State; and there were no conditions requiring her to report her residence and whereabouts or to
request permission to move.

76.  Whenever Gilliland received notice, actual or legal, she appeared as directed by the
District Court. On October 18, 2019. she appeared telephonically for arraignment on the Amended

Complaint. However. on October 22. 2019, the Keen objected to Gilliland’s Motion to Remain
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on her Personal Recognizance Bond and the District Court denied Gilliland’s motion. Instead,
Judge Barteaux ordered her to deposit $10,000 cash with the Court Clerk as bail to avoid being
jailed until her trial set for April 20, 2021 which is not set for April 25, 2022.

77.  On October 18, 2019, the time of the arraignment on the Amended Complaint,
Gilliland was in Poland where her husband Andrew Sikora, who is a native of that country, was
seeking treatment for blood cancer.

78.  The Nation wholly failed to notify Gilliland as required by the ICRA of her right to
bring this Writ of Habeas Corpus to challenge her detention.*

79.  The Marshal illegally attempted to serve the Bench Warrant on Gilliland after
August 18, 2019. 22 CNCA § 455, Bench Warrant, provides that the District Court may “issue a
Bench Warrant for any part of Cherokee Nation,” which limits the District Court’s authority to
within the boundaries of the Cherokee Nation.>® The Marshal knowingly attempted to serve the
Bench Warrant outside of the Cherokee Nation. If Gilliland had been at her home in Tulsa, the
Marshal would have illegally arrested Gilliland as provided by the Bench Warrant - an action

requested by Keen and authorized by Judge Barteaux.

425 U.S.C.§ 1304 (e), Petitions to Stay Detention, provides:

1. In general.—A person who has filed a petition for a writ of habeas corpus in a court of the
United States under section 203 [25 USC §1303] may petition that court to stay further
detention of that person by the participating tribe.

2. Grant of stay.—A court shall grant a stay described in paragraph (1) if the court—

(A) finds that there is a substantial likelihood that the habeas corpus petition will be granted; and

(B) after giving each alleged victim in the matter an opportunity to be heard. finds by clear and

convincing evidence that under conditions imposed by the court, the petitioner is not likely to flee

or pose a danger to any person or the community if released.

3. Notice.—An Indian tribe that has ordered the detention of any person has a duty to timely
notify such person of his rights and privileges under this subsection and under section 203 [25
USC §1303].

3022 CNCA §455: “The Clerk, on the application of the Prosecuting Attorney, may, accordingly,

at any time after the order. whether the Court be sitting or not, issue a Bench Warrant for any part

of Cherokee Nation.™
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80.  The Bench Warrant was invalid on its face because it specifies Gilliland’s residence
located outside of the Cherokee Nation as a place she could be arrested.

81.  Judge Barteaux ordered Gilliland to be arrested “day or night.” However, if served
at night at Gilliland’s house in Tulsa, the Bench Warrant would have also violated Oklahoma law
for serving a misdemeanor warrant at night.>! The Complaint sought punishment to one year for
each count, therefore, the Bench Warrant must be considered as a Misdemeanor Warrant, which
is prohibited from being served at night outside the Nation.

82.  Judge Barteaux’s detention orders are a constant threat to Gilliland’s liberty
interests in violation of Cherokee Nation law and due process required by the ICRA.

C. The Amended Complaint does not state a crime under the embezzlement statute.

83.  The Nation’s law provides that only those actions which are precisely described
and enacted by legislative action as crimes are punishable.”> Any question as to what the statute
identifies as a crime and punishment must be construed against the Nation. A review of the
pertinent statutes show that Gilliland committed no crime as alleged by the Nation because the
logical reading of Nation’s criminal law provides that embezzlement over S50 value is not
punishable by law.

84.  The Nation’s criminal embezzlement law is convoluted and confusing. To unravel

the charges against Gilliland, one must start with the fact that the Nation charged Gilliland with

3122 0.S. §189:“If the offense charged is a felony, the arrest may be made on any day, and at any
time of the day or night. . If it is a misdemeanor, the arrest may be made only during the hours of
six o'clock a.m. to ten o'clock p.m., inclusive, except as otherwise may be directed by the
magistrate endorsed upon the warrant. Provided, an arrest on a warrant which charges a
misdemeanor offense may be made at any time of the day or night it the defendant is in a public
place or on a public roadway.”

3221 CNCA § 2: Criminal acts are only those prescribed—"This code" defined No act or omission
shall be deemed criminal or punishable except as prescribed or authorized by this code.
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criminal embezzlement pursuant to 21 CNCA §1452.3 Although 21 CNCA §1452 deems
embezzlement a crime and provides some elements, a different statute, 21 CNCA §1462, provides
for additional elements and the specific criminal punishment for embezzlement.>*

85.  The Nation further alleges in the Amended Complaint that the charges against
Gilliland are punishable as prescribed by a general punishment provision - 21 CNCA §10.
However, 21 CNCA §11 provides an exception that where a different punishment is prescribed by
law that provision controls.’® 21 CNCA §1462 prescribes a specific punishment which supersedes
the general punishment provision.

86. 21 CNCA §10 also declares all offenses under the Cherokee Nation Criminal Code

are a crime without the distinction between a felony and misdemeanor; the ICRA limited

3321 CNCA §1452: Embezzlement by officer, etc., of corporation, etc. If any person, being an
officer, director, trustee, clerk, servant or agent of any association, society or corporation, public
or private, fraudulently appropriates to any use or purpose not in the due and lawful execution of
his trust, any property which he has in his possession or under his control by virtue of his trust, or
secretes it with a fraudulent intent to appropriate it to such use or purpose he is guilty of
embezzlement.
> 21 CNCA §1462: Punishment for embezzlement. Every person guilty of embezzlement is
punishable in the manner prescribed for feloniously stealing property of the value of that
embezzled, except that every person convicted of embezzlement of any item valued at less than
Fifty Dollars ($50.00) shall be punished for a crime. And where the property embezzled is an
evidence of debt or right in action, the sum due upon it. or secured to be paid by it, shall be taken
as its value.
3321 CNCA §10: Punishment of crimes.
Except in cases where a different punishment is prescribed by this title or by some existing
provisions of law, every offense declared to be a crime is punishable by the maximum punishment
provided for by the Indian Civil Rights Act, 25 U.S.C. §1302(a)(7). The Court may not impose for
conviction of any one (1) offense any penalty or punishment greater than imprisonment for a term
of one (1) year or a fine of Five Thousand Dollars ($5.000.00) or both:
3 21 CNCA §11: Specific statutes in other titles as governing—Acts punishable in different
ways—Acts not otherwise punishable by imprisonment. A. If there be in any other titles of the
laws of this Nation a provision making any specific act or omission criminal and providing the
punishment therefor. and there be in this penal code any provision or section making the same act
or omission a criminal offense or prescribing the punishment therefor, that offense and the
punishment thereof, shall be governed by the special provisions made in relation thereto, and not
by the provisions of this penal code.
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punishment to one year incarceration per offense which is a misdemeanor. In essence, a crime
under the then applicable Cherokee Nation law was a misdemeanor. >’
87.  So, 21 CNCA §1462 is controlling; it provides only those acts of embezzlement
where the property or asset is /ess than $50 is a crime. 21 CNCA §1462 provides:
Every person guilty of embezzlement is punishable in the manner prescribed for
feloniously stealing property of the value of that embezzled, except that every person
convicted of embezzlement of any item valued at less than Fifty Dollars (850.00) shall be
punished for a crime. (Emphasis added.)
88.  The “except” provision of 21 CNCA §1462 is the operative and controlling
language of the section; its meaning is that only those embezzlement offenses where the property
is less than $50 are punishable.

89.  The Nation had no crime of “feloniously stealing property” or any crimes

denominated as a “felony” at the times relevant herein.’®

37 Cherokee Nation Codification Act of 2016 LA-02-16, 2/18/2016

Section 5. Substantive Provision of Law; Repeals; Additions; and Amendments. All laws included
in the Cherokee Nation Code Annotated (2014), and laws appended thereto, are hereby affirmed
as the positive law of the Cherokee Nation. All laws and parts of laws not included in the Cherokee
Nation Code Annotated (2014) publication are repealed. The repeal shall not revive any law
previously repealed, nor shall it affect any right already existing or accrued or any action or
proceeding already taken, unless otherwise provided in the Cherokee Nation Code Annotated
(2014).

38 The Cherokee Nation did not have a felony before December 14, 2020. The Nation amended
its penal code to create a class of offenses to be denominated as felony on December 14, 2021.
TITLE 21 - CRIMINAL CODE MODERNIZATION AMENDMENT OF 2020” LA 28-20,
12/14/2020 provides:

§ 2. Criminal acts are only those prescribed-"This code" defined. No act or omission shall be
deemed criminal or punishable except as prescribed or authorized by this code. The words "this
code" as used in the "penal code" shall be construed to mean Cherokee Nation Code Annotated."
§ 4. Crimes classified

All crimes or offenses are elassified-as"erimes=divided into:

1. Felonies:

2. Misdemeanors.

§ 5. Felony defined

A felony is a crime which is. or may be. punishable by imprisonment for more than one year.

§ 6. Misdemeanor defined
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90. 21 CNCA §1462 does not reference 21 CNCA §§1703-1706 which provide for
degrees of larceny - grand and petit.>

91. 21 CNCA §1462 prescribes only one degree of property value to be punished- less
than $50. In other words, 21 CNCA §1462, taken as a whole, means embezzlement is punished
based on the degree of the property value and the only degree prescribed for punishment is less
than $50.

92. 21 CNCA §1462 provides for no other “prescribed or authorized” crime or
punishment; it only provides for embezzlement property valued at less than fifty dollars ($50.00).

93.  There is no crime specified in the Nation’s criminal code for embezzlement of
property valued over $50. In other words, if the property or asset is valued over $50.00, the
allegation of embezzlement is not punishable under the Nation’s laws. It should be noted the
property or asset value of each count of the Amended Complaint exceeds $50.

94.  The Nation has the sovereign right to define the elements of a crime. In this

Every other crime that is not a felony is a misdemeanor.

§ 21. Prohibited act a erime~when misdemeanor. unless stated otherwise

Where the performance of an act is prohibited by any statute, and no penalty for the violation of
such statute is imposed in any statute, the doing of such act is a erime_misdemeanor, unless
the defendant is a person accused of a criminal offense who (a) has been previously convicted of
the same or_a comparable offense by any jurisdiction in the United States: or (b) is being
prosecuted for an offense comparable to an offense that would be punishable by more than one (1)
year of imprisonment if prosecuted by the United States or any of the states. (Red line and
underline in original.)

3921 CNCA §§1703-1706 provide for degrees of larceny - grand and petit. The punishment for
each degree is based on the value of the property. Grand larceny requires property value of over
$500 and Petit Larceny requires property value of less than $500. . The punishment is different for
Grand and Petit Larceny. The Nation’s statutes provide no degree of punishment for embezzlement
other than 21 CNCA §1462.

If larceny were substituted for “feloniously stealing property” then the nonsensical result would
be Gilliland would face the maximum of one year in jail and a $5,000 fine for property valued over
$500 and under $50. For property valued between $50 and $500, she would face six months in jail
and a $10 to $500 fine. See 21 CNCA § 1706. This strained interpretation would also render the
embezzlement statute void by vagueness because it is uncertain, ambiguous. and irreconcilable.
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instance, it is consistent with a policy of judicial economy for the Nation to prosecute minor
offenses of embezzlement in the Nation’s court and defer prosecution of allegations of
embezzlement of greater value of property or assets to the federal government pursuant to 18
U.S.C. §§ 1152, 1153.

95.  Other than construing 21 CNCA §1462 as providing that embezzlement is
punishable for offenses only where the value of the property or assets is less than $50, there is no
common sense or logical interpretation of the statute to apprise Gilliland of the elements, nature,
and punishment of embezzlement as prohibited by Cherokee Nation law.

96. The Amended Complaint alleges offenses committed by Gilliland which are not
crimes under the Nation’s laws, and the case should be dismissed.

D. The Amended Complaint alleges no facts showing criminal intent.

97.  The Amended Complaint violates due process because it failed to specify factual
allegations for the elements of embezzlement committed by Gilliland: 1) fraudulently, 2) did not
use CNF property in the due and lawful execution of her trust, or 3) appropriated the property for
her own use or purpose as required by 21 CNCA §1452.

98. The U.S. Constitution Sixth Amendment provides that, “In all criminal
prosecutions, the accused shall . . . be informed of the nature and cause of the accusation.” The
ICRA required the Nation to provide Gilliland with the same due process notice.

99.  The Amended Complaint must allege facts that show Gilliland's intent to deceive
the CNF. An example of an indictment that failed this test is provided by United States v. Nance,
533 F.2d 699 (D.C. Cir. 1976). The indictment in Nance charged a false pretense violation pursuant
to the District of Columbia Code. It listed the name of each victim, the date of the false
representation. the amount each victim lost. and the date the sum was paid to the defendants but
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was fatally defective because its failure to specify the false representation which induced the
victims to pay the money to the defendants. See also United States v. Brown, 995 F.2d 1493, 1504-
05 (10th Cir.) (indictment charging controlling premises and making them available for storing
and distributing cocaine base insufficient because failed to state how control was exercised), cert.
denied, 114 S.Ct. 353 (1993).

100. A criminal complaint must sufficiently inform the defendant of the offense and
punishment and courts require the Complaint to have a commonsense construction.®

101.  On March 6, 2019, Judge Barteaux’s Order on Motion to File Amended Complaint
and Objection Thereto, provided, “The Court authorizes the Nation to amend its complaint one
time on or before March 29, 2019.”

102.  On March 19, 2019, Judge Barteaux deferred ruling on Gilliland’s Demurrer to
Complaint and Motion to Dismiss until after the Nation had the opportunity to file an Amended
Complaint. The Nation’s Amended Complaint filed March 20, 2019 is identical to its original
Complaint except for the addition of Counts X-XV. But in spite of the fact that the Nation had the
benefit of the arguments of Gilliland’s Demurrer filed on February 14, 2019, it elected to charge
Gilliland in its Amended Complaint pursuant to 21 CNCA §1462 and rnor to provide any specific
allegations regarding Gilliland’s intent and what constituted firaudulent appropriation as required
by due process.

103. The Nation had notice it failed to provide specific facts as to Gilliland’s intent in

its Complaint necessary to afford Gilliland due process, but wholly failed to allege any specific

0 United States v. Drew. 722 F.2d 551. 552-533 (9th Cir. 1983). . . The specificity requirement
ensures that Gilliland has only to answer charges alleged with specific facts in the Amended
Complaint in order for her to prepare her defense, and that she is protected against double jeopardy.
See United States v. Haas, 583 F.2d 216 (5th Cir.), reh'g denied, 588 F.2d 829. cert. denied, 440
U.S. 981 (1978).

27



Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 28 of 426

facts in its Amended Complaint.

104. Judge Barteaux cavalierly held in his July 2, 2019 Order on Demurrer to the
[Amended] Complaint, “The law is sufficient to provide a defendant the knowledge to not commit
embezzlement. The information is sufficient to provide the defendant with full due process and
knowledge of the complaint against her.”®' (Emphasis added.) That does not meet the legal
standard for sufficiency of notice for a criminal complaint.

105. In many of the Amended Complaint counts, the Nation merely alleges Gilliland
went on a business trip paid for by CNF. It is common for an organization’s staff to go on business
trips paid by the organization and often take family or associates with them particularly when they
are part of the business program or presentation. Those actions only become criminal if the facts
show that Gilliland fraudulently used CNF’s funds by deceit, for her use without the consent of the
Board, or beyond her authorization to spend CNF funds and failed to reimburse CNF, if requested.
Board members reviewed the costs and expenses at quarterly meetings, if there were issues, the
Board knew or should have known several months after the funds were spent.

106. For example, the Amended Complaint Count XV alleges that Gilliland
misappropriated funds by paying for a February 8, 2013 out-of-state CNF trip to Phoenix, Arizona
for Cara Cowan Watts, a Cherokee Nation tribal councilmember who provided firee seminars on
science and math scholarships for Cherokee students. However, the Amended Complaint fails to
allege why the act was criminal especially because the Nation committed to reimburse CNF for
Councilmember Cowan’s expenses. The Amended Complaint fails to allege that this trip was not

for the purpose or benefit of CNF. beyond Gilliland’s spending authority, or it was disapproved

' Exh. A-19.2019-07-02 Order on Demurrer to Complaint.
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by the CNF Board. The Amended Complaint failed to allege the cost of the trip was unreasonable.
CNF paid for Watt's airfare on Southwest Airlines to present free seminars to Cherokee students
and their families on how to apply for college which was a mission of CNF. The Nation refused to
acknowledge that the Board gave Gilliland $5,000 spending authority without pre-approval and
the Phoenix was only several hundred dollars.

107. To demonstrate the insufficiency of the Amended Complaint, during the trip that
the Nation charges in Count I as criminal embezzlement, Gilliland made three presentations on
behalf of CNF on February 11 and 12, 2012 to Cherokee communities in Southern California.®?
The Cherokee Nation sent a brochure to all Cherokee citizens in the southern California area
inviting them to attend a presentation on scholarship opportunities made by Gilliland as Executive
Director of CNF.%

108. In part, the Amended Complaint Count I incredibility charged that Gilliland paying
the usual and customary expenses for a routine and common business trip such as airport parking,
car rental, hotel costs, gasoline for the rental car and meals constituted embezzlement. Count |
wholly failed to allege facts that show these common, ordinary, and necessary expenses connected
with an advertised business trip for CNF were criminally appropriated, without the consent of the
Board or outside Gilliland's spending authority. In fact, Count | failed to allege this trip was not
approved, authorized, or ratified by the CNF Board.

109. Another example of the Amended Complaint’s complete failure to allege any

criminal acts is Count XIII which alleges Gilliland “unilaterally awarded™ four Cherokee student

2 California has 22,124 Cherokee citizens. https://www .cherokeephoenix.ore/news/map-shows-

cn-citizen-population-for-each-state/article_066ff0b8-0d{3-536e-ab04-dead9dd33925.html
3 Exh. A-6. 2019-02-14 Defendant's Demurrer to Complaint at Exhibit B “Brochure for 2012

Presentations
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scholarships. Unilaterally awarding scholarships is not a crime; it may be failure to comply with
policy, but there is no allegation that Gilliland criminally received funds from or benefited from
the students receiving scholarships.

110.  The Nation must afford Gilliland not only an Amended Complaint that contains all
of the elements of the offense (whether or not such elements appear in the statute), but one that is
sufficiently descriptive to permit the defendant to prepare a defense including facts showing
deceit.*

E. The embezzlement statue is void for vagueness.

111. The Amended Complaint is void by vagueness because it causes Gilliland to
“speculate as to the meaning of penal statutes.” The Nation charging Gilliland with the convoluted
language of 21 CNCA § 1462 and without any specificity of criminal intent renders the Amended
Complaint void by vagueness.

112, In United States v. Carl, 105 U.S. 611 (1881), the United Supreme Court held that
"in an indictment... it is not sufficient to set forth the offense in the words of the statute, unless
those words of themselves fully, directly, and expressly, without any uncertainty or ambiguity, set
forth all the elements necessary to constitute the offense intended to be punished." Vague wording,
even if taken directly from a statute, does not suffice to provide due process.

113, In United States v. Batchelder, 442 U.S. 114 (1979), the U.S. Supreme Court stated:

It is a fundamental tenet of due process that "[n]o one may be required at peril

of life, liberty or property to speculate as to the meaning of penal statutes." Lanzetta

v. New Jersey, 306 U.S. 451, 453, 59 S.Ct. 618, 619, 83 L.Ed. 888 (1939). A

criminal statute is therefore invalid if it "fails to give a person of ordinary

intelligence fair notice that his contemplated conduct is forbidden." United States
v. Harriss, 347 U.S.612,617, 74 S.Ct. 808, 812, 98 L.Ed. 989 (1954). See Connally

% Hamling v. United States, 418 U.S. 87, 117, reh’g denied, 419 U.S. 885 (1974); Russell v. United
States, 369 U.S. 749, 763-72 (1962); United States v. Hernandez, 891 F.2d 521. 525 (5th Cir.
1989). cert. denied. 495 U.S. 909 (1990).
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v. General Construction Co., 269 U.S. 385, 391-393, 46 S.Ct. 126, 127-128, 70

L.Ed. 322 (1926); Papachristou v. Jacksonville, 405 U.S. 156, 162, 92 S.Ct. 839,

843,31 L.Ed.2d 110 (1972); Dunn v. United States, 442 U.S., at 112-113, 99 S.Ct.,

at 2197. So too, vague sentencing provisions may post constitutional questions if

they do not state with sufficient clarity the consequences of violating a given

criminal statute. See United States v. Evans, 333 U.S. 483, 68 S.Ct. 634, 92 L.Ed.

823 (1948); United States v. Brown, 333 U.S. 18, 68 S.Ct. 376, 92 L.Ed. 442

(1948); cf. Giaccio v. Pennsylvania, 382 U.S. 399, 86 S.Ct. 518, 15 L.Ed.2d 447

(1966).

114. In Apprendi v New Jersey, 530 U.S. 466, 480 (2000), the U.S. Supreme Court held
that any fact that increases the maximum penalty for a crime must be charged in an indictment
submitted to a jury and proven beyond a reasonable doubt."( see also United States v. Cook, 84
U.S. (17 Wall.) 168, 174 (1872) (If an offense cannot be accurately and clearly described without
an allegation that the accused is not within an exception contained in the statutes, an indictment
that does not contain such allegation is defective.)

115. The Cherokee Nation statute on criminal procedure, 22 CNCA § 409, also states
for a criminal information to be sufficient, it must describe the offense “clearly and distinctly set
forth in ordinary and concise language, without repetition, and in such a manner as to enable a
person of common understanding to know what is intended.”

116. Judge Barteaux’s July 2, 2019 District Court Order held, “The law is sufficient to
provide a defendant the knowledge 10 not commit embezzlement.” However, that is not the issue
or the legal standard.®> The issue is whether the words of the embezzlement statute and the
Amended Complaint “fully, directly, and expressly, without any uncertainty or ambiguity” set
forth all the elements necessary for Gilliland to defend herself and not face double jeopardy. The

Amended Complaint charging her with embezzlement lacks the specificity as to criminal intent,

and therefore denies Gilliland constitutional due process.

% Exh. A-19, 2019-07-02 Order on Demur to Complaint.
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117. The Cherokee Nation Council apparently recognized that 21 CNCA §§ 1452 and
1462 were legally infirm and vague because the language of the statute did not fully, directly, and
expressly, without any uncertainty or ambiguity, set forth all the elements necessary to constitute
the offense intended to be punished. On February 22, 2021, the Council amended 21 CNCA
§ 1451 and repealed §§ 1452 through 1457 by enactment LA 07-21. (An Act Amending Title 21
of the Cherokee Nation Code Annotated and Declaring an Emergency) in an effort to provide a

cogent criminal statute.® Of course, that statute cannot be applied to Gilliland because the

% The Tribal Council Amended 21 CNCA § 1451 and repealed §§1452 through 1457 by enactment

LA 07-21 on 2/22/2021. (An Act Amending Title 21 of the Cherokee Nation Code Annotated and

Declaring an Emergency).

21 CNCA § 1451. "Embezzlement" defined

A. "Embezzlement" is the fraudulent appropriation of property of any person or legal entity,
legally obtained, to any use or purpose not intended or authorized by its owner, or the
secretion of the property with the fraudulent intent to appropriate it to such use or purpose,
under any of the following circumstances:

1. Where the property was obtained by being entrusted. to that person for a specific purpose,
use, or disposition and shall include, but not be limited to, any funds “held in trust” for
any purpose;

2. Where the property was obtained by virtue of a power of attorney being granted for the

sale or transfer of the property;
Where the property is possessed or controlled for the use of another person;
Where the property is to be used for a public or benevolent purpose;

5. Where any person diverts any money appropriated by law from the purpose and object of
the appropriation;

6. Where any person fails or refuses to pay over to the Nation, or appropriate authority, any
tax or other monies collected in accordance with relevant law, and who appropriates the
tax or monies to the use of that person, or to the use of any other person not entitled to the
tax or monies;

7.  Where the property is possessed for the purpose of transportation, without regard to
whether packages containing the property have been broken;

8. Where any person removes crops from any leased or rented premises with the intent to
deprive the owner or landlord interested in the land of any of the rent due from that land,
or who fraudulently appropriates the rent to that person or any other person; or

9. Where the property is possessed or controlled by virtue of a lease or rental agreement,
and the property is willfully or intentionally not returned within ten (10) days after the
expiration of the agreement.

Embezzlement does not require a distinct act of taking. but only a fraudulent appropriation,
conversion or use of property.

v
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Cherokee Nation Constitution prohibits the Nation’s Council from enacting law retroactively. See
Cherokee Nation Constitution (2003) Article VI, Section 8.

F. The Amended Complaint Counts X-XV were filed after the statute of limitations had
run.

118. The Amended Complaint, which included six new counts, Counts X-XV, was filed

on March 20, 2019, well outside the five-year statute of limitations proscribed by 22 CNCA §152

B. Except as provided in subsection C of this section, embezzlement shall be punished as follows:
1. If the value of the property embezzled is less than Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00), any person
convicted shall be punished by a fine not exceeding One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00), or by
imprisonment for a term not to exceed one (1) year, or by both such fine and imprisonment;
2. If the value of the property embezzled is Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00), or more but less than
One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00), any person convicted shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and
shall be punished by imprisonment for a term not to exceed one (1) year or by imposition of a fine
not exceeding Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) or by both such fine and imprisonment, and
ordered to pay restitution to the victim as provided under the laws of this Nation;
3. If the value of the property embezzled is One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) or more but less
than Twenty-five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00), any person convicted shall be guilty of a felony
and shall be punished by imprisonment for a term not to exceed three (3) years, or by imposition
of a fine not exceeding Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00), or by both such fine and imprisonment,
and ordered to pay restitution to the victim as provided under the laws of this Nation; or
4. If the value of the property embezzled is Twenty-five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) or more,
any person convicted shall be guilty of a felony and shall be punished by imprisonment for a term
not to exceed three (3) years, or by imposition of a fine not exceeding Ten Thousand Dollars
($10,000.00), or by both such fine and imprisonment. and ordered to pay restitution to the victim
as provided under the laws of this Nation.
For purposes of this subsection, a series of offenses may be aggregated into one offense when they
are the result of the formulation of a plan or scheme or the setting up of a mechanism which, when
put into operation, results in the taking or diversion of money or property on a recurring basis.
When all acts result from a continuing course of conduct, they may be aggregated into one crime.
Acts forming an integral part of the first taking which facilitate subsequent takings. or acts taken
in preparation of several takings which facilitate subsequent takings, are relevant to determine the
party’s intent to commit a continuing crime.
C. Any Cherokee Nation officer, deputy or employee of such officer, who shall divert any money
appropriated by law from the purpose and object of the appropriation, shall. upon conviction, be
guilty of a felony punishable by imprisonment for a term not to exceed three (3) years, and a fine
equal to triple the amount of money so embezzled and ordered to pay restitution to the victim as
provided under the laws of this Nation.
https://cherokee.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=4751512&GUID=1DEC5513-5B3D-
42EF-B1E2-A2CC99A6FB2E&Options=1D%7cText%7c&Search=criminal
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(A)®7 for alleged offenses occurring in 2012 (Court X11I) and 2013 (Counts X, XI, XII, XIV, XV)’
and wholly fail to plead why the statute of limitation should be tolled by the “Delayed Discovery
Rule.” The Nation’s charging Gilliland with an offense outside the statute of limitations violates
due process as illegal, arbitrary and capricious government action.

119. 22 CNCA § 152 (A) is identical to Oklahoma Statute 22 O.S. § 152 (A) and
Oklahoma courts’ decisions are highly persuasive in interpreting the statute.

120. In Lovelace v. Keohane, 831 P.2d 624, 630 (Okla.1992), the Oklahoma Supreme
Court explained how the Delayed Discovery Rule applied to Oklahoma’s criminal statute of
limitation (22 O.S. § 152 A), “The discovery rule tolls the statute of limitations until an injured
party knows of, or in the exercise of reasonable diligence, should have known of or discovered the
injury, and resulting cause of action. The rule does not apply when "(a) plaintiff is chargeable with
knowledge of facts which he ought to have discovered in the exercise of reasonable diligence."

121.  Because the Nation failed to allege facts in its Amended Complaint regarding the
reasons for the delayed discovery of alleged offenses and the Amended Complaint Counts X-XV

must be dismissed. /n Hip Hop Beverage Corp. v. Michaux (9th Cir., 2018) D.C. No. 2:16-cv-

6722 CNCA § 152. Limitations in general

A. Prosecutions for the crimes of bribery, embezzlement of public money, bonds, securities, assets
or property of the Cherokee Nation or other subdivision thereof, or of any misappropriation of
public money, bonds, securities, assets or property of the Cherokee Nation or other subdivision
thereof, falsification of public records of the Cherokee Nation or other subdivision thereof, and
conspiracy to defraud the Cherokee Nation or other subdivision thereof in any manner or for any
purpose shall be commenced within seven (7) years after the discovery of the crime; provided,
however. prosecutions for the crimes of embezzlement or misappropriation of public money,
bonds, securities, assets or property of any school district. including those relating to student
activity funds, or the crime of falsification of public records of any independent school district, the
crime of lewd or indecent proposals or acts against children, pursuant to 21 CNCA § 1123, the
crimes of involving minors in pornography. pursuant to 21 CNCA § 1021.2 and 21 CNCA §
1021.3. the crime of sodomy. the crime of criminal conspiracy, or the crime of embezzlement,
pursuant to 21 CNCA §§ 1451 through 1462. shall be commenced within five (5) years after the
discovery of the crime

34



Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 35 of 426

03275-MWF-AGR, (Not for Publication), the Ninth Circuit held, “HHBC did not plead facts about
its discovery of Michaux's alleged embezzlement with the specificity necessary to invoke the
delayed discovery rule. Therefore, its claim is time-barred....” Because HHBC failed to allege
specific facts regarding how it "became aware" of the records that revealed Michaux's wrongdoing,
the delayed discovery rule is unavailable here. Fox, " 110 P.3d at 920-21 (Fox v. Ethicon Endo-
Surgery, Inc., 110 P.3d 914, 920-21 (Cal. 2005))]. The lack of specificity makes it impossible to
ascertain whether HHBC could have made its discovery earlier. See id. Therefore, HHBC has
failed to carry its burden of establishing diligence.” See August v. Los Angeles Community College
Dist. Bd. of Trustees, 848 F.2d 1242 (9th Cir. 1988); see also Saliter v. Pierce Brothers Mortuaries,
81 Cal. App.3d 292, 297 (Cal. App. 1978) (However, in order to invoke this "special defense" to
the limitations period, the plaintiff "must specifically plead facts which show (1) the time and
manner of discovery, and (2) the inability to have made earlier discovery despite reasonable
diligence."; Trustmark Ins. Co. v. ESLU, Inc., 299 F.3d 1265, 1271 (11th Cir. 2002) (The delayed
discovery rule prevents a cause of action from accruing until the plaintiff either knows or
reasonably should know of the act giving rise to the cause of action."); Bedtow Grp. II, LLC v.
Ungerleider, D.C. Docket No. 9:15-cv-80255-KLR (Not for Publication) (11th Cir., 2017)
(Because Bedtow "should have . . . discovered with the exercise of due diligence " the alleged
misrepresentations before it purchased the policies, Florida's delayed discovery rule does not act
to postpone the accrual of Bedtow's causes of action.); Cmi Roadbuilding, Inc. v. lowa Parts. Inc.,
920 F.3d 560 (8th Cir. 2019) (The delayed discovery rule prevents a cause of action from accruing
until the plaintiff either knows or reasonably should know of the act giving rise to the cause of

action).
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122.  In Horn v. State, 2009 OK CR 7, 204 P.3d 777 (Okla. Crim. App., 2009), the
Oklahoma Court of Criminal Appeals held that it is burden of the state to plead why it not discover
the alleged offense before the statute of limitations quoting State v. Day, 1994 OK CR 67,9 _,
882 P.2d 1096,

The statute of limitations begins to run and the offense has been “discovered' for

purposes of Sections 152(A) and (C) when any person (including the victim) other

than the wrongdoer or someone in pari delicto with the wrongdoer has knowledge

of both (1) the act and (ii) its criminal nature ... [T]he crime has not been discovered

during any period that the crime is concealed because of fear induced by threats

made by the wrongdoer, or anyone acting in pari delicto with the wrongdoer. The

application of this statute of limitation is a legal determination to be determined by

a judge as a threshold issue. The statute of limitations is a jurisdictional issue and,

once asserted, the presumption is that the statute has run and the State has the

obligation to overcome this presumption.

123.  For example, in the Amended Complaint, filed March 20, 2019, Count XI1 alleges
Gilliland gave students scholarships in 2011. Certainly, CNF was chargeable with knowledge of
scholarships awarded in its name that were announced in 2011 to the CNF Board and Cherokee
Nation Council. The Nation waited eight years to file on some allegations - three years after the
statute of limitations expired. Due process requires the Nation to plead and prove why it did not
know or should not have had knowledge about these scholarships and other allegations prior to the
expiration of the five-year statute of limitations.

124, Without any pleading or assertions of fact indicating deception or hiding the alleged
offenses. Judge Barteaux’s July 2, 2019 Order on Motion to Strike Amended Compliant (sic)
stated. ““Because of the alleged deception on the part of the defendant the clock does not start

running on embezzlement cases until the discovery of the alleged wrongdoing. Defendants do not

get to hide behind their own alleged wrongdoing as a defense to a crime being committed.™® It

% Exh. A-21.2019-07-02 Order on Motion to Strike Amended Compliant (sic).
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appears Judge Barteaux adopted the delayed discovery rule; however, the Nation wholly failed to
allege how Gilliland hid behind her own alleged wrongdoing.

125. By statute 12 CNCA §11, the Delayed Discovery Rule exists for Cherokee Nation
in civil actions: “Statute of limitations shall begin to run from the date when the plaintiff knew,
through the exercise of reasonable diligence, . . .”%

126. Due process requires that the Delayed Discovery Rule apply to the statute of
limitations for criminal allegations (22 CNCA §152 (A)), which would mean the date of
occurrence is presumed to be the date of discovery unless Nation overcomes that presumption by
showing the alleged criminal action was fraudulently concealed by the defendant. In other words,
the statute of limitations begins to run on date of occurrence unless the Nation pleads and can show
Gilliland concealed the occurrence. Otherwise, the statute of limitations can be indefinite or
manipulated by the Nation and then it becomes arbitrary and capricious.

127.  As a non-profit board, CNF Board members executed its fiduciary duty to read the
financial and program reports put before it by Gilliland and outside accountants and asked
questions. The CNF board was responsible for the fiscal affairs of the foundation and for using
due diligence to execute its responsibilities.

128.  There are no factual allegations that Gilliland concealed any financial records from
the Board; fiscal lraﬁsactions reports were prepared by an outside accountant and submitted to the

Board monthly. There are no allegations that Gilliland hid financial or program information from

CNF at its monthly finance committee meetings held the third Friday of every month. which

® Comprehensive Access to Justice Act 0f2016 (7/13/2016) LA-16-16,12 CNCA §11, Limitations
of Actions
D. Statute of limitations shall begin to run from the date when the plaintiff knew, through the
exercise of reasonable diligence. of all the elements of the particular cause of action.
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Gilliland started in 2011.

129.  The annual CNF 2013 Audit report did not say anything or report any activities
different than what were regularly presented to the Board. The CNF board supervising Gilliland
and two CPAs did not find any wrongdoing; the Amended Complaint does not give any facts that
the actions Gilliland took, with oversight of the Board, constituted criminal concealment.”

130.  The Delayed Discovery Rule required by due process would charge the Board “with
knowledge of both (1) the act and (2) its criminal nature” every time it did or should have reviewed
financial statements, signed checks, reviewed invoices, reviewed credit card statements, inspected
outside accountants’ posted QuickBooks entries, issued 1099s and W-2s, signed and certified tax
returns, conducted monthly finance committee meetings, heard operational and program reports,
and certified reports to funding agencies and donors.

131. When Gilliland resigned in January 2013, the CNF board requested she stay until
June 2013. When she left, CNF Board Members signed her severance check, issued her W-2 for
the year, and completed the non-profit corporation tax returns which, with the exercise of minimal
diligence, would have alerted them to any offense, if any had existed. CNF was required to reported
expenses on its IRS 990 tax returns.

132.  The proper date of discovery is during or before 2013 when the Board was given

program and scholarship reports, credit card statements, and spreadsheets prepared by outside

7 Exh. A-15, 2019-04-30 Nation's Response in Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Strike
Amended Complaint on Grounds that the State of Limitations Expired for Additional Counts
Charged, at Exhibit A thereto, “ 2013 CNF Audit Report “Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Cost.” pages |1-14.

The Nation offered into the record the 2013 CNF audit report by Robert St. Pierre. CPA (“St.
Pierre” Nothing in St. Pierre’s 2013 CNF audit report indicates any fraud. CNF’s 2012 audit report
shows no fraud. Jim Rush, CPA, who prepared the 2012 CNF Independent Auditor’s Report
released June 7, 2013, was under the same obligation to report fraud according to the federal Audit
Standards and CPA standards as was St. Pierre. He found none.
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accountants, at their monthly finance committee meetings and quarterly board meetings.

133. The Nation’s position is the statute of limitations started when it finally got around
to looking at their books and reports which is arbitrary and capricious and denies Gilliland due
process of notice.

G. The Amended Complaint violates the ICRA limitation on punishment.

134.  The Nation’s July 28, 2016 Complaint charged nine counts of embezzlement, each
seeking one year in jail and a $5,000 fine, which would result in nine years of imprisonment.”' The
Nation’s March 20, 2019 Amended Complaint added six new counts of embezzlement seeking one
year in jail and a $5,000 fine for each count which would result in an additional six years of
imprisonment. The Amended Complaint thus seeks a total of fifteen years of imprisonment. The
ICRA limits the total punishment in a criminal proceeding to be no greater than imprisonment for
a term of nine years. See 25 U.S.C. §1302(7)(D).

135.  The Amended Complaint violates the ICRA for seeking to impose punishment
greater than nine years.

H. Prosecutor Keen’s conflicts of interest denies Gilliland due process.

136.  Gilliland has a due process right be free from prosecutorial conflicts of interest. As
Special Prosecutor for the Nation, Keen may not serve two masters - CNF and the Nation. The
interests of those two masters are not the same. It is simple. Keen's first duty is to zealously

advocate and recover $1,160,000 from Gilliland for his private third-party client - CNF. The

"' The Complaint and Amended Complaint provide. “ALL OF SAID CRIMES being subject to
punishment as defined at 21 CNCA §10, to wit: a term of imprisonment for not more than one (1)
year or a fine of tive thousand ($5,000.00) or both and any civil remedies as provided by 21 CNCA
§1760(B) for each separate crime.” The Nation also failed to allege any specifics as to restitution
or civil penalties.
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Nation’s interest is or should not be financial recovery for a third party; it is the fair administration
of justice.

137.  On November 1, 2018, several years after filing the companion civil case, Keen
entered his appearance in this case as a “Special Prosecutor” and has since served as the lead
Prosecutor with the power to coerce Gilliland into a civil settlement.

138. In Bergerv. United States, 295 U.S. 78, 88 (1935), the United States Supreme Court
declared:

The United States Attorney is the representative not of an ordinary party to a

controversy, but of a sovereign whose obligation to govern impartially is as

compelling as its obligation to govern at all; and whose interest, therefore, in a

criminal prosecution is not that it shall win a case, but that justice shall be done. As

such, he is in a peculiar and very definite sense the servant of the law, the twofold

aim of which is that guilt shall not escape nor innocence suffer.

139.  According to American Bar Association Model Rules of Professional Conduct
Rule 3.8, Keen has obligations as a prosecutor different from a lawyer for civil client. The
comments to Rule 3.8 provide, [1] “A prosecutor has the responsibility of a minister of justice and
not simply that of an advocate.” 72

140. In Youngv. U.S. Ex Rel. Vuitton Et Fils S. A.," 481 U.S. 787, 805 (1987) the U.S.
Supreme Court addressed the case of where a federal court appointed the law firm representing a
party in a civil case to criminally prosecute for contempt the same opposing party in the same
underlying civil case. The Court held,

Private attorneys appointed to prosecute a criminal contempt action represent the

United States, not the party that is the beneficiary of the court order allegedly

violated. As we said in Gompers, criminal contempt proceedings arising out of civil

litigation "are between the public and the defendant. and are not a part of the
original cause.” 221 U.S,, at 445, 31 S.Ct.. at 499. The prosecutor is appointed

72 Ethical Consideration (EC) 7-13 of Canon 7 of the American Bar Association (ABA) Model
Code of Professional Responsibility (1982) provides "The responsibility of a public prosecutor
differs from that of the usual advocate; his duty is to seek justice. not merely to convict.”
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solely to pursue the public interest in vindication of the court's authority. A private

attorney appointed to prosecute a criminal contempt therefore certainly should be

as disinterested as a public prosecutor who undertakes such a prosecution.

136. In Young, the U.S. Supreme Court was so adamant that the conflict was
impermissible, it noted, “If a Justice Department attorney pursued a contempt prosecution for
violation of an injunction benefiting any client of that attorney involved in the underlying civil
litigation, that attorney would be open to a charge of committing a felony under 208(a).” 481 U.S.
806. If Keen found himself in federal court under similar circumstances as this case, he might be
facing a felony.

137.  Keen having the power to criminally prosecute Gilliland while at the same time
seeking to have her pay $1,160,000 to his private client for the same alleged conduct is a conflict-
of-interest depriving Gilliland of due process requiring for disinterested prosecutor.

138. At Gilliland’s October 18, 2019 arraignment on the Amended Complaint, Keen
advised the District Court that the Marshal attempted to serve the Bench Warrant issued on August
1 and 8, 2019 and arrest Gilliland at her home in Tulsa but found her tenants who thought she had
moved to Colorado. Gilliland’s address listed on the Bench Warrant was outside of the Cherokee
Nation in Tulsa, Oklahoma and in the Muscogee (Creek) Nation, Tulsa, Oklahoma.

139.  Keen sought the arrest of Gilliland on a Bench Warrant that its execution was in
violation of law. Keen’s request to require a $10.000 cash deposit illustrates his conflict of interest
and abuse of power. Keen used the power of the Attorney General’s Office to gain advantage by
punishing Gilliland in the criminal case by imposing a $10,000 cash deposit in a case where

Gilliland had consistently appeared whenever given notice.
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140. Keen moving the District Court to issue an invalid Bench Warrant and require
Gilliland to deposit $10,000 cash or hold her in jail is certainly unfair leverage to force an unjust
settlement in the civil case.

141.  Keen’s conflict of interested was also demonstrated on July 21, 2021 when he filed
a motion in the Cherokee Nation District Court objecting to the Court’s issuance of a subpoena for
a deposition of Sherri Combs, a forensics auditor, employee of the Cherokee Nation Attorney
General Office, and CNF’s key witness. Although Keen did not represent Combs, he filed to a
motion to strike the subpoena issued by the Cherokee Nation Court to prevent her from testifying.
Keen cannot represent Nation and its key witness especially in attempt to prevent her from being
deposed.”

142.  Also at the same time, in an attempt to deny Gilliland counsel of her choice, Keen
moved the Cherokee Nation District Court to strike Gilliland’s Attorney, Chad Smith, from
representing her alleging he was “willfully engaging in the unauthorized practice of law” because
the Court’s records showed Smith did not pay his last year Cherokee Nation Bar Association dues.
The Cherokee Nation District Court denied Keen’s motion upon finding the Court Clerk made an
error in recording payment of Attorney Smith’s Cherokee Nation bar dues in the amount of $50.00.

143.  Keen's conflict of interest is most recently seen on August 27, 2021 when Keen
filed a “Motion in Opposition to Trial in Absentia and to Strike Trial Setting Until Defendant is in
Physical Custody.”™ Keen sought an order from Judge Barteaux to strike Gilliland's case from the
jury docket until she was apprehended and to deny her right to waive her appearance at a

misdemeanor jury trial. There was no legal event precipitating this motion except for Keen's

73 Exh. A-42.2021-07-21 Nation's Motion to Set Aside and Quash Subpoena Duces Tecum and
to Strike Attorney Chadwick Smith as Counsel of Record of the Defendant.
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desire to go to Las Vegas to play billiards which occurred on Gilliland’s jury trial date. Keen
subsequently filed a Motion for Continuance of the jury trial which was granted.

144.  Gilliland was denied due process because Keen has demonstrated that he cannot be
“minister of justice and not simply that of an advocate” due to his conflicts of interest. As of May
19, 2022, Keen has failed to tender to Gilliland a Pre-trial Order required by Cherokee Nation
District Court Rule 120 which includes listing synopsis of witness, legal issues to be litigated,
contested and uncontested facts and exhibits to be offered at trial.

145.  Any one or a combination of these due process violations warrant dismissal of the
criminal case against Gilliland.

IX. FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
EXTRATERRITORIAL AND EXCESSIVE DETENTION ORDERS.

146.  For her first Cause of Action, Gilliland realleges and incorporates by reference all
prior paragraphs of this Petition.

147.  Judge Barteaux has unconstitutionally and illegally restrained Gilliland’s liberty
because his detention orders require her to appear at times and places thus restricting her ability to
come and go as she pleases and subjecting her to restraints not imposed on the general public.

148.  Judge Barteaux *s detention orders violate the Nation’s law and due process require
by the ICRA.

149.  Gilliland complied with her personal recognizance bond, so imposition ofa $10,000
cash bond and Arrest Warrant was excessive and punitive.

150. Judge Barteaux had no authority to issue a bench or arrest warrant for service

outside the Nation.
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X. SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
CRIMINAL PROSECUTION DENIES DUE PROCESS.

151.  For her Second Cause of Action, Gilliland realleges and incorporates by reference
all prior paragraphs of this Petition. Judge Barteaux’s orders for detention are unconstitutional
because they are predicated on the underlying criminal prosecution which fundamentally denies
Gilliland due process.

152.  Judge Barteaux had no authority to restrain Gilliland’s liberty because the Amended
Complaint violates federal and tribal due process requirements to: 1) state an offense, 2) allege
facts showing criminal intent, 3) clearly state the criminal allegations without vagueness, 4) file
charges within the statute of limitation, 5) not exceed the punishment provided by the ICRA, and
6) to provide a prosecutor without a conflict of interest.

XI. CONCLUSION

153.  The Amended Complaint filed in the Nation’s criminal case against Gilliland is
nothing more than a list of CNF expenditures by its Executive Director. By seeking fifteen (15)
years in prison and a $15,000 fine, the Nation is criminally prosecuting Gilliland on charges that
deny her due process requirements to 1) state an offense, 2) allege specific facts showing criminal
intent. 3) clearly state the criminal allegations without vagueness, 4) file charges within the statute
of limitation, 5) not exceed the punishment provided by the Indian Civil Rights Act and 6) to
provide a disinterested prosecutor without conflicts of interest. Judge Barteaux’s detention orders
based on this criminal prosecution are constitutionally infirm.

154.  The gnawing question is why is the Cherokee Nation proceeding with this
prosecution? The answer may be found in the email of former CNF Chair of the Board Robin

Ballenger who after meeting with Principal Chief Bill John Baker and advisor Kalyn Free on
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December 4, 2012 learned that they wanted Gilliland removed as CNF Executive Director because
“He (Baker) sees her (Gilliland) as a political rival.””* Attorney General Hembree was appointed
to office by Baker, and Hembree and Keen were political affiliates of Baker and contributors to
his campaign.

XII. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

155. Gilliland respectfully requests that the Court declare that Judge Barteaux’s
detention orders represent a sufficiently severe actual restraint on her liberty interests as to warrant
habeas corpus review.

156. Gilliland respectfully requests that the Court order Judge Barteaux to withdraw his
detention orders including the October 22, 2019 Order issuing a bench warrant imposing a $10,000
cash bond and March 26, 2021 Arrest Warrant.

157.  Gilliland respectfully requests that the Court find that the Amended Complaint, in
Cherokee Nation v. Gilliland, CRM 2016-54 is unconstitutional and illegal and to order that it be
dismissed with prejudice.

158.  Gilliland respectfully requests this Court award attorneys’ fees and costs incurred
by Gilliland in bringing this action.

159.  Gilliland respectfully requests this Court grant such other and further relief as this
Court may deem proper and just.

WHEREFORE, this Court should issue a Writ of Habeas Corpus, order the Nation's
criminal charges against Gilliland be dismissed and that Judge Barteaux’s detention orders be
withdrawn.

DATED June 15, 2022.

™ Exh. B. Robin Ballenger email December 19. 2012 to CNF Board.
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FILED

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION
CRIMINAL DIVISION 2016 JUL

e g d!

ICTRICT oo
CHEROKEE NATION, ) KRiS ! MONCCOYEA
Plaintiff, ) Lo FTCLEAK
) am—
v, ) CRM-2016- bL%
)
)
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, )
D.O.B. 08/13/1969, )
Defendant. )

COMPLAINT AND INFORMATION

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CHEROKEE NATION,
comes now, A. Diane Hammons, specially appointed prosecutor acting by the power of the
Attorney General for the Cherokee Nation, Todd Hembree, and upon her oath gives this Court
reason to know and be informed that KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND did, within the territorial
boundaries of the Cherokee Nation including within Indian Country as defined by 18 U.S.C. §
1151, and the laws of the Cherokee Nation , commit the hereinafter described crimes. At all
times pertinent hereto, Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland was serving as Executive Director of
the Cherokee Nation Education Corporation a/k/a Cherokee Nation Foundation (“CNF”), a non-
profit corporation organized under the laws of the Cherokee Nation, whose officers are appointed
by the Principal Chief and approved by the Tribal Council, and whose principal place of business
is in Tahlequah, Oklahoma, and which, at all times pertinent hereto received partial funding from
the Cherokee Nation government and Cherokee Nation Businesses, both entities being located on

Indian Country within the boundaries of the Cherokee Nation.
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COUNTI: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

From a period from January 24, 2012, through February 14, 2012, Kimberlie A.
Gilliland, did willfully and knowingly convert, misappropriate, and embezzle funds
of CNF for her own and her family’s use, to wit: By using CNF funds to pay fora
family trip to California for herself, her husband, Andrew Sikora, and their two minor
children, S.S. and S.S; said trip taking place from February 9, 2012, through
February 13, 2012. Said conversion included the following transactions.

On approximately January 24, 2012, the Defendant purchased
American Airlines tickets for herself, her husband, Andrew
Sikora, and her two minor children, S.S. and S.S. from Tulsa,
Oklahoma, to Los Angeles, Califomnia, in the approximate
amount of $329.20 per ticket plus $56.00 in airline fees, fora

travel date of February 9, 2012, all paid out of CNEC funds

with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

From February 9, through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid
$70.54 to Fine Airport Parking out of CNEC funds with the use of
a CNEC business credit card, and;

From February 9, through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid
$157.95 to Enterprise Rent a Car at the Los Angeles International
Airport, Los Angeles out of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC
business credit card, and;

From February 9, through February 10, 2012, the Defendant paid
$414.05 to Marriott Hotels and Resorts, Anaheim, California, out
of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;
On February 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $47.93 for gasoline
purchased at OSD Enterprises Inc, in Anaheim, California, out of
CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;
On February 11,2012, the Defendant paid $25.86 to a restaurant,
Bangkok Bay, in Solana Beach, California, out of CNEC funds
with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

On February 11,2012, the Defendant paid $46.94 to Oggis Pizza &
Brewing Co. in Garden Gove, California, for four (4) guests, out of
CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;
On February 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $21.30 to Starbucks, in
Carlsbad, California, out of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC
business credit card, and;

From February 12 through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid
$314.53 to the Renaissance Montura, Los Angeles, CA, out of
CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

2
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e On February 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $1,408.40 to
Continental Airlines for tickets and ticket fees for travel to begin
on 2/13/12 for herself, her husband Andrew Sikora, and their
minor children, S.S. and S.S., out of CNEC funds with the use of a
CNEC business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used CNF funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT II: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

During a period from May 17, 2012, through May 19, 2012, Kimberlie A. Gilliland, did
willfully and knowingly convert and embezzle funds of CNEC for her own use, to wit: By
paying for “American Girl” hotel rooms (containing American Girl doll beds, pink
balloons, and cookies) for the benefit of her daughter, and an employee’s daughter, in the
total amount of $291.54 to the Residence Inn Marriott, Addison, Texas, out of CNEC
funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used CNF funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT I1I: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

During a period from July 16, 2012, through August 13, 2012, Kimberlie A.
Gilliland, did willfully and knowingly convert and embezzle funds of CNF for her
own and her family’s use, to wit: By using CNF funds to pay for a trip to California
for herself and her husband, Andrew Sikora; said trip taking place from August 9,
2012, through August 13, 2012. Said conversion included the following transactions:

e Onapproximately July 16,2012, the Defendant purchased Southwest
Airlines tickets for herself and her husband, Andrew Sikora, to
Burbank, California, in the approximate amount of $257.60 per ticket

for a travel date of August 9, 2012, all paid out of CNF funds with
the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

e From August 9, 2012 —August 13, 2012 the Defendant paid $194.45 to
Fine Airport Parking in Tulsa, Oklahoma (including a $125 car wash
charge) all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit
card, and;

e On approximately August 9, 2012, the Defendant paid $51.84 to the
Jose Roux Taco Bar at the Sky Harbor International Airport, Phoenix,
Arizona, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business
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credit card, and;

o From August 9, 2012-August 10, 2012 the Defendant paid $398.82 to the
Queen Mary Ship, in Long Beach, California, for two nights lodging in
one of their rooms known for “paranormalistic activity,” all paid out of
CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

o From August9,2012-August 13, 2012 the Defendant paid $347.33 to
Hertz Rental Car in Oakland, California, all paid out of CNF funds
with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

= On approximately August 10, 2012, the Defendant purchased on the
Queen Mary Ship in Long Beach, California, a toothbrush and deodorant
for $6.74, two bottles of water for $4.78, and $38.80 paid to the Queen
Mary Promenade Café for two guest breakfasts, all paid out of CNF funds
with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

o On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant purchased on the
Queen Mary Ship in Long Beach, California, a “Bellhop Bear” for
$21.99, a “Stack Logo Keyring” for $5.99, and a video entitled “Ghost
Encounters” for $29.99, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF
business credit card, and;

e On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $24.82 on the
Queen Mary Ship in Long Beach, California, for food and beverage for
two persons all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business
credit card, and;

o On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $56.59 to Shell
Oil in Long Beach, California, paid out of CNF funds with the use of a
CNF business credit card, and;

e On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $12.11 to Denny’s
in Kettleman City, California, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a
CNF business credit card, and;

» On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $92.40 to the Best
Western Inn and Suites, Kettleman, California, paid out of CNF funds
with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

¢ On approximately August 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $49.40 to
Exxonmobil, in Kettleman, California and $10.45 to “Yellow Card
Services,” paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit
card, and;

e On approximately August 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $133.02 to the
Courtyard by Marriott, in Oakland, California, paid out of CNF funds with
the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

» On approximately August 13, 2012, the Defendant paid $5.35 to La Casita,
in the Denver, Colorado, airport, paid out of CNF funds with the use of a
CNF business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
4
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office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT IV: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On or about July 16, 2012, the defendant did willfully and knowingly convert and
embezzle funds of CNF for her own and her family’s use, to wit: purchasing a Southwest
Airlines ticket for her husband, Andrew Sikora, in the amount of $367.60 for an August
18, 2012 trip from Portland, Oregon to Tulsa, Oklahoma, paid out of CNF funds with the
use of a CNF business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT V: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On or about August 17, 2012, the defendant did willfully and knowingly convert and
embezzle funds of CNF for her own use, to wit: purchasing a “Buckle Bag” for $74.99
and two towels for $46.00 ($23.00 each) from the Pendleton Woolen Mills Employee
Sales Room in Portland, Oregon, paid out of CNF funds with the use of her CNF business
credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT VI: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On or about November 15, 2012, the defendant did willfully and knowingly convert and
embezzle funds of CNF for her own use, to wit: paying for a parking ticket from the City
of Tulsa that was issued to her 2007 Toyota Camry, tag number ****CS5, paid out of CNF
funds with a CNF check, signed by defendant, for the amount of $40.00 ($30.00 fine and
$10.00 late fee);

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT VII: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

From a period of time from January, 2011, through April, 2013, the defendant did
willfully and knowingly convert and embezzle funds of CNF for her own use, to wit:

5
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paying for courses in an online master’s degree program for herself from North Park
University, in Chicago, Illinois, in the total amount of $21,100.36 paid out of CNF funds
with CNF checks signed by the defendant, and with the use of a CNF business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT VIII: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

In June of 2013, defendant unilaterally removed a large Hewlett-Packard Designjet
Z3200PS 44" Photo Printer and software disks from the Foundation corporate offices to
an unknown location. Said equipment was fully functional and valued in excess of
$5,000.00.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said property for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT IX: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On or about June 10, and July 1, 2013, defendant used Foundation funds to purchase and take
possession of over $10,000.00 of computer equipment from the Apple Store in Tulsa,
Oklahoma.

A substantial portion of said computer equipment purchased with Foundation funds never
appeared for use in Foundation's corporate offices, and the whereabouts of the equipment is
unknown. The missing items include an AppleTV item, Serial No. FO2KGAD4FF54,
purchased for $99.00; an Apple laptop computer, Serial No. CO2ZKP36SFFTO, purchased for
$2199.00; a MacBook Pro service agreement, No. 970000020608672, purchased for
$349.00; two Lightning AV digital adaptors, purchased for $49.00 each; an Apple
Thunderbolt to Firewire adaptor, purchased for $29.00; a Thunderbolt Gigabit Ethernet
adaptor purchased for $29.00; a light gray iPad Smart Case, purchased for $49.00; and a red
iPad Smart Case, also purchased for $49.00.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said property for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

ALL OF SAID CRIMES being subject to punishment as defined at 21 CNCA § 10, to wit: a

term of imprisonment for not more than one (1) year or a fine of five thousand ($5,000.00) or both
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and any civil remedies as provided by 21 CNCA § 1760(B) for each separate crime.
FURTHER, that the Defendant is an “Indian” as defined in 25 U.S.C. § 450b(d), being a

Citizen of the Cherokee Nation, and that the defendant did, within and without the Cherokee

Nation including within Indian Country, commit the above crimes, contrary to the Cherokee

Nation statutes cited above, and against the peace and dignity of the Cherokee Nation.

///MM

Diane Hammons, CNBA 0035
Speclal Prosecutor
Cherokee Nation Office of the Attorney General
P. O. Box 141
Tahlequah, OK 74465
adianehammons@gmail.com

CHEROKEE NATION ) sS.

The undersigned, of lawful age, and being first duly sworn states that she has read the
above and foregoing Complaint, and that the statements contained therein are true and correct to

the best of her information and belief.
é‘/ M@/r—»————/—w

Special Prosecutor

Subscribed and sworn to before me this%ﬁ;\of __)(A,Qié)\ , 2016.

My Commission Expires: 8/&0 ) | 8§ f # 14007424 x‘;

i EXP. o i
%,‘ Blzona}

AN
mm s

Witnesses: Heather Sourjohn, former Cm’}\ ey N ?{;P@ uah, OK

Jennifer Sandoval, CNF, 800 St Rve. Tahlequah OK
Marisa Hambleton, CNF, 800 S. Muskogee Ave., Tahlequah, OK
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Robert St. Pierre, CPA, North 2™ St., Stilwell, OK

J.D. Carey, CPA, Tahlequah, OK

Sherri Combs, forensic auditor, Tahlequah, OK

Shelley Butler-Allen, former CNF Board member, Tahlequah, OK
Robin Ballenger, former CNF Board member, Tulsa, OK

Susan Chapman-Plumb, CNF Board member, Tahlequah, OK

Tonya Rozell, CNF Board member, Tahlequah, OK

Casey Ross-Petherick, former CNF Board member, Oklahoma City, OK
Jay Calhoun, former CNF Board member, Cherokee Nation Businesses, Tulsa, OK
John Gritts, former CNF Board member, Colorado

Jackson Crain, Apple Store, Woodland Hills Mall, Tulsa, OK
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FILED

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION
CRIMINAL DIVISION 2016 AUG 12 AMI0: 58
AL ‘.: .-bﬂ
Tevolor LnURT
CHEROKEE NATION, ) Ras L LIOYEA
) T
Plaintiff, )
)
Vs. ) CM 2016-54
)
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, )
)
Defendant. )

ORDER OF ARRAIGNMENT, SURRENDER AND 3
RELEASE OF CUSTODY ON PERSONAL RECOGNIZANCE |

On this 2_ of August, 2016, the Court acknowledges the surrender of the Defendant,
Kimberlie A. Gilliland and the Cherokee Nation does not object to releasing her on her personal
recognizance. The Court arraigns Defendant upon her waiving the reading of the charges the
Cherokee Nation brings against her in the above-styled and numbered case and being advised of
her constitutional and statutory rights. Defendant reserves further time to file motions and enters
a plea of not guilty subject to motions she may file.

Defendant demands a jury trial.

THEREFORE IT IS ORDERED BY THE COURT, Defendant is released on her own
recognizance, no bond is required and this case is set for jury trial

Chadwick Smith

Attozey for Defenév‘n

Diane Hammons
Attorney for Cherokee Nation
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION & ias o 0

CHEROKEE NATION EDUCATION M6SEF -6 PH 3: 10
CORPORATION, d/b/a CHEROKEE
NATION FOUNDATION,

Plaintiff, Case No. CV-2016-397

VS.

KIMBERLIE GILLILAND,
Defendant.

PLAINTIFF'S RESPONSE AND COMBINED BRIEF
IN OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO STAY

COMES NOW the plaintiff, Cherokee Nation Education Corporation, d/b/a Cherokee
Nation Foundation (Foundation) by and through its legal counsel, Ralph F Keen II, who responds
in opposition to the Defendant's Motion to Stay as follows:

1. DEFENDANT SEEKS AN EXTRAORDINARY REMEDY

First and foremost, the relief defendant seeks - a complete stay of these civil proceedings
pending the outcome of criminal proceedings - is an extraordinary remedy. "[T]he granting of a
stay of civil proceedings due to pending criminal investigation is an extraordinary remedy, not to
be granted lightly.”' As a matter of constitutional law, a defendant has absolutely no right or
entitlement to such extraordinary relief.

There is no general federal constitutional, statutory, or common
law rule barring the simultaneous prosecution of separate civil and
criminal actions by different federal agencies against the same
defendant involving the same transactions. Parallel civil and
criminal proceedings instituted by different federal agencies are
not uncommon occurrences because of the overlapping nature of
federal civil and penal laws. The simultaneous prosecution of civil
and criminal actions is generally unobjectionable because the
federal government is entitled to vindicate the different interests
promoted by different regulatory provisions even though it
attempts to vindicate several interests simultaneously in different
forums.2

! United States v. Simcho, No. 08-10733 (5th. Cir. 2009); Trustee of Plumbers Pen. Fund. v. Transworld Mech., 886
F. Supp. 1134, 1139 (S.D.N.Y. 1995); In re Par Pharmaceutical, 133 F.R.D. 12, 13 (S.D.N.Y. 1990).
2 Simcho, at 2.
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The 10™ Circuit has so recognized and affirmed that the federal constitution does not generally
require a stay of civil proceedings pending the outcome of criminal proceedings, absent a clear
showing of "substantial prejudice” to a party's rights.?
II. DEFENDANT'S BURDEN

Because the defendant seeks extraordinary relief, the defendant carries a heavy burden of
proof.* In affirming the trial court's denial of a stay the Tenth Circuit has found: "When applying
for a stay, a party must show ‘a clear case of hardship or inequity’ if “even a fair possibility’
exists that the stay would damage another party.” Similarly, the Northern District of Oklahoma
has held that the district court is not generally required to stay a civil proceeding pending the
outcome of a parallel criminal proceeding absent “substantial prejudice ” to a party’s rights.
The defendant's arguments fall woefully short of showing a clear case of hardship or inequity, or
any substantial prejudice her rights would suffer to justify a complete stay of these proceedings.

While not adopted in the Tenth Circuit, defendant relies heavily on a six-part analysis
utilized in other federal jurisdictions. Courts of the Cherokee Nation are in no manner bound by
defendant's cited precedent.” Nonetheless, to the extend the Court finds the test helpful, and for
the sake of comparative analysis, the Foundation would respond as follows:

1. The Extent To Which The Issues In The Civil And Criminal Cases Overlap

The gravamen of defendant's argument is that the extent of overlap between the criminal
and civil counts is the "most important factor” for the court to consider and protect her right
against self-incrimination.®  Defendant asks the Court place her individual rights above

Foundation's: "in order to avoid placing Gilliland in the position of having to choose between

* Creative Consumer Concepts, Inc. v. Kreisler, 563 F.3d 1070, 1080 (10th Cir. 2009) citing Keating v. Office of
Thrift Supervision, 45 F.3d 322, 324 (9th Cir. 1995); SEC v. Dresser Indus., Inc., 628 F.2d 1368, 1375
(D.C.Cir.1980).

* Microfinancial, Inc. v. Premier Holidays Intern., 385 F.3d 72, 77 (st Cir. 2004) (finding the decision whether or
not to stay civil litigation in deference to parallel criminal proceedings is purely discretionary, and the movant
carries a heavy burden to prevail in such an endeavor).

5 Creative Consumer Concepts at 1080; Ben Ezra, Weinstein, & Co. v. Am. Online Inc., 206 F.3d 980, 987 (10th
Cir. 2000); Span-Eng Assocs. v. Weidner, 771 F.2d 464, 468 (10th Cir. 1985); accord Austin v, Unarco Indus.. Inc.
705 F.2d 1,5 (1st Cir.1983).

¢ SEC v. Gordon, 2009 WL 2252119 (N.D. Okla. Jul. 28, 2009) citing SEC v. Dresser Indus., Inc., 628 F.2d 1368,
1375 (D.C.Cir.1980).

7 The Comprehensive Access to Justice Act of 2016, L.A. 16-16, § 3 provides: "No state, or federal law, including
any state or federal regulations, shall be binding upon the courts unless specifically incorporated into statute by the
Tribal Council or adopted as common law by a decision of the court.”

¥ See Brief in Support of Defendant's Motion to Stay, p. 4.
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risking a loss in the civil action by invoking her constitutional right against self-incrimination or
risking conviction in the criminal case by waiving that right and testifying in the civil
proceedings.” To the contrary, in deciding whether to testify or invoke their fifth amendment

right against self incrimination, the overwhelming authority is that a defendant must make a

choice. "A defendant has no absolute right not to be forced to choose between testifying in a
civil matter and asserting his fifth amendment privilege. "% This premise was first established by
the United States Supreme Court in U.S. v. Kordel, finding that criminal convictions based on
evidence obtained by the government in a civil proceeding are not constitutionally infim.!! A
plethora of subsequent decisions have made even clearer that it does not violate due process to
force a litigant to choose between invoking the fifth amendment in a civil case, thus risking a
loss there, or answering the questions in the civil context, thus risking subsequent criminal
prosecution. '

Admittedly, eight counts in the civil petition involve the same transaction or occurrence
as in the criminal information. Yet conversely, in considering the overall extent of overlap, the
civil complaint contains a total of twenty-two counts, leaving fourteen counts that involve
transactions or occurrences separate and distinct from the eight criminal counts. These fourteen
counts can be summarized as follows:

Civil Count 1 involves embezzlement and breach of defendant's employment contract
vis-a-vis unauthorized pay increases in the amount of $64,676.35. Count 3 involves
embezzlement for monies paid to her and her husband's privately owned business, Cherokee
Media, in the amount of $6,488.00. Civil Counts 4 through 7 involve the improper payment of
scholarship funds in the amount of $22,657.54 to students who did not meet the scholarship
criteria.’® Count 8 relates to embezzlement of funds for a Colorado family trip for four in the
amount of $1,300.00. Civil Count 13 relates to embezzlement for hotel, meals and travel

expense for herself and former Tribal Council member Cara Cowan Watts in the amount of

®1d

19 Creative Consumer Concepts, Inc. v. Kreisler, 563 F.3d 1070, 1080 (10th Cir. 2009).

" United States v. Kordel, 397 U.S. 1 (1970).

12 See, e.g., Baxter v. Palmigiano, 425 U.S. 308, 318-19, 96 S.Ct. 1551, 47 L.Ed.2d 810 (1976); United States v.
White, 589 F.2d 1283, 1286-87 (5th Cir.1979);_Arthurs v. Stern, 560 F.2d 477, 478-79 (1st Cir.1977), cert. denied,
434 U.S. 1034, 98 S.Ct. 768, 54 L.Ed.2d 782 (1978); United States v. Rubinson, 543 F.2d 951, 961 (2d Cir.), cert.
denied, 429 U.S. 850, 97 S.Ct. 139, 50 L .Ed.2d 124 (1976).

1> At least one of these improper scholarships appears to have involved an act of political patronage in favor of
former Principal Chief Chadwick Smith.
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$1,200.00. Civil Count 14 relates to embezzlement for purchasing unauthorized airline tickets to
Phoenix, Arizona for herself and Cara Cowan Watts in the amount of $1,000.00. Civil Count 15
relates to conversion of Foundation assets and resources for Cara Cowen Watts Community
Workshops in the amount of $1,600.00. Civil Count 17 relates to conversion of Foundation
assets by payment of unauthorized severance package to Lisa Reed Smith in the amount of
$9,597.60. Civil Count 19 relates to the embezzlement for the payment of personal/family
insurance coverage in the amount of $3,288.20. Civil Count 20 involves miscellaneous
infractions exhibiting a pattern of practice by the defendant of using Foundation monies for the
purchase of elaborate meals, alcoholic beverages for herself and others, and other infractions in
the amount of $3,000.00. Civil Count 21 relates to rescission, cancellation and breach of
contract of the defendant's written severance agreement with the Foundation, and seeking
monetary recovery in the amount of $74,500.00. Finally, Civil Count 22 relates to punitive
damages in the amount of $928,000.00 both as punishment and as a future deterrent to others.

From a recovery prospective, the overlapping counts account for $38,615.00; equating to
3.3 % of the total civil recovery sought - $1,160,000.00. The defendant should not be permitted
to stymie the Foundation's ability to recover on the whole lion’s share of its claims, particularly
when less intrusive alternatives to a general stay exist.

2. The Status Of The Case, Including Whether Defendant Has Been Indicted

Criminal charges are pending in Cherokee District Court. But again, a district court is
not generally required to stay a civil proceeding pending the outcome of a parallel criminal
proceeding absent “substantial prejudice” to a party's rights.'* The defendant has made no
showing of a substantial prejudice.

3. The Interests Of The Plaintiff In Proceeding Expeditiously Versus The Prejudice
To The Plaintiff Resulting From The Delay

Defendant admits that Foundation has a legitimate interest in the expeditious resolution
of this action.!® Foundation asserts that it would be greatly prejudiced if this matter were to be
indefinitely stayed. Criminal proceedings at the district court level will undoubtedly require at

least a year to go to trial.'® In addition, should convictions occur, the defendant has the right to

' Supra note 3.

' Defendant's Brief, p 6.

'8 The Cherokee District Court only has two regular criminal dockets, one in the Spring and one in the Fall.
Presumptively, the criminal case will not be ready to go to trial by the Spring docket.
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appeal, which could take months to years to reach final resolution. Many of the earliest acts of
embezzlement date back to unauthorized pay increases in 2009 and proceed forward in time. As
the Court can appreciate, witnesses depart, witnesses relocate and memories fade over time. The
defendant successfully concealed her wrongful acts while employed only to be discovered after
her departure through an independent audit. Justice delayed is justice denied, particularly here
where the defendant would reap even more benefit from her skillful deceit and concealment of
her bad acts by seeing her civil accountability protracted indefinitely.

In addition, a stay would severely prejudice Foundation’s ability to successfully collect a
judgment. The defendant presently owns two homes, one of which would presently not be
exempt from civil execution. If this matter is stayed for a period of months to years, she will no
doubt liquefy or encumber those assets and apply those resources to a vigorous criminal defense.
The limiting of Foundation's ability to successfully collect a monetary judgment would cause it
substantial prejudice, which more than justifies the Court denying defendant's request for a stay
of these proceedings.

4. The Interests Of, And Burden On, The Defendant

Foundation asserts that the defendant will suffer no undue burden by simultaneously

defending the criminal charges and the civil claims. Defendant is obviously not without
resources. As stated, defendant presently owns two homes and also has a successful business in
addition to her ongoing career with Bacone College. The defendant clearly has resources enough
to engage a prominent Tulsa law firm in these civil proceedings, as well as experienced local
counsel in the criminal proceedings. The defendant attempts to curry sympathy and compassion
from the Court in her motion.!” Yet, her public statements offer an unfiltered insight to her true
feelings toward this Honorable Court and the Cherokee judiciary:

I can only assume that because these actions were filed in tribal
court that the FBI and federal investigators have rejected these
claims for what they are, which is a frivolous attack on a private
citizen who has done nothing wrong.'®

17 See Defendant's Brief, p 7: "[T]he simultaneous defense of both the this action and the Criminal Case will place a
severe financial burden upon Gilliland, a lone individual.”

'8 Harrison Grimwood, Woman accused of embezzlement says charges are political retaliation, 2016 Jul 30,

Muskogee Phoenix, http://www.muskogeephoenix.com/news/woman-accused-of-embezzlement-says-charges-are-
political-retaliation/article_0f92a23¢c-7914-5fc0-9582-b58147b40c27.html.

Page 5of 8



Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 64 of 426

In a single public statement defendant successfully managed to insult the entire Cherokee
judiciary by suggesting that because these actions were brought in the Cherokee Courts rather
than a federal forum, they must be frivolous. The defendant attempts to convince this Court that
she has limited resources, yet she went on in the same public statement to promise to file a
"vigorous countersuit" against the Cherokee Nation for slandering her.

5. The Interests Of The Court

The defendant admits that this Court has a "strong interest in keeping litigation moving to

" The interest of the Court would be best served by

conclusion without unnecessary delay.
denying a stay and seeing justice proceed by holding a person entrusted with assets intended to
fund Cherokee students accountable for violating that trust and embezzling and converting those
assets to her own use and to the use of other insiders.

6. The Public’s Interest.

Foundation asserts that the public's interest will be deeply and adversely impacted should
this civil matter be indefinitely stayed. A criminal conviction requires proof beyond a reasonable
doubt. Civil liability is established by the lesser preponderance of the evidence standard.
Criminal law can provide incarceration and restitution of money, but only civil law can provide
the additional financial deterrent of punitive damages. The public’s interest would be best
served by sending a message that embezzlement of Cherokee resources away from those in need
cannot and will not be tolerated in the Cherokee Nation.

III. LESS INTRUSIVE ALTERNATIVES

Defendant boldly seeks a compete stay of these proceedings, apparently without
considering that lesser intrusive alternatives clearly exist. For example, when the criminal
prosecution parallels a civil action, the Fifth Circuit, using a balancing approach, has determined
the appropriate remedy is a limited stay of any discovery that might expose the party to a risk of
self-incrimination.”’  Some courts have stayed only oral depositions of the defendant,?’ while

others have allowed depositions to proceed, but restricted them from public view and ordered the

' Defendant's Brief, p 7.

20 Wehling v. Columbia Broadcasting System, 608 F.2d 1084 (5th Cir.1979), reh'g denied, 611 F.2d 1026, 1027 (5th
Cir.1980).

%! Dienstag v. Bronsen, 49 F.R.D. 327 (1970).
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transcripts sealed until the criminal prosecutions were complete.”> When these measures prove
inadequate, there is still the option of staying all discovery of the defendant by way of a

protective order, as the Supreme Court suggested in Kordel,?® or staying discovery of only the

overlapping counts which pose the highest risk of self-incrimination.
CONCLUSION

The stay the defendant seeks is an extraordinary remedy. One that she has no right or
entitlement to under the Cherokee constitution. The defendant has not met her burden of
showing a clear case of hardship or inequity, or demonstrating that she will suffer substantial
prejudice if a stay is not granted. In deciding whether to testify or invoke their fifth amendrﬁent
right against self incrimination, the overwhelming authority is that a defendant must make a
choice. The Foundation has a legitimate interest in the expeditious resolution of this action and
the Court has a strong interest in keeping litigations moving to conclusion without unnecessary
delay. The degree of overlap between the civil action as a whole and the criminal proceedings is
minimal. Defendant's claims of undue burden and financial hardship are illusory, and the
public’s interest would be best served by sending a message that embezzlement of Cherokee
resources away from those in need cannot and will not be tolerated.

WHEREFORE, premises and precedents considered, Foundation prays the Court deny
defendant's motion in its entirety, award it it's fees and costs for defending the same, and for such

other relief it deems just and equitable.

Keen Law Ofﬁce, P.C.
205 W. Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
Telephone (918) 696-3355
Facsimile (918) 696-3576
keenlaw@windstream.net
Attorney for Foundation

2 DIppolito v. American Qil Co., 272 F.Supp. 310, 312 (S.D.N.Y. 1967).

2 United States v. Kordel, 397 U.S. 1, 8-9 (1970)(finding where there is a real and appreciable risk of self-
incrimination, an appropriate remedy would be a protective order postponing civil discovery until termination of the
criminal action).
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
The undersigned hereby certifies that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Plaintiff’s
Response and Combined Brief in Opposition to Defendant's Motion to Stay was emailed and/or
mailed, postage pre-paid, this 6™ day of September, 2016, to the following:

James J. Proszek

HALL, ESTILL, HARDWICK, GABLE,
GOLDEN & NELSON, P.C.

320 South Boston Avenue, Suite 200
Tulsa, OK 74103

Attorney for Defendant

Ralph Ke
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION

CRIMINAL DIVISION
CHEROKEE NATION, )
)
Plaintiff, )
)
Vs. ) CM 2016-54
)
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, )
) Judge Fite
Defendant. )

DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO COMPEL DISCOVERY
AND STAY PRODUCTION OF DISCOVERY REQUESTED BY THE CHEROKEE
NATION
COMES NOW the Defendant in the above-styled case, by and through her attorney of
record, and moves this Court to compel the Cherokee Nation (“Nation”) to produce a
“investigative report provided to the office of the Cherokee Nation Attorney General in
preparation for this action.” The Cherokee Nation denied production of the subject investigative
report. The Nation in is response to Production of Documents stated:
19. EXPERT RECORDS: Any and all examination reports prepared by any
Cherokee Nation agency including all forensic accounting and/or audits.
Those audits will be provided in the hard copies of discovery being prepared for
defense counsel. The only “audit” or report that will not be provided is that
investigative report provided to the office of the Cherokee Nation Attorney
General in preparation for this action. /
The Defendant is entitled to the “investigative report provided to the office of the Cherokee
Nation Attorney General in preparation for this action.”
Further, Defendant moves the Court to issue a stay of the Nation’s Motion for Discovery

and Production of Records until it completes its response to the Defendant’s Motion for

Discovery and Production of Records.
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Submitted this 8 ™ day of September, 2016.

Chadwick Smith
CNBA # 08

22902 S494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464
chad@chadsmith.com
918 453 1707

Certificate of Delivery

I, Chadwick Smith, do hereby certify that on the 8th day of September, 2016, pursuant to
CNDC Rule 7, I emailed a true and complete copy of the foregoing document to the persons
listed below:

Diane Hammons

Cherokee Nation

Office of Attorney General
P.O. Box 141

Tahlequah OK 74465
adianechammons@gmail.com

Chadwick Smith
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Ll

BIBROY -1 PH 2: 20
IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION

CRIMINAL DIVISION CHERURTT RATION

| X

CHEROKEE NATION, N OUR TR EA

. Plaintiff,
vs. _ Case No. CRM-2016-54
KIMBERLIE GILLILAND,
Defendant.

ENTRY OF APPEARANCE

COMES NOW Ralph F Keen II, attorney at law, who enters his appeai‘a.nce as additional
Special Prosecutor for Cherokee Nation in the above-styled case pursuant to the attached Order
of Appointment.

Speclal Prosecutor
205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960

(918) 696 - 3355

(918) 696 - 3576 Fax
KeenLawOK @gmail.com

For Cherokee Nation,

Office of the Attorney General
PO Box 948

Tahlequah, OK 74465

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereg’{/cemfy that a true and correct copy of the foregomg Entry of Appearance was
mailed the |3~ day of November, 2018, by depositing it in the U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, or
otherwise personally delivered to:

Chadwick Smith, Esq.
22502 S 494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464

chad@chadsmith.com

Megau Iifcas
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APPOINTMENT OF SPECIAL PROSECUTOR

I, Todd Hembree, the duly swormn Attorney General of the Cherokee Nation, do hereby
appoint Ralph F. Keen 11, to act esa Special Prosecutor for my office in the matter of the
Cherokee Nation versus Kimberlie A. Gilliland. Mr. Keen has all the power and authority of a
dul& appointed Assistant Attorney-General in conjunction with the prosecution of this case, and

will act under the authority of my office.

+¢ '
Dated this 22 dayof />4 , 2018.

ZZ

odd Hembree, Attorney Genéml
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THECHEROKEE NATION _—
CRIMINAL DIVISION WISFEB I PH L: 17

S RATIGH

CHEROKEE NATION, Wt RaL
[HRY R4 COURI
KRISTL MOHCOOYEA
Plaintiff, LOURT CLERK
v. CM 2016-54

KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND,

Defendant,

DEMURRER TO CRIMINAL COMPLAINT ON GROUNDS
NO CRIME IS ALLEGED AND MOTION TO DISMISS BECAUSE THE
EMBEZZLEMENT STATUTE DENIES DEFENDANT DUE PROCESS

Comes now Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland, (*Gilliland™) and demurs to the criminal
complaint filed herein on July 28. 2016, and moves the Court to dismiss the above styled and
numbered case. Gilliland committed no crime because the Nation's criminal law provides that an
embezzlement over $50 value is not punishable by law. The Complaint is defective because it
makes no factual allegations to prove Gilliland's fraudulemt intent and appropriation. See Exhibit
“A”, Complaint. The Complaint fails to apprise Gilliland without any uncertainty or ambiguity
of the punishment she faces if convicted in violation of the U.S. Constitution Fifth and Sixth
Amendments and the Cherokee Nation Constitution Article 111, Section 3. For these reasons, the
Court should dismiss this case.

The Nation charged Gilliland with criminal cmbezzlement pursuant to 21 CNCA §1452.!
The specific punishment for cmbezzlement is found at 21 CNCA § 1462.2 Although 21 CNCA

§1452 deems embezzlement a crime and provides some clements, 21 CNCA § 1462 provides lor

121 CNCA § 1452. Embezziement by olficer, elc.. of corporation, elc.

If any person, being an officer, directar, trustee. clerk, servant or agent of any association, society or corporation,
public or private, fraudulently appropriates to any use or purpose not in the duc and lawful execution of his trust,
any property which he has in his possession or under his control hy virtue of his trust, or secretes it with a fraudulem
intent to appropriate it 1o such use or purposc he is guilty of embezziement.

-1-
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION
CRIMINAL DIVISION

CHEROKEFE NATION,
Plaintiff,
v. CM 2016-54

KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND,

N st e’ wat? aw ar N aat?

Defendant,

DEMURRER TO CRIMINAL COMPLAINT ON GROUNDS
NO CRIME IS ALLEGED AND MOTION TO DISMISS BECAUSE THE
EMBEZZLEMENT STATUTE DENIES DEFENDANT DUE PROCESS

Comes now Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland, (~Gillilund™) and demurs to the criminal
complaint filed herein on July 28, 2016, and moves the Court to dismiss the above styled and
numbered case. Gilliland committed no crime because the Nation's criminal law provides that an
embezzlement over $50 value is not punishable by law. The Complaint is delective because it
makes no factual allegations to prove Gilliland's fraudulent intent and appropriation. See Exhibit
“A”. Complaint. The Complaint fails to apprise Gilliland without any uncertainty or ambiguity
ol the punishment she faces il convicted in violution of the U.S. Constitution Fifth and Sixth
Amendments and the Cherokee Nation Constitution Article 1L Section 3. For these reasons, the
Court should dismiss this case.

The Nation charged Gilliland with criminal embezzlement pursuant to 21 CNCA §1452.
The specilic punishment for embeszlement is found at 21 CNCA § 1462.7 Although 21 CNCA

| § 1452 deems embezziement a crime and prosides some clements. 21 CNCA § 1462 provides for

"21ONCA § 1452 1 mbeszlement by officer. ete.. of corporation, cte,

Ifany person. being an officer. direcior. tristee. clerk, servant or agent ol any association, souciety or corporation,
public or private. fraudulentiy appropriates to any use or parpose not in the due and law ful execution of his trust,
any property which he has in his possesaon or nnder s control by virtue of his trust. or secretes it with a fraudulent
intent to appropriaie it to such use or purpose be is cusitn of embeszloment,
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additional clements and the criminal punishment for embezzlement.” The Nation alleges the
Complaint’s offenses are punishable as preseribed by 21 CNUA §10: however, special statutory
punishment provisions supersede general punishiment provisions. which in this case is 21 CNCA
§ 1462

It is fundamental only those actions which are precisely described and enacted as crime
are punishable.”  Any question as o what the statute alleges as a crime and punishment must be
construed against the Nation.

1. ARGUMENT

Proposition One: The Nation's allegations of embezzlement over S50 per offense are not
punishable.

21 CNCA § 1462 provides only those acts of embezzlement where the property or asset
is less than $50 is a crime. 21 CNCA § 1462 provides:

Every person guilty of embezzlement is punishable in the manner prescribed for

feloniously stealing property of the value of that embezzled. excepr that every

person convicled of embezzlement of any item valued ai less than Fifty Dollars
(830.00) shall be punished for a crime. (Emphasis added.)

721 CNCA § 1462, Punishment for embeselement
Lvery person guilty of embezziement is punishable in the manner prescribed for feloniously
stcaling property of the value of that embezzled. except that every person convicted of embezzlement of any item
valued at Jess than Fifty Dollars ($30.00) shall be punished for a crime. And where the property embezzled is an
evidence of debt or right in action. the sum due upon it, or secured to be paid by it. shall be taken as its value.
% Cherokee Nation Codification Act of 2016 LA-02-16 2182016
Section £, Substantive Provision of Law: Repeals: Additions: and Amendments. All laws included in the Cherokee
Nation Code Annotated (2014). and laws appended thercto, are hereby altirmed as the positive law of the Cherokee
Nation. All Jaws and parts of laws not included in the Cherokee Nation Code Annotated (2014) publication are
repealed. The repeal shall not revive any law previoushy repealed, nor shall it affect any right already existing or
accrued or any action or proceeding already taken, unless otherwise provided in the Cherokee Nation Code
Annolated (2014).

21 CNCA § 11, Specibic statutes i other titles as governing - Acts punishable in different ways -Acts not
otherwise punishable by imprisonment
AL I there be in any other titles of the Taws of this Nation a provision making any specific act or omission criminal
and providing the punishment therelor, and there be in this penal code any provision ur section making the same act
or omission a criminal offense or preseribing the punishiment therefor, that offense and the punishment thereof. shall
be governed by the special provisions made in refation thereto, and not by the provisions of this penal code.
P21 CNCA § 2. Criminal acts are only those prescribed — “This code™ defined No act or omission shall be deemed
criminal or punishable except as prescribed or authorized by this codv.
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The “exception™ provision of 21 CNCA § 14062 is the operative and controlling language
of the section. so its meaning is that only those embezzlement otlenses where the property is
less than $50 is punishable.

First, the Nation has no crime of “feloniously stealing property.”

Second. even if the Nation had enacted a crime of ““feloniously stealing property,” under
21 CNCA § 1462 punishment would be administered in the same “manner,” contemplated in
first part of 21 CNCA § 1462. This means the process of administering punishment not the
substantive punishment.

Third. 21 CNCA § 1462 provides an exception that controls the entire first scetion, i.c.
“every person convicted of embezzlement of any item valued at less than Fifty Dollars (850.00)
shall be punished for a crime.” 21 CNCA § 1462 provides no other “prescribed or authorized™
crimes or punishment. See 21 CNCA § 2. 21 CNCA § 1462 clearly provides that an allegation
of embezzlement is only punishable as a crime if the property or asset is valued under $50.00.
there is no crime specified for property valued over $50. In other words, if the property or asset
is valued over $50.00. the allegation of embezzlement is not punishable under the Nation's laws.

The Nation has the sovercign right to define the terms of a crime and in this instance. it is
consistent with a poliey of judicial cconomy for the Nation to prosecute minor offenses of
embezzlement in the Nation™s court and deler prosccutor of allegations of embezziement of
greater value of property or asscts to the State of Oklahoma pursuant to 21 OK Stat § 21-1451
(2014) or the federal government pursuant to18 LLS. Code § 1163, 1t should be noted tym Nation
alleges for each Count of the Complaint that property or asset value exceeds $30 for that Count.

Therefore. the Complaint herein fails to state a punishable crime against Gilliland and the
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case should be dismisscd.
Proposition Two: The Complaint against Gilliland is defective and the Court should
dismiss the criminal prosecution pursuant to Fed. Rules Crim. Pro. 12 (b) (3) (B) (iii) and
).

The Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provides that a defect in the Complaint may be

raised by Motion.*

1. The Complaint does not specify the facts for each element for the crime of
embezzlement.

The first defect in the Complaint is that it does not specify for each Count the elements
of how Gilliland: 1) fraudulently, 2) did not use CNEC property in the due and lawful execution
of her trust, and 3) appropriated the property for her use or purpose. In many of the Counts, the
Nation merely alleges Gilliland went on a trip paid for by CNEC. There is no allegation that
CNEC disapproved of the travel, that she hid the expenses from CNEC or that the trip was solely
for her benefit and not the benefit of CNEC. StafTs with most organizations go on business trips
paid by the organization and often take family or associates with them. Those actions only
become criminal when the facts that show that Gilliland fraudulently used CNFEC’s credit card by
deceit and for her use without the consent of the Board.

For example. the Nation wholly failed to allege any facts for the Counts involving travel
expenscs that Gilliland deceived the Board. the Board did not consent. and they were not for the

benefit and purpose of CNEC. There is no allegation the Board ever denied the authorization of

8 Rule 12. Pleadings and Prewial Maotions
() PLEADINGS. The pleadinge ma eriminal proceeding are the indictment. the information, and the (h) PRETRIA
MuOioNs.
(3) Mations Ther Sivive B
by pretrial motion 17 the buaeas tor the mobon i~ then reasenabiy available ond the metion can be determined
without a trial on the ment
(137 a dereer mthe wdicnnent o wformaten . molidme:
(1) lack of speciticny

Vide Betere Tred The follow g detenses. objections. and requests must be rased

(v) fature to L an eliense
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the travel expenses or use of its credit card, or asked Gilliland for reimbursement. Without clear
and specific acts alleged showing that she traveled at ONLEC's expense without its consent and
by deceit, there is no crime and the case must be dismissed.

For example, Count | alleges Gilliland defrauded CNEC by taking a trip to California
from February 9 to 12, 2012, The Complaint fails to allege that this trip was not for the purpose
or benefit of CNEC or it was disapproved by the CNEC Board. The Complaint fails to alleged
she was not authorized to use CNEC’s credit card for the expenses or that she was not allowed to
reimburse CNEC for personal expenses on its credit card. The Complaint characterizes the trip as
a “family trip™ but wholly fails 1o allege the trip was not a business trip authorized by the Board
or within Gilliland's authority as Executive Director to decide to go on, or that Gilliland
deceived the Board from authorizing, ratifying, or approving the expenditures.

To demonstrate the insufficiency of the Compluint, Gilliland made three presentations in
behalf of CNEC on February 11, 2012, and February 12, 2012 during the trip that the Nation
charges in Count | as criminal embezzlement. A brochure mailed by the Cherokee Nation was
sent to all Cherokee citizens in the southern California area inviting them to attend a presentation
by Gilliland. as Exccutive Director of CNEC. on scholarship opportunities.  See Exhibit “B”
Brochure. In Count . the Nation charges that the usual and customary expenses for a routine
and common business trip such as airport parking. car rental. hotel costs. gasoline for the rental
car and meals were embezzied funds. Count 1 wholly fails w allege facts that show these
common, ordinary and necessary expenses connected with a business trip for CNEC were
criminally appropriated and without the consent of the Board. I fact, Count I Lails w allege this
trip was not approved. authorized or ratified by the CNEC Board even ftor Gilliland. its

Executive Director.
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The Complaint must contain sufficiently detail to adequately apprise Gilliland of the
nature of the charges against her. Did CNEC not approve her travel to promote its scholarship
efforts in its behalf? Did CNEC not approve her husbhand’s and childrens® air fare? Did CNEC
deny Gilliland authority as Executive Director to pay for reasonable and customary travel
expenses for the trip promoting CNEC and providing its services? Did CNEC not benefit from
the presentations? Where these expense not reviewed and ratified by the Board? Did CNEC no.t
allow Gilliland to use its credit for personal expenses and then be reimbursed?

What makes these expenditures criminal?

Without the Nation pleading the facts constituting deceit by Gilliland and the lack of
CNEC’s conscnt to usc its credit card for alleged expenses, there is no crime. Even if CNEC did
not consent, there is no crime without facts showing Gilliland deceived CNEC. The allegations
of the Complaint without showing of deceit and lack of CNEC's consent would be the subject for
a civil action which CNEC has filed contemporancously with this criminal case for the same
allegations. The Nation must plead lacts which show Gilliland’s intent to deprive wrongfully the
owner or the person who entrusted the property.

The Nation must aftord Gilliland not only a document that contains all of the elements of
the offense (whether or not such clements appear in the statute). but one that is sufficiently
descriptive to permit the defendant to prepare a defense. Hamding v. United States. 418 U.S. 87.
117, reh'd denied. 419 VLS. 885 (1974): Russell v. United States. 369 US. 749, 763-72 (1962):
United States v. Hernandez. 891 F.2d 321, 325 (5th Cir. 198Y). cert. denied. 495 U.S. 909
(1990).

What is required n the Complaint are factual allegations rather than a mere recitation of

the acts or practices proscribed by the oftense allegedly committed. See, e.g.. United States v.
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Nance, 533 F.2d 699. 701 (D.C. Cir. 1976) (an indictment charging theft of money by false
pretenses which listed name of victim. date of false representation. loss to victim and date money
was paid to defendant was fatally defective, because it did not specify the false representation
that induced victims to pay money). In reviewing the sufficiency of an indictment, the courts
have construed the Complaint as a whole to ascertain whether these requirements have been met.
United States v. Hand. 497 F.2d 929. 934-35 (5th Cir. 1974). cert. denied, 424 U.S. 953 (1976

An example of an indictment that failed this test is provided by United States v. Nance,
533 F.2d 699 (D.C. Cir. 1976). The indictment in Nuance charged a false pretense violation
pursuant to the D.C. Code. 1t listed the name of cach victim, the date of the false representation.
the amount each victim lost. and the date the sum was paid to the defendants, but was fatally
defective as a consequence of its failure 1o specily the false representation which induced the
victims to pay the money to the defendants. See also United States v. Brown. 995 F.2d 1493,
1504-05 (10th Cir.)(indictment charging controlling premises and making them available for
storing and distributing cocaine base insufficient because failed to statc how control was
excercised), cert. denied. 114 S.C'L 353 (1993).

Because the Nation's Complaint fails 1o allege specify facts showing Gilliland's intent to
deceive CNEC and take its funds and credit cards oy her use and without consent of the Board.
the Complaint is defective and the case must be dismissed.

2. The Complaint fails to apprise Gilliland of the punishment she faces if convicted.

The United States Constitution Sixth - Amendment provides that “In all criminal

prosecutions. the accused shall ... be informed of the nature and cause of the accusation.”
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The United States Constitution Fifth Amendment and the Cherokee Nation Constitution
Article III, Section 3 provisions for due process requires that a criminal statute may be
constitutionally void for vagucness.

In United States v. Burchelder, 442 U.S. 114, the U.S. Supreme Court stated:

It is a fundamental tenet of due process that "[n]o one may be required at peril

of life, liberty or property to speculate as to the meaning of penal statutes.”

Lanzetta v. New Jersey, 306 U.S. 45]. 453, 59 S.Ct. 618, 619, 83 L.Ed. 888

(1939). A criminal statute is therefore invalid if it "fails to give a person of

ordinary intelligence fair notice that his contemplated conduct is forbidden.”

United States v. Harriss. 347 U.S. 612, 617, 74 S.Ct. 808, 812. 98 L.Ed. 989

(1954). See Connally v. General Construction Co., 269 U.S. 385, 391-393. 46

S.Ct. 126, 127-128. 70 L.Ed. 322 (1926): Pupachristou v. Jucksonville, 405 U.S.

156, 162, 92 S.Ct. 839, 843, 31 L.Ed.2d 110 (1972): Dunn v. United States, 442

U.S.. at 112-113, 99 S.Ct.. at 2197. So 100, vague sentencing provisions may post

constitutional questions if' they do not state with sufficient clarity the

consequences of violating a given criminal statute. Sce United States v. Evans.

333 U.S. 483, 68 S.Ct. 634, 92 L.I:d. 823 (1948); United Steres v. Brown, 333

U.S. 18, 68 S.Ct. 376, 92 L.Ed. 442 (1948); ¢f. Giaccio v. Pennsylvania, 382 U.S.

399, 86 S.Ct. 518. 15 1..Ed.2d 447 (1966).

In determining whether a Complaint sufficiently inlorms the defendant of the offense and
punishment. courts require the Complaint to have a common sense construction. United States v.
Drew, 722 F.2d 551, 552-53 (9th Cir. 1983). The Nation must apprise Gilliland of what she
must be prepared to meet includes the Sixth Amendment’s specificity requirement. The
specificity requirement ensures that Gilliland vnly has to answer (o charges alleged with specific
facts in the Complaint in order o permit preparation ol her defense. and that she 1s protected
against double jeopardy. Sce United States v, Haas, 583 1°.2d 216 (Sth Cir.). reh’g denied. 588
F.2d 829, cert. denied. 440 US98 1 (1978).

In United States v. Carl. 103 U.S. 611 (1881). the United Supreme Court held that "in an

indicument... 1t is not suflicient 1o set forth the otfense in the words of the statute, unless those

words of themsclves fully. directly. and expressly. without any uncertainty or ambiguity. set
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forth all the elements necessary to constitute the offense intended to be punished.” Vague
wording, even if taken directly from a statute, does not suffice.

In Apprendi v New Jersey. 330 UL.S. 466, (2000). the U.S. Supreme Court held that any
fact that increases the maximum penalty for a crime must be charged in an indictment submitted
to a jury. and proven beyond a reasonable doubt.” Also sce United States v. Cook, 84 U.S. (17
Wall.) 168, 174 (1872), (If an offense cannot be accurately and clearly described without an
allegation that the accused is not within an exception contained in the statutes, an indictment that
does not contain such allegation is defective.)

Although the Court may allow the Nation to amend the Complaint te provide specificity
as to some elements, there is no way for the Nation to change the punishment provisions of 21
CNCA § 1462. 21 CNCA § 2 provides. that “No act or omission shall be deemed criminal or
punishable except as prescribed or authorized by this code.” Under the Nation’s law,
embezzlement over $50 value for property is not a erime. Other than construing 21 CNCA §
1462 as providing that embezzlement is punishable for offences where the value of the property
or asscts arc less than $30. there is no common sense or  logical interpretation to apprise
Gilliland of the nature and punishment of cmbezzlement.

21 CNCA § 14062 is the specilic punishment provision for embezzlement- not 21 CNCA
§ 10. the general punishment provision. 21 CNCA § 1462 refers to a non-existing crime
(feloniously stealing property) for the manner of punishment then provides an exception only
where the property is valued at ess than $50 is punishable. 21 CNCA § 1462 is incongruent and
cannot “fully. directly. and expressly. without any uncertainty or ambiguity™ inform Gilliland us

to the property value clement and punishment for embezzlement.
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Without 21 CNCA § 1462 being clear and understandable on its face. it violates the U.S.
Constitution Fifth and Sixth Amendment and Cherokee Nation Constitution  Article 111, Section
3 due process requirement ol adequate notice.

IL CONCLUSION

Because the Complaint is defective as to providing facts as to the Fifth and Sixth
Amendment specificity requircment of how Gilliland deceitfully appropriated CNEC's assets to
her use including lack of consent by the Board, the Court should dismiss this case. There are no
factual allegations that the Board did not authorize, approve (explicitly or implicit) or ratify the
expenditure of subject funds or that Gilliland deceived the Board.

Incurable by amendment of the Complaint as charged. Gilliland committed no crime
because each Count alleges embezzled property was valued in excess of $50, but pursuant to 21
CNCA § 1462. to constitute a punishable olfense, the embezzled property value must be less
than $50.

Fatal to the Nations prosccution is that 21 CNCA § 1462 is unconstitutionally vague and
incomprehensible as to the punishment imposed. “Unless those words of (21 CNCA § 1462)
themselves fully. directly. and cxpressly. without any uncertainty or ambiguity™ provide notice
of the property value ciement and punishment. then Complaint is unconstitutionally void for
vagueness and must be dismissed.

If the Court must pause and scrateh its head trving 1o figure out what 21 CNCA § 1462
means then it is constitutional void by vagueness.

Submitted this 14" das of February. 2019,

Chadwick Smith

CUNBA #08
22002 S 494 Road

- 10 -



Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 86 of 426

Tahlequah, OK 74464
chadi@@chadsmith.com
918 453 1707

Certificate of Delivery

I, Chadwick Smith, do hereby certify that on the 14" of February, 2019, pursuant to
CNDC Rule 7, I emailed a true and complete copy of the foregoing document to the persons
listed below:

/ss/
Chadwick Smith

Diane Hammons

Special Prosecutor
Cherokee Nation

Office of Attorney General
P.0O. Box 141

Tahlequah OK 74465
‘adianchammons@gmail.com

Ralph Keen I1

Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
KeenLawOK@gmail.com
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Bt 107 774” .
FILED

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION

CRIMINAL DIVISION 016 JUL 28 AM 8: 15
CHEROKEE NATION, ) SRR
Plaintiff, ) I
) 4
V. ) CRM-2016- b
)
)
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, )
D.0.B. 08/13/1969, )
Defendant. )

COMPLAINT AND INFORMATION
IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CHEROKEE NATION,

comes now, A. Diane Hammons, specially appointed prosecutor acting by the power of the
Attorney General for the Cherokee Nation, Todd Hembree, and upon her oath gives this Court
reason to know and be informed that KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND did, within the territorial
boundaries of the Cherokee Nation including within Indian Country as defined by 18 U.S.C. §
1151, and the laws of the Cherokee Nation , commit the hereinafter described crimes. At all
times pertinent hereto, Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland was serving as Executive Director of
the Cherokee Nation Education Corporation a/k/a Cherokee Nation Foundation (“CNF™), a non-
profit corporation organized under the laws of the Cherokee Nation, whose officers are appointed
by the Principal Chief and approved by the Tribal Council, and whose principal place of business
is in Tahlequah, Oklahoma, and which, at all times pertinent hereto received partial funding from
the Cherokee Nation government and Cherokee Nation Businesses, both entities being located on

Indian Country within the boundaries of the Cherokee Nation.
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COUNTI: Embezziement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

From a period from January 24, 2012, through February 14, 2012, Kimberlie A.
Gilliland, did willfully and knowingly convert, misappropriate, and embezzle funds
of CNF for her own and her family’s use, to wit: By using CNF funds to pay for a
family trip to California for herself, her husband, Andrew Sikora, and their two minor
children, S.S. and S.S; said trip taking place from February 9, 2012, through
February 13, 2012, Said conversion included the following transactions.

On approximately January 24, 2012, the Defendant purchased
American Airlines tickets for herself, her husband, Andrew
Sikora, and her two minor children, S.S. and S.S. from Tulsa,
Oklahoma, to Los Angeles, California, in the approximate
amount of $329.20 per ticket plus $56.00 in airline fees, fora

travel date of February 9, 2012, all paid out of CNEC funds

with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and,;

From February 9, through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid
$70.54 to Fine Airport Parking out of CNEC funds with the use of
a CNEC business credit card, and;

From February 9, through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid
$157.95 to Enterprise Rent a Car at the Los Angeles International
Airport, Los Angeles out of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC
business credit card, and;

From February 9, through February 10, 2012, the Defendant paid
$414.05 to Marriott Hotels and Resorts, Anaheim, California, out
of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;
On February 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $47.93 for gasoline
purchased at OSD Enterprises Inc, in Anaheim, California, out of
CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;
On February 11,2012, the Defendant paid $25.86 to a restaurant,
Bangkok Bay, in Solana Beach, California, out of CNEC funds
with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

On February 11,2012, the Defendant paid $46.94 to Oggis Pizza &
Brewing Co. in Garden Gove, California, for four (4) guests, out of
CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;
On February 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $21.30 to Starbucks, in
Carlsbad, California, out of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC
business credit card, and:

From February 12 through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid
$314.53 1o the Renaissance Montura, Los Angeles, CA, out of
CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

2
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o On February 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $1,408.40 to
Continental Airlines for tickets and ticket fees for travel to begin
on 2/13/12 for herself, her husband Andrew Sikora, and their
minor children, S.S. and S.S., out of CNEC funds with the use of a
CNEC business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used CNF funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT II: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

During a period from May 17, 2012, through May 19, 2012, Kimberlie A. Gilliland, did
willfully and knowingly convert and embezzle funds of CNEC for her own use, to wit: By
paying for “American Girl” hotel rooms (containing American Girl doll beds, pink
‘balloons, and cookies) for the benefit of her daughter, and an employee’s daughter, in the
total amount of $291.54 to the Residence Inn Marriott, Addison, Texas, out of CNEC
funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used CNF funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT III: Embezzlcment by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

During a period from July 16, 2012, through August 13, 2012, Kimberlie A.
Gilliland, did willfully and knowingly convert and embezzle funds of CNF for her
own and her family’s use, to wit: By using CNF funds to pay for a trip to California
for herself and her husband, Andrew Sikora; said trip taking place from August 9,
2012, through August 13, 2012. Said conversion included the following transactions:

o Onapproximalely July 16,2012, the Defendant purchased Southwest
Airlines tickets for herself and her husband, Andrew Sikora, to
Burbank, California, in the approximate amount of $257.60 per ticket

for a travel date of August 9, 2012, all paid out of CNF funds with
the usc of a CNF business credit card, and;

e From August 9, 2012 ~August 13, 2012 the Defendant paid $194.45 to
Fine Airport Parking in Tulsa, Oklaboma (including a $125 car wash
charge) all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit
card, and;

o On approximately August 9, 2012, the Defendant paid $51.84 to the
Jose Roux Taco Bar at the Sky Harbor International Airport, Phoenix,
Arizona, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business

3
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credit card, and,;

o  From August 9, 2012-August 10, 2012 the Defendant paid $398.82 to the
Queen Mary Ship, in Long Beach, Califomnia, for two nights lodging in
one of their rooms known for “‘paranormalistic activity,” all paid out of
CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

o From August9, 201 2-August 13, 2012 the Defendant paid $347.33 to
Hertz Rental Car in Oakland, California, all paid out of CNF funds
with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

o On approximately August 10, 2012, the Defendant purchased on the
Queen Mary Ship in Long Beach, California, a toothbrush and deodorant
for $6.74, two bottles of water for $4.78, and $38.80 paid to the Queen
Mary Promenade Café for two guest breakfasts, all paid out of CNF funds
with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

o On approximatcly August 11, 2012, the Defendant purchased on the
Queen Mary Ship in Long Beach, California, a “Bellhop Bear” for
$21.99, a “Stack Logo Keyring” for $5.99, and a video entitled “Ghost
Encounters” for $29.99, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF
business credit card, and;

e Onapproximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $24.82 on the
Queen Mary Ship in Lang Beach, California, for food and beverage for
two persons all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business
credit card, and;

e On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $56.59 to Shell
Oil in Long Beach, California, paid out of CNF funds with the use of a
CNF business credit card, and;

e Onapproximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $12.11 to Denny’s
in Kettleman City, California, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a
CNF business credit card, and;

» On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $92.40 to the Best
Western Inn and Suites, Kettleman, California, paid out of CNF funds
with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

e On approximately August 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $49.40 to
Exxonmobil, in Kettleman, California and $10.45 to “Yellow Card
Services,” paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit
card, and;

o On approximately August 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $133.02 to the
Courtyard by Marriott, in Oakland, California, paid out of CNF funds with
the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

e On approximately August 13, 2012, the Delendant paid $5.35 to La Casita,
in the Denver, Colorado, airport, paid out of CNF funds with the use of a
CNF business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
4
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office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT IV: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On or about July 16, 2012, the defendant did wilifully and knowingly convert and
embezzle funds of CNF for her own and her family’s use, to wit: purchasing a Southwest
Airlines ticket for her husband, Andrew Sikora, in the amount of $367.60 for an August
18, 2012 trip from Portland, Oregon to Tulsa, Oklahoma, paid out of CNF funds with the
use of a CNF business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT V: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On or about August 17, 2012, the defendant did willfully and knowingly convert and
embezzle funds of CNF for her own use, to wit: purchasing a “Buckle Bag” for $74.99
and two towels for $46.00 ($23.00 each) from the Pendleton Woolen Mills Employee
Sales Room in Portland, Oregon, paid out of CNF funds with the use of her CNF business
credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT VI: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On or about November 15, 2012, the defendant did willfully and knowingly convert and
embezzle funds of CNF for her own use, to wit: paying for a parking ticket from the City
of Tulsa that was issucd to her 2007 Toyota Camry, tag number **#*C5, paid out of CNF
funds with a CNF check, signed by defendant, for the amount of $40.00 ($30.00 fine and
$10.00 late fee);

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT VII: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

From a period of time from January, 2011, through April, 2013, the defendant did
willfully and knowingly convert and embezzle funds of CNT for her own use, to wit:

5
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paying for courses in an online master’s degree program for herself from North Park
University, in Chicago, Illinois, in the total amount of $21,100.36 paid out of CNF funds
with CNF checks signed by the defendant, and with the use of a CNF business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

. COUNT VII: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

In June of 2013, defendant unilaterally removed a large Hewlett-Packard Designjet
Z3200PS 44" Photo Printer and software disks from the Foundation corporate offices to
an unknown location. Said equipment was fully functional and valued in excess of
$5,000.00.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said property for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT IX: Embezziewent by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On orabout June 10, and July 1, 2013, defendant used Foundation funds to purchase and take
possession of over $10,000.00 of computer equipment from the Apple Store in Tulsa,
Oklahoma.

A substantial portion of said computer equipment purchased with Foundation funds never
appeared for use in Foundation's corporate offices, and the whereabouts of the equipment is
unknown. The missing items include an AppleTV item, Serial No. FO2KGADA4FF34,
purchased for $99.00; an Apple laptop computer, Serial No. C02KP36SFFTO0, purchased for
$2199.00; a MacBook Pro service agreement, No. 970000020608672, purchased for
$349.00; two Lightning AV digital adaptors, purchased for $49.00 each; an Apple
Thunderbolt to Firewire adaptor, purchased for $29.00; a Thunderbolt Gigabit Ethernet
adaptor purchased for $29.00; a light gray iPad Smant Case, purchased for $49.00; and a red
iPad Smart Case, also purchased for $49.00.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said property for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful exccution of her trust.

ALL OF SAID CRIMES being subject to punishment as defined at 21 CNCA § 10, to wit: a

term of imprisonment for not more than one (1) year or a fine of five thousand ($5,000.00) or both

6
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and any civil remedies as provided by 21 CNCA § 1760(B) for cach scparate crime.
FURTHER, that the Defendant is an *Indian” as defined in 25 U.S.C. § 450b(d), being a

Citizen of the Cherokee Nation, and that the defendant did, within and without the Cherokee

Nation including within Indian Country, commit the above crimes, contrary to the Cherokee

Nation statutes cited above, and against the peace and dignity of the Cherokee Nation.

/,/ MM

Diane Hammons, CNBA 0035
Specnal Prosecutor
Cherokee Nation Office of the Attorney General
P. O. Box 141
Tahlequah, OK 74465
adianchammons@ygmail.com

CHEROKEE NATION ) ss.

The undersigned, of lawful age, and being first duly sworn states that she has read the
above and foregoing Complaint, and that the statements contained therein are true and correct to

the best of her information and belief. / .
&%/ M@Zj s

Special Prosecutor

Subscribed and sworn to before me thisgﬁz;\of V)UVQ/(_@\ , 2016.

w

A %\
My Commission Expires: _8_ i) | 8 H / ¥ 14007424
?.5 @ \\ EXP, oalzcna j

“ '!mnum\\

/

Witnesses: Heather Sourjohn, fomxerC x’ﬂﬁﬂequah OK
Jennifer Sandoval, CNF, 80()S’Mws p@a\&‘Avc Tahlequah, OK
Marisa Hambleton, CNF. 800 S. Muskogee Ave., Tahlequah, OK
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Robert St. Pierre, CPA, North 2™ St., Stilwell, OK

J.D. Carey, CPA, Tahlequah, OK

Sherri Combs, forensic audilor, Tahlequah, OK

Shelley Butler-Allen, former CNF Board member, Tahlequah, OK
Robin Ballenger, former CNF Board member, Tulsa, OK

Susan Chapman-Plumb, CNF Board member, Tahlequah, OK

Tonya Rozell, CNF Board member, Tahlequah, OK

Casey Ross-Petherick, former CNF Board member, Oklahoma City, OK
Jay Calhoun, former CNF Board member, Cherokee Nation Businesses, Tulsa, OK
John Gritts, former CNF Board member, Colorado

Jackson Crain, Apple Store, Woodland Hills Mall, Tulsa, OK
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CHEROKEE NATION®
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www.cherokec.org

©2010 Cherokee Nation All Rights Reserved

Ken Edwards
Community Center
Indoor Meeting Room
1527 Fourth Street
Santa Monica, CA 90401

Contact:
Stephanie Bragg

(310)200-7769
http://losangeles.cherokee.org

Potluck Assignments:
(Pleasce bring a dish secording to the fivst letter
of your last namce)

A-G Main Dish
H-R Side Dish & Bread
S-Z Desserts

5:00pm - 8:00pm

Native American United
Methodist Church
800 South Lemon St.
Anaheim, CA 92805

For more information:
Janet Cook
(714)414-5453

acherokee@juno.com

Potluck Assipnments:
Pleasc bring a dish according to the 17
fetter of your last name

A-D Salads N-P Desserts

E-H Entréces Q-S Breads

I-M Side T-Z Beverages
Dishes

12:00pm - 4:00pm

Centro Cultural de la Raza
2004 Park Blvd.
San Diego, CA

Contact:
Phil Powers
(858)705-0816

infogsandiegocherokeecommunity.com

Plenty of free parking across the
street at Veteran Memorial

Potluck Assignments:
{Please bring a dish nccording to the first letter of
your last name)

A-G Main Dish
H-R Side Dish & Bread
S-Z Desserts
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Please plan to attend the event nearest you!!

You’re invited to attend a Cherokee Nation Foundation presentation featuring:
Kim Gilliland

Kimberlie is the Executive Director of the CNF. She received her Bachelor of Science Degree
in Biology and Chemistry from UC Berkeley, a Bachelor of Arts Degree from the Art Institute
in Graphic & Multimedia Design and is currently studying Nonprofit Finance at North Park
University.

She has helped establish a $1M dollar endowment for Cherokee students at Oklahoma State
University, establish the Junior Achievement Program, and soon the Cherokee College
Preparatory Institute.

The Cherokee Nation Foundation is a tax-exempt 501©3 organization. Their mission is to
“provide higher educational assistance to the Cherokee people and to help revitalize the
Cherokee language”. They are the first non-profit to be incorporated by the tribe.

[sa-La-Gi LA Cherokees of Orange San Diego Cherokee
Saturday, Feb. 11th, 2012 County Community
10:00 am - 2:00 pm Saturday, Feb. 11", 2012 | Sunday, February 12, 2012

PRESCRT STD

US. POSTAGE
PAID
KEET Rt w0, 206
CHEROKEE NATION' .

P.O. BOX 948
Tahlequah, OK 74465-0048

Return Service Requested
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EXHIBIT A-8
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION

CRIMINAL DIVISION
CHEROKEE NATION, )
Plaintiff, ;
Vs. g CM 2016-54
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, g
Defendant. ;

MOTION TO DISQUALIFY RALPH KEEN II AS SPECIAL PROSECUTOR

Comes now Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland, (“Gilliland”) and moves to disqualify
Ralph Keen Il (“Keen”) in the above style case from representing the Cherokee Nation
(“Nation”) because he has a conflict of interest that denies Gilliland due process of law.

On July 27, 2016, Mr. Keen, representing the Cherokee Nation Education Corporation
(“CNEC”), filed a companion civil case based on the same allegations of the instant criminal
case. See Case No. CV 2016-397. On September 6, 2016, Mr. Keen in behalf of CNEC stated
to the Court in its “Plaintiff’s Response and Combing Brief in Opposition to Defendant’s Motion
to Stay” (at page 4) that “Admittedly, eight counts in the civil petition involve the same
transaction or occurrence as in the criminal information” and in the civil case he sought from
Gilliland a breath taking $1,160,000 in damages.

On November 1, 2018, several years after filing the companion civil case, Keen entered
his appearance in this case as a “Special Prosecutor.”

L ARGUMENT
Proposition One: Mr. Keen has a conflict of interest

A. Mr. Keen’s first duty is to collect money for CNEC.
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Mr. Keen may not serve two masters- CNEC and the Nation. The interests of those two
masters are not the same. As Mr. Keen advised the civil court, CNEC’s interest is obtaining a
judgement of $1,160,000. The Oklahoma Code of Professional Responsibility (“Rules’)
requires Mr. Keen to zealously assert the client's position,' and be a zealous advocate on behalf
of a client.? Rule 1.3. Diligence [1] requires:

A lawyer should pursue a matter on behalf of a client despite opposition,

obstruction or personal inconvenience to the lawyer, and take whatever lawful and

ethical measures are required to vindicate a client's cause or endeavor. A

lawyer must also act with commitment and dedication to the interests of the client

and with zeal in advocacy upon the client's behalf.

It is simple; Mr. Keen first duty is to zealously recover $1,160,000 from Gilliland for his client

CNEC.

B. Mr. Keen’s second duty as a Special Prosecutor is to “seek justice, not to merely
convict.”

The Nation’s interest is or should not be financial recoverys; it is the fair administration of
justice. Ethical Consideration (EC) 7-13 of Canon 7 of the American Bar Association (ABA)
Model Code of Professional Responsibility (1982) provides "The responsibility of a public
prosecutor differs from that of the usual advocate; his duty is to seek justice, not merely to
convict.”

It very clear, Mr. Keen has different obligations as a prosecutor according to Rule 3.8.
The comments to Rule 3.8 provide, [1] ““A prosecutor has the responsibility of a minister of
justice and not simply that of an advocate.” As a government employee of the Nation and a

prosecutor, his duty is the fair administration of justice not the collection of $1,160,000.

' As advocate. a lawyer zealously asserts the client’s position under the rules of the adversary system. Title 5. OS
Chapter 1 - Oklahoma Rules of Professional Conduct Preamble: A Lawyer's Responsibilities Appendix 3-A (2)

* Thus. when an opposing party is well represented. a lawver can be a zealous advocate on behalf of a client and at
the same time assume that justice is being done Title 5. OS Chapter 1 - Oklahoma Rules of Protessional Conduct
Preamble: A Lawyer's Responsibilities Appendix 3-A (2) (8)
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In Berger v. United States, 295 U.S. 78, 88 (1935), the United States Supreme Court

declared:

"The United States Attorney is the representative not of an ordinary party to a

controversy, but of a sovereignty whose obligation to govern impartially is as

compelling as its obligation to govern at all; and whose interest, therefore, in a

criminal prosecution is not that it shall win a case, but that justice shall be done.

As such, he is in a peculiar and very definite sense the servant of the law, the

twofold aim of which is that guilt shall not escape nor innocence suffer."

By representing CNEC, Mr. Keen’s first duty is to collect $1,160,000 and his simultaneously
second duty is to represent the Nation to administer justice, he has a conflict of interest. Mr.
Keen’s conflict is vividly seen where he has the authority to invoke the Nation’s power to
criminally prosecute Gilliland (and make all decisions attendant to including plea offers, trial
strategy, pleading) to create an advantage or leverage for this civil client.

Proposition Two: Mr. Keen’s conflict of interest denies Gilliland due process of law.

Rule 1.11. Comments (3) state, “Similarly, a lawyer who has pursued a claim on behalf
of a private client may not pursue the claim on behalf of the government, except when authorized
to do so by paragraph (d).”

Mr. Keen’s conflict of interest is not waivable by the Nation because it violates
Gilliland’s due process. In Young v. U.S. Ex Rel. Vuitton Et Fils S. A., 780 F.2d 179 (1987), the
U.S. Supreme Court addressed the case of where a federal court appointed the law firm
representing party in a civil case to criminally prosecute for contempt the same opposing party
in the same underlying civil case. The Court held that, “counsel for a party that is the
beneficiary of a court order may not be appointed as prosecutor in a contempt action alleging a
violation of that order.” The holding of the Court applies in this case where the Nation’s

Attorney General appointed Mr. Keen to criminally prosecute the adverse party in a civil case

that he sued for the same allegation. The synopsis in the Young case describes the conflict:
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Counsel for a party that is the beneficiary of a court order may not be appointed to
undertake criminal contempt prosecutions for alleged violations of that order. A
private attorney appointed to prosecute a criminal contempt should be as
disinterested as a public prosecutor, since the attorney is appointed solely to
pursue the public interest in vindication of the court's authority. In a case where a
prosecutor also represents an interested party, however, the legal profession's
ethical rules may require that the prosecutor take into account an interest other
than the Government's. This creates an intolerable danger that the public interest
will be compromised and produces at least the appearance of impropriety.’ See
pages 802-809.

By criminally prosecuting Gilliland at the same time seeking $1,160,000 from her for his
private civil client on the same alleged offenses is a conflict of interest depriving Gilliland from
due process of a disinterested prosecutor.

In Young, the U.S. Supreme Court was so adamant that the conflict was impermissible, it
noted, “If a Justice Department attorney pursued a contempt prosecution for violation of an
injunction benefiting any client of that attorney involved in the underlying civil litigation, that
attorney would be open to a charge of committing a felony under 208(a).”

This Court should disqualify Mr. Keen in this case.

Submitted this ___ day of February, 2019.

/ss/
Chadwick Smith
CNBA #08
22902 S494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464

chad@chadsmith.com
918 453 1707

Certificate of Delivery

1, Chadwick Smith, do hereby certify that on the  of February. 2019. pursuant to CNDC
Rule 7. I emailed a true and complete copy of the foregoing document to the persons listed
below:

/ss/
Chadwick Smith

¥ hups://caselaw. findlaw.com/us-supreme-cour/48 1/787.huml

-4-
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Diane Hammons

Special Prosecutor
Cherokee Nation

Office of Attorney General
P.O. Box 141

Tahlequah OK 74465
adianehammons@gmail.com

Ralph Keen ]I

Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
KeenLawOK@gmail.com
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EXHIBIT A-9
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In The District Court of Cherokee Nation BIIHAR -5 PH J: 4
'

Cherokee Nation, ' P ‘
Plaintiff, :'{;u.; I l~Cu0YL A
COURT 1) LERK
V. CM 2016-54
Kimberlie A Gilliland,
Defendant.

Criminal Trial Notice and Scheduling Order

This order is intended to eliminate unnecessary discovery motions and to expedite
the presentation of evidence and the examination of witnesses. To the extent it is in
conflict with any administrative order or rule of the Court, this Order shall govern.

YOU WILL RECEIVE NO FURTHER NOTICE OF THESE DATES

Amended Complaint due: March 29, 2019

Arraignment (if Afnended Complaint isifi iled) ApPril:18:20197at11:30AM)

Initial Discovery/Disclosures complete by: July 5, 2019

Pretrial Motions (except motions in limine) July 19, 2019

due:

Responses to Pretrial Motions due: August 5, 2019

Replies due: August 16, 2019 :

Pretrial Motion(s):-Hearing-date::—=3 =7 £ August:23,:2019:at:1700PM -

Motions in Limine due: September 20, 2019

Final I%retrlal Conference/Plea Cuto_f_t‘,g_ate September 20,2019 af )
1:00PVL3

Witness Lists, Proposed Jury Instructions and | October 11, 2019

Proposed Verdict Form (submitted directly to

chambers) due:

THAID At and L meWEirsAUples = 707

! Parties have until May 31, 2019 to file any objection to the trial date.
) 1
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Attorney Conference and Disclosure

Within ten days of the date of arraignment, government and defense counsel shall
meet and confer for the purpose of resolving or minimizing the issues in
controversy.

Upon the request of defense counsel, government counsel shall:
A. Provide defense counsel with the information described such as in Federal
Rule of Criminal Procedure 16(a)(1); and

B. Permit defense counsel to inspect and copy or photograph any
exculpatory/impeachment evidence within the meaning of Brady v
Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963), United States v. Agurs, 427 U.S. 97 (1976),
and Giglio v. United States, 405 U.S. 150 (1972).

A list of such evidence shall be prepared and signed by all counsel. Copies of the
items which have been disclosed shall be initialed or otherwise marked.

Nothing in this Order shall be construed to require the disclosure of Jencks Act (18
U.S.C. § 3500) material prior to the time that its disclosure is required by law.
Nevertheless, the Court urges the government to disclose Jencks Act materials well
in advance of trial. In the event that some materials are not disclosed sufficiently in
advance of a government witness’ testimony, the Court will allow a reasonable
amount of additional time during trial for the defense to prepare before proceeding.

Disclosure Declined

If, in the judgment of government counsel, it would be detrimental to the
government’s interests to make any of the disclosures set forth in the paragraph
above, the government shall file a motion within the ten-day period seeking relief
from this Order and setting forth the specific reasons therefore.

Continuing Duty

The duty to disclose is continuing, even throughout trial.
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Discovery by the Government

Nothing in these procedures is designed to preclude discovery by the government
such as under the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, nor to alter the Defendant’s
obligation, if any, such as under Rule 16(b).

Pre-Tlfial Motions

Motions must contain a table of contents, an index of authorities, and an index of
exhibits attached to the brief. Additionally, concurrence must be sought before
filing a motion.

Exhibits

1. Marking of Exhibits: All exhibits must be marked in advance of trial
using consecutive numbers (for the government) and letters (for the
defendant).

2. List of Exhibits: A list of proposed exhibits shall be submitted directly to
chambers by each of the parties no later than one week before the Final
Pretrial Conference, each party shall make available for inspection all
exhibits which that party will introduce at trial. This provision shall not
extend the time for disclosure and inspection of material previously ordered
herein.

3. Foundation Issues and Motions in Limine: Motions in limine and any
notices of intent to contest foundation, chain-of-custody, or scientific
analysis shall be filed by the deadline for motions in limine. Any notice of
intent to contest foundation, chain-of-custody, or scientific analysis shall set
forth a good faith basis for the objection for each item or exhibit.

When defense counsel has inspected an exhibit which the government
intends to introduce into evidence, the foundation for its receipt into
evidence will be deemed established unless defense counsel files a notice
with the Court at or before the Final Pretrial Conference that the foundation
for admission into evidence of the exhibit will be contested.
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4. Objections to Exhibits: This Order shall not affect the right of a party to
object at the time of trial to the introduction of an exhibit other than on the
basis of authentication and foundation.

5. Custody and Record of Admitted Exhibits: Counsel are required to maintain
a record of all admitted exhibits during trial. Counsel for each party must
keep custody of that party’s admitted exhibits during trial. A party who
objects to this provision must file a written objection prior to jury selection.

6. Publication of Exhibits During Trial: The Court encourages parties to use
electronic projection to publish exhibits during trial in a manner that allows
the jury, court, attorneys, and parties to view the exhibit simultaneously.
Parties are responsible for providing equipment for such purpose and should
contact the Court to obtain permission to bring such equipment into the
courthouse. The parties have the Court’s permission to use the courthouse
equipment but the Court is not responsible for any malfunctions. If a party is
planning on publishing through electronic means the Court suggests also
having backup hard copies. If photographs and documentary exhibits are not
published electronically, then the party must prepare exhibit books for the
Court and each juror. Whether or not exhibits are published electronically, a
separate exhibit book should be prepared and made available to a witness
who is to be questioned about an exhibit.

7. Preparing Exhibits For Jury Deliberation: Counsel must confer and purge
from one set of binders or files all exhibits not admitted during the course of
trial. Originals of all exhibits admitted at trial should be ready to be turned
over to the jury foreperson prior to closing jury instructions so that jury
deliberations are not delayed.

8. Filing Exhibits: It is the responsibility of the parties to ensure that the record
is complete. All trial exhibits, briefs, and proposed jury instructions are to be
filed in the record at the close of trial and any omissions or incorrect
additions must be brought to the Court’s attention within five business days
of the verdict.
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9. Full Disclosure: Computer generated visual or animated evidence, together
with underlying data, must be disclosed to opposing counsel at least one
week before the start of trial.

10.Penalty: A party who does not abide by these provisions may be subject to
sanctions, including preclusion of the introduction of exhibits at trial by the

offending party.

Scientific Analysis

When a defendant has been made aware of the existence of scientific analysis of an
exhibit (which analysis has been determined by an expert in the relevant field of
science), the results of the scientific analysis of the exhibit and the opinion of the
scientist will be admitted into evidence unless the defendant files a notice with the
Court prior to the Final Pretrial Conference, indicating that the scientific analysis
of the exhibit will be contested. Such notice shall state whether the expert is
desired as a witness.

Witness List

By the deadline established in the scheduling order, and to enable the Court to
better estimate the length of trial, each party shall submit directly to chambers a list
of witnesses by name and agency (if appropriate), whom the party reasonably
anticipates it will call to testify at trial, noting the approximate amount of time it
anticipates will be needed for examination of each such witness. This list should
NOT to be electronically filed or otherwise submitted to the Clerk’s Office. All
witnesses, including law enforcement personnel, are to testify in plain clothes.

Jury Instructions

The parties must meet and confer prior to trial to discuss jury instructions. By the
deadline established in this Order, the parties must submit directly to chambers a
single set of proposed, stipulated jury instructions.

The Court has its own standard introductory and concluding instructions. Each
party is responsible for submitting all instructions related to the specific charges or
defenses, and special instructions relating to evidence.
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All proposed instructions are to be submitted in typewritten form (double spaced)
and on computer disk compatible with Microsoft Word. Each instruction shall
contain references to authority (e.g., “Devitt and Blackmar, Section 11.08"), and
shall be on a separate page. In addition, each party must submit separately to
chambers all additional proposed instructions (in the same form) to which any
other party objects. Nevertheless, the parties must make a concerted, good faith
effort to narrow the areas of dispute and to discuss each instruction with a view to
reaching agreement as to an acceptable form. The Court will resolve disputes at a
hearing on the record.

The jury is charged before final argument.

Jury Selection

The Court uses a “struck jury” system for jury selection. In most cases, the
government is allowed three peremptory challenges and the defendant is allowed
three peremptory challenges. The Court will select six regular and two alternate
jurors. Alternate jurors are not told they are alternates; they are dismissed by
random draw at the conclusion of the proofs.

Voir dire will be conducted by the Court and Counsel. The Court shall conduct
voir dire, then Counsel for the Nation, and then Counsel for the Defendant.
Counsel may submit proposed voir dire questions in writing for the Court to
conduct by the deadline set forth in the scheduling order.

Note-Taking & Juror Involvement

Jurors will be allowed to take notes. The Court specifically instructs the jury in
advance on this issue. Jurors who choose to take notes will be instructed that such
notes are not themselves evidence, but are merely aids to the juror’s memory of the
evidence presented at trial. The Court will consider, on a case by case basis,
whether jurors will be permitted to question witnesses, generally through
submission of questions to be asked by the Court.
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Muiti-Defendant or Mega Trials

The Court does not have a general procedure for handling multi-defendant criminal
"mega trials." For multi-defendant criminal trials the Court encourages attorneys to
work out procedures for peremptory challenges among themselves. In such trials, if
counsel cannot agree among themselves, the Court will allocate peremptory
challenges depending on the circumstances of the case.

Continuances

Continuances of trial dates or continuances during trial will not be granted because
of unavailability of witnesses. Please notify the Court if Court intervention is
necessary to secure witness attendance. Otherwise, witnesses will be expected to
be available when called.

Bench Trials

Proposed findings of fact and conclusion of law must be submitted to chambers
one week before the commencement of trial.

Final Pre-Trial Conference

At the Final Pre-Trial Conference, counsel must be prepared to discuss all matters
that will promote a fair and expeditious trial, including but not limited to: (1) a
potential summary of charges to be read to the jury; (2) anticipated evidentiary
issues; (3) length of trial; (4) stipulations that may obviate the need for foundation
witnesses; (5) stipulations that may obviate the need to prove facts that are
uncontested; (6) stipulations that may obviate the need for certain exhibits; (7)
peremptory challenges; and (8) special arrangements for the presentation of
witnesses and other evidence (e.g., need for interpreters, A/V needs, etc.). The
defendant(s) must be present at the conference.

It is so ordered.

e Bitiar

District Court Judge
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Certificate of Mailing

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that on the date file stamped above, that
I emailed, faxed, hand delivered, and or mailed a true and correct file stamped
copy of the foregoing document to the following person(s):

Chadwick Smith, chad@chadsmith.com

Diane Hammons, adianehammons@gmail.com

Ralph Keen II, keenlawok(@gmail.com

Todd Hembree, todd-hembree(@cherokee.org

Chrissi Nimmo, chrissi-nimmo(@cherokee.org

John Young, john-young(@cherokee.org
Courtney Jordan, courtney-jordan@cherokee.org
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EXHIBIT A-10
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; IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION

CRIMINAL DIVISION
=
CHEROKEE NATION, ) QEin = T
Plaintiff, ; %égz é 2::“:;
2 —.’H'{ u;~ G
‘ V. ) CRM-2016-54 md8% » Iy
) 5Eg - O
{ = ~
i KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, ) o
D.O.B. 08/13/1969, ) -
' Defendant. )
AMENDED

COMPLAINT AND INFORMATION

IN THE NAME AND BY. THE AUTHORITY OF THE CHEROKEE NATION,
comes now, A. Diane Hammons, specially appointed prosecutor acting by the power of the
Attorney General for the Cherokee Nation, Todd Hembree, and upon her oath gives this Court
reason to know and be informed that KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND did, within the territorial
boundaries of the Cherokee Nation including within Indian Country as defined by 18 U.S.C. §

" 1151, and the laws of the Cherokee Nation , commit the hereinafier described crimes. Atall
times pertinent hereto, Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland {vas serving as Executive Director of
the Cherokee Nation Education Corporation a/k/a Cherokee Nation Foundation (“CNF™), a non-
profit corporation organized under the laws of the Cherokes Nation, whose officers are aﬁpointed

! by the Principal Chief and approved by the Tribal Council, and whose principal place of business

is in Tahlequah, Oklahoma, and which, at all times pertinent hereto received partial funding from

the Cherokee Nation government and Cherokee Nation Businesses, both entities being located on

Indian Country within the boundaries of the Cherokee Nation.

COUNTI: Embexzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

From a period from January 24, 2012, through February 14, 2012, Kimberlie A. Gilliland, did
willfully and knowingly convert, misappropriate, and embezzle funds of CNF for her own and her
family’s use, to wit: By using CNF funds to pay for a family trip to California for herself, her

1
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husband, Andrew Sikora, and their two minor children, S.S. and 8.S; said trip taking place from
February 9, 2012, through February 13, 2012. Said conversion included the following transactions,

On approximately January 24, 2012, the Defendant purchased
American Airlines tickets for herself, her husband, Andrew Sikora,
and her two minor children, S.S. and S.S. from Tulsa, Oklahoma,
to Los Angeles, California, in the approximate amount of $329.20
per ticket plus $56.00 in airline fees, for a travel date of February
9, 2012, all paid out of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC
business credit card, and,;

From February 9, through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid
$70.54 to Fine Airport Parking out of CNEC funds with the use of
a CNEC business credit card, and;

From February 9, through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid
$157.95 to Enterprise Rent a Car at the Los Angeles International
Airport, Los Angeles out of CNEC funds wnh the use of a CNEC
business credit card, and,;

_ From February 9, through February 10, 2012, the Defendant paid

$414.05 to Marriott Hotels and Resorts, Anaheim, California, out
of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;
On February 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $47.93 for gasoline
purchased at OSD Enterprises Inc, in Anaheim, California, out of
CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

On February 11,2012, the Defendant paid $25.86 to a restaurant,
Bangkok Bay, in Solana Beach, California, out of CNEC funds
with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

On February 11,2012, the Defendant paid-$46.94 to Oggis Pizza &
Brewing Co. in Garden Gove, California, for four (4) guests, out of
CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

On February 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $21.30 to Starbucks, in
Carlsbad, California, out of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC
business credit card, and;

From February 12 through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid
$314.53 to the Renaissance Montura, Los Angeles, CA, out of
CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

On February 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $1,408.40 to
Continental Airlines for tickets and ticket fees for travel to begin
on 2/13/12 for herself, her husband Andrew Sikora, and their
minor children, S.S. and S.S., out of CNEC funds with the use of 2
CNEC business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gllhland who while holding an office of
trust in CNF, used CNF funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit, and not in the
due and lawful execution of her trust.

o)
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COUNT H: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

During a period from May 17, 2012, through May 19, 2012, Kimberlie A, Gilliland, did willfully
and knowingly convert and embezzle funds of CNEC for her ovwn use, to wit: By paying for
“Armerican Girl” hotel rooms (containing American Girl doll beds, pink balloons, and cookies)
for the benefit of her daughter, and an employee’s daughter, in the total amount of $291.54 to the
Residence Inn Marriott, Addison, Texas, out of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business
credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an office of
trust in CNF, used CNF funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit, and not in the
due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT III: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

During a period from July 16, 2012, through August 13, 2012, Kimberlie A. Gilliland, did
willfully and knowingly convert and embezzle finds of CNF for her own and her family’s use, 10 -
wit: By using CNF funds to pay for a trip to California for herself and her husband, Andrew
Sikore; said trip teking place from August 9, 2012, through August 13,2012, Seid conversion
included the following transactions: .

¢ On approximately July 16, 2012, the Defendant purchased
Southwest Airlines tickets for herself and her husband, Andrew
Sikora, to Burbank, California, in the approximate amount of
$257.60 per ticket for a travel date of August 9, 2012, all paid out
of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

s From August 9, 2012 —August 13, 2012 the Defendant paid $194.45 to
Fine Airport Parking in Tulsa, Oklahoma (including a $125 car wash
charge) all paid cut of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit
card, and;

e On approximately August 9, 2012, the Defendant paid $51.84 o the
Jose Roux Taco Bar at the Sky Harbor International Airport, Phoenix,
Arizona, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business
credit card, and;

s From August 9, 2012-August 10, 2012 the Defendant paid $398.82 to the
Queen Mary Ship, in Long Beach, California, for two nights lodging in
one of their rooms known for “parancrmalistic activity, “ all paid out of
CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

o From August9, 2012-August 13, 2012 the Defendant paid $347.33 to
Hertz Rental Car in Oakland, California, 2ll paid out of CNF funds
with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;
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o On approximately August 10, 2012, the Defendant purchased on the
Queen Mary Ship in Long Beach, California, a toothbrush and deodorant
for $6.74, two bottles of water for $4.78, and $38.80 paid to the Queen
Mary Promenade Café for two guest breakfasts, all paid out of CNF funds
with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

o On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant purchased on the

i Queen Mary Ship in Long Beach, California, a “Belthop Bear™ for
$21.99, a Stack Logo Keyring for $5.99, and a video entitled “Ghost )
Encounters” for $29.99, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF
business credit card, and;

o On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $24.82 on the

: Queen Mary Ship in Long Beach, California, for food and beverage for

! ‘ two persons all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business

: "credit card, and; _

o On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $56.59 to Shell
Oil in Long Beach, California, paid out of CNF funds with the use of a
CNF business credit card, and;

e On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $12.11 to Denny’s
in Kettleman City, Califomnia, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a
CNF business credit card, and;

¢ On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $92.40 to the Best
Western Inn and Suites, Kettleman, California, paid out of CNF funds
with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

» On approximately August 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $49.40 to
Exxonmobil, in Kettleman, California and $10.45 to “Yellow Card *
Services”, paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit
card, and;

o On approximately August 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $133.02 to the
Courtyard by Marriott, in Oakland, California, paid out of CNF funds with
the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

e On approximately August 13, 2012, the Defendant paid $5.35 to La Casita,
in the Denver, Colorado, airport, paid out of CNF funds with the use of a
CNF business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said furds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefis,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT IV: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On or about July 16, 2012, the defendant did willfully and knowingly convert and
embezzle funds of CNF for her own and her family’s use, to wit: purchasing a Sonthwest

4
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Airlines ticket for her husband, Andrew Sikorg, in the amount of $367.60 for an August
18,2012 trip from Portland, Oregon to Tulsa, Oklahoma, paid out of CNF funds with the
use of a CNF business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust,

! COUNTV: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

embezzle funds of CNF for her own use, to wit: purchasing a “Buckle Bag” for $74.99
and two towels for $46.00 ($23.00 each) from the Pendleton Woolen Mills Employee
Sales Room in Portland, Oregon, paid out of CNF funds with the use of her CNF business
credit card. ‘

i On or about August 17, 2012, the defendant did willfully and knowingly convert and
|
I

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT VI: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On or about November 15, 2012, the defendant did willfully and knowingly convert and
embezzle funds of CNF for her own use, to wit: paying for a parking ticket from the City
of Tulsa that was issued to her 2007 Toyota Camry, tag number ****C5, paid out of CNF
funds with a CNF check, signed by defendant, for the amount of $40.00 ($30.00 fine and
$10.00 late fee); :

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT VII: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

" Froro a period of time from January, 2011, through April, 2013, the defendant did
willfully and knowingly convert and embezzle funds of CNF for her own use, to wit:
paying for courses in an online master’s degree program for herself from North Park
University, in Chicago, Illinois, in the total amount of $21,100.36 paid out of CNF funds

| with CNF checks signed by the defendant, and with the use of a CNF business credit card.
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Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

In June of 2013, defendant unilaterally removed a large Hewlett-Packard Designjet
Z3200PS 44" Photo Printer and software disks from the Foundation corporate offices to
an unknown location. Said equipment was fully functional and valued in excess of
$5,000.00.

l COUNT VIO: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452
i

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, ‘who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said property for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT IX: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On or about June 10, and July 1, 2013, defendant used Foundation funds to purchase and take
possession of, over $10,000.00 of computer equipment from the Apple Store in Tulsa, -
Oklahoma.

A substantial portlon of said computer equipment purchased with Foundation funds never
appeared for use in Foundation's corporate offices, and the whereabouts of the equipment is
unknown. The missing items include an AppleTV item, Serial No. FO2KGADA4FF54,
purchased for $99.00; an Apple laptop computer, Serial No. CO2KP36SFFT0, purchased for
$2199.00; a MacBook Pro service agreement, No. 970000020608672, purchased for
i $349.00; two Lightning AV digital adaptors, purchased for $49.00 each; an Apple
- Thunderbolt to Firewire adaptor, purchased for $29.00; a Thunderbolt Gigabit Ethernet
adaptor purchased for $29.00; 2 light gray iPad Smart Case, purchased for $49.00; and, ared
iPad Smart Case, also purchased for $49.00.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said property for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT X: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

From January 2011 through July 2013, defendant misappropriated Foundation funds by
giving herself pay raises that had not been authorized by the CNF Board.

o The, March 2010 contract with the defendant authorized her compensation as

6
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~, an independent contractor in an amount not to exceed $72,000.00, or

: $6,000.00 per month.

o In 2011, Defendant unilaterally changed her position in payroll to that of a
payroll employee, with the Foundation paying all taxes and benefits, while
also giving herself a substantial pay raise, amounting to approximately
$10,900, for the calendar year, 2011.

o Defendant caused herself to be paid approximately $89,161.64 for the
calendar year 2012, which was $17,161.64 over the approved contract
executed by the CNF Board.

o On January 28,2013, Foundation and defendant entered into a Severance
Agreement which provided that defendant would receive $74,500.00, less
taxes and other withholdings. This amount was intended to reflect one-year's
salary for defendant at that time. The agreement further allowed defendantto

i remain on Foundation's payroll at her "base salary” until her final day of

i employment on July 12, 2013, at 5:00 p.m. Per the Severance Agreement,

| defendant received $74,500.00 less social security, Medicare, federat, and

: state withholdings on January 31, 2013.

i o On or about January 31, 2013, Defendant wrongfully increased her monthly

' rate from $7,908.18 to $8,072.26.

! o From February 2013 to June 2013 Defendant received $40,361.30; said

{ ,

|

amount being $10,361.30 over her approved 2010 contract rate. As a result
of defendant's unauthorized pay increase, she wrongfully paid herself .
$10,361.30 in excess of her approved 2010 contact rate.

e Defendant's last day per the Severance Agresment was Friday, July 12,2013,
at 5:00 p.m. Due to the pay cycle ending on July 10 defendant should have
received two days additional pay on her last paycheck, which under the
approved 2010 contract rate, should have been $600.00. However, defendant
wrongfully paid herself $8,072.26, a full month's salary at her unauthorized
rate for July; said amount being $4,472.26 over her approved 2010 contract
rate. As a result of defendant's unauthorized pay increase, she wrongfully
paid herself $4,472.26 in excess of her approved 2010 contact rate.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said property for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT XI: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452
On or about June 12, 2013,, defendant misappropriated Foundation funds by paying
$988.00 of Foundation funds to Cherokee Media, a business in which she was involved

with her husband, Andrew Sikora.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
7
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office of trust in CNF, used said property for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT XII: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452
On or about, defendant misappropriated Foundation funds by giving unauthorized

scholarships to three different students who did not meet the criteria for the scholarships, and
j in one instance, did not even apply for a scholarship.

o Defendant unilaterally awarded a total of $4,500.00 in Foundation Gammon

i Scholarship funds to "Student A," for academic years 2011-2013, with the

P ' final $1,500.00 payment being made on January 28, 2013, the same day
defendant executed her severance agreement with the Foundation,

o Student A never made an application for the scholarship, did not go through
the competitive scholarship selection process, and was not qualified under the
restrictive terms of the Gammon scholarship for an award of those funds.

o Defendant unilaterally awarded a total of $10,000.00 in Foundation Cherokee

' ' Nation Businesses scholarship funds to "Student B" for academic years 2011-
2013.

o Student B" neither made an application, nor went through the competitive
scholarship selection process to be awarded any scholarship funds for the
2011-2012 acadcmic year, yet was unilaterally awarded $5,000.00 by
defendant; and"Student B" did not satisfy the academic requirements for the
Cherokee Nation Business scholarship for the 2012-2013 academic year, yet
was unilaterally awarded $5,000.00 by defendant.

o Defendant unilaterally awarded "Student C" a total of $5,606.73 in
Foundation Gammon Scholarship funds for the academic years 2011-2013.

e “Student C” did not submit a timely scholarship application, nor did she go
through the competitive scholarship selection process to be awarded said
funds and “Student C” did not meet the restrictive terms of the Gammon
scholarship for an award of those funds.

e On or about January 3, 2011, defendant unilaterally awarded $1,500.00 in
Foundation Gammon Scholarship funds to "Student D," and further extended
to her a zero-interest student loan in the amount of $2,050.81.

o "Student D" neither made an application, nor went through the competitive
scholarship selection process to be awarded or Joaned said funds.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said property for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.
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COUNT XIII: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

During a period from January 24, 2012, through January 29, 2012, defendant
wrongfully expended Foundation funds for her own personal use and benefit, and for
the use and benefit of her husband, Andrew Sikora, and for use and benefit of her two
minor children, S.S. and §.S., by purchasing meals, hotel lodging, toll road usage,
fuel, utilizing a Foundation vehicle and other travel expenses for a family trip to
Golden, Colorado occurring on January 24 - 29, 2012,

Said conversion included the following transactions:

s 1/24/12: $28.69 gasoline charged to CNEC Quiktrip (4510 south Peoria,
Tulsa, Ok at 6:05 am) gas card ending in 2952.

o 1/24/12: $.95 and $1.90, 2007 Honda CRV Pike Pass charges for
Cimarron Turnpike at 6:45 a.m. and 7:13 a.m, respectiely.

o 1/24/12: $23.33 gasoline charged to CNEC Quikirip (Wichita, XS) gas
card ending in 2952.

o 1/24/12: $40.79 gasoline charged to CNEC visa credit card ending in
8611 (assigned to Kimberlie Gilliland) in Colby, KS

i o 1/24/12: $25.02 gasoline charged to CNEC Phillips66 Conoco credit card
#634 in Limon, Colorado

o 1/24/12: $153.73 Towneplace Suites, Golden, Colorado, amval—l/”4ll2
charged to CNEC credit card 8611

o 1/26/12: $41.05 gasoline charged to CNEC Phillips 66 Conoco credit card
in Denver, Colorado

e 1/26/12: $117.30 Table Mountain Inn, dining room charged to CNEC visa
credit card ending in 8611

o 1/28/12: $32.72 gasoline charged to C\IEC Phillips66 Conoco gas card in
Denver, Colorado

e 1/29/12: $712.30 departed Residence Inn Marriott —four (4) guests, one
room. (handwritten notation on receipt says “fundraiser”)

o 1/29/12: $29.97 gasoline charged to CNEC Phillips66 Conoco gas card in
Colby, KS

o 1/29/12: $40.57 gasoline charged to CNEC Phillips66 Conoco credit card
in Wellington, KS

o 1/29/12: $37.93 Golden Corral charged to CNEC credit card 8611 for
party of four (4). The receipt lists kids 4-6 $3.99; child buffet 10-12 yrs
$5.99; two (2) Sunday buffets for $20.98 and (2) soft drinks for $3.96.
Handwritten notation on receipt states “fundraiser™.

o 1/29/12: $1.90 and $.95 CNEC Pike Pass charges for CNEC 2007 Honda
CRV.
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Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used CNF funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT XIV: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

f On or about April 26, 2013 through April 28, 2013, defendant misappropriated

: Foundation funds by paying for the out-of-state travel funds of a sitting tribal Council
member, Cara Cowan Watts, during a purported Foundation business trip to Dallas,
Texas, and by taking Defendant’s family on said trip and paying for the lodging and
meals of her family.

Said conversion included the following transactions:

s $839.02 spent on lodging for Defendant, Defendant’s family, a CNF
employee and Councilor Watts on April 26 and. April 27, 2013 at the
Residence Inn, Dallas, Texas, including a $100 pet charge to Defendant’s
room.

e §292.76-Volos Taverna Restaurant, Dallas, Texas for meals for Defendant,
Defendant’s family, the CNF staff member, their family members and
Councilor Cara Cowan Watts. The purchase included five carafes of
rhojitos (alcoholic beverage).

1 o $461.72-Mi Piaci Ristorane Italiano, Dallas, Texas, on or about April 27,

: 2013 for food and drink (including $76.00 for wine), for Defendant,

- Defendant’s family, and others.

! Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used CNF funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust. “

COUNT XV: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452'

During a period from February 28, 2013, through June 3, 2013, defendant
misappropriated Foundation funds by paying for the planned out-of-state travel for
both defendant and a sitting tribal Council member, Cara Cowan Watts, by
purchasing unauthorized airlines tickets to Phoenix, Arizona.

Said conversion included the following transactions:

o Airline tickets for defendant and Cara Cowan Watts purchased from
Southwest Airlines on or about February 28, 2013, in the amount of $343.80
each, plus an additional $25.00 each for upgrades, for a total of $737.60.

o Airline change fees for approximately $140.00 on or about June 3, 2013, to

10
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change the above Southwest Airlines tickets for dates in October, 2013

Said airline tickets were originally purchased for travel on June 8, 2013, but were changed at

defendant's direction on May 31, 2013, for travel to occur on October 25, 2103, three months afier

i defendant's final date of employment under the Severance Agreement, resulting in additional charges
being assessed, and that said trip never occurred.

ALL OF SAID CRIMES being subject to punishment as defined at 21 CNCA § 10, to
: wit: a term of imprisonment for not more than one (1) year or a fine of five thousand ($5,000.00)
or both and any civil remedies as provided by 21 CNCA § 1760(B) for each separate crime.

FURTHER, that the Defendant is an “Indian™ as defined in 25 U.S.C. § 450b(d), being a
Citizen of the Cherokee Nation, and that the defendant did, within and without the Cherokee
Nation including within Indian Country, cominit the above crimes, contrary to the Cherokee
Nation statutes cited above, and against the peace and dignity of the Cherokee Nation.

f Diane Hammons
Speczal Prosecutor .
‘ Cherokee Nation Office of the Attorney General

i CHEROKEE NATION ) s

The undersigned, of lawful age, and being first duly sworn states that she has read the
above and foregoing Amended Complaint, and that the statements contained thersin are true and

correct o the best of his informeation and belief.

Special Prosecutor

P
Subscribed and sworn-to before me this)Y\day of \ ([);f(,% » 20109,
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Witnesses:

(The mumnerous witnesses are listed on a separate notice provided to defense counsel).

12
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EXHIBIT A-11
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION 2,0 ISHAR 25 . A 10- 56
CRIMINAL DIVIS_ION CHEROIEE HATION
DISTRICT COURT

CHEROKEE NATION, ) KRISTI MOHCOOYEA
) COURT CLERK
Plaintiff, )
)
Vs, ) CM 2016-54
)
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, )
)
Defendant. )

SUPPLEMENT TO MOTION TO DISQUALIFY
RALPH KEEN I AS SPECIAL PROSECUTOR

Comes now Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland, (“Gilliland”) and submits this supplement
to her Motion to Disqualify Ralph Keen II (“Keen™) from representing the Cherokee Nation
(“Nation”) in the above style case because he is disqualified by law.

Mr. Keen filed for and was certified as a candidate for Council District 8 in the 2019

Cherokee Nation elections.! '

Accordi.ng to Attorney General Opinion 2017-CNAG-01 (Jan. 10, 2017), contracted
attorneys of the Nation are employees of the Nation.2 Mr. Keen as a Special Prosecutor
employed by the Attorney General Office is an employee of the Nation.

Mr. Keen was required by the Cherokee Nation Election code, 26 CNCA § 31, to resign

his employment from the Cherokee Nation prior to filing for office.> The last day to withdraw

! https://cherokeephoenix.org/Article/Index/62939

* Attorney General Opinion 2017-CNAG-01 (Jan. 10, 2017), footnote 1 states, “The Chief’s independent legal
counsel is an independent contractor and not typically considered an “employee” for legal purposes; however, this
Constitutional provision includes “any person employed in any capacity” by the Nation or its entities. For the
purpose of the Constitutional analysis regarding conflict of interest, an independent contractor of the Nation is
considered an employee.”

326 CNCA § 31 B. Prerequisites for Filing. In addition to the general eligibility qualifications set forth in
subsection A herein, a candidate must not be in violation of any of the following at the time of filing:

1. The candidate shall not be an employce of the Cherokee Nation, including any corporation, agency or other
entity which is at least fifty-one percent owned by the Cherokee Nation, as of the date of filing or at any time

-1-
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from candidacy was ten (10) days after the deadline for filing for office (which was on or about
February 4, 2019). Mr. Keen has not withdrawn his candidacy and it is now too late.* By filing
for office and not timely withdrawing, Mr. Keen constructively resigned from Special
Prosecutor, is prohibited by law from being employed by the Nation, and may not represent the
Nation in this case as Special Prosecutor.

Therefore, the Court should disqualify Mr. Keen as Special Prosecutor because he is
prohibited from employment with the Cherokee Nation after he filed for Council office pursuant
to 26 CNCA § 31.

Submitted this 25™ day of March, 2019.

/ss/
Chadwick Smith
CNBA #08
22902 S494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464

chad@chadsmith.com
918 453 1707

Certificate of Delivery

1, Chadwick Smith, do hereby certify that on the 25M day of March, 2019, pursuant to
CNDC Rule 7, I emailed a true and complete copy of the foregoing document to the persons
listed
below:

{ss/
Chadwick Smith

Diane Hammons

Special Prosecutor
Cherokee Nation

Office of Attorney General
P.O. Box 141

thereafter if elected provided, that an incumbent serving in an elective office shall not be deemed to be an employee
for purposes of this Section.

4 26 CNCA § 36. Filing of Candidacy; Withdrawal of Candidacy. D. Withdrawal of Candidacy. Any candidate who
wishes to withdraw from the election shall have the opportunity to do so by providing a formal written notice to the
Election Commission ten (10) working days after the deadline for filing.

-2-
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Tahlequah OK 74465
adianehammons@gmail.com

Ralph Keen II

Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
KeenLawOK@gmail.com
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EXHIBIT A-12
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION 2019 APR -3 PH 1: 23

CRIMINAL DIVISION C‘HE ROKEE HATION
CHEROKEE NATION, g KRDI:%T{E%%) T?é §§§§£A
Plaintiff, ) - :
Vs. ; CM 2016-54
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, ;
Defendant. ;

MOTION TO STRIKE AMENDED COMPLAINT ON GROUNDS THE
STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS EXPIRED FOR ADDITIONAL COUNTS CHARGED

Comes now Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland, (“Gilliland”) and moves to dismiss the
Amended Complaint with five new counts or charges (Count X through Count XV) filed on
March 20, 2019 by the Cherokee Nation (“Nation”). Because the statute of limitations expired
before it filed its Amended Complaint in this case, this Court has no subject matter jurisdiction.

In all counts of the Complaint, the Nation alleges that Gilliland defrauded the Cherokee
Nation Education Foundation (“CNEC”) pursuant to 21 CNCA 1452,

For the offense of criminal embezzlement (21 CNCA 1452), the Nation’s statute of
limitation depends on whether the subject assets or property belong to either the Cherokee
Nation and its subdivisions, or to others who are not the Nation or instrumentalities. According
to 22 CNCA § 152 A, the Nation must commence its prosecution within seven (7) years if at
issue are “the assets or property of the Cherokee Nation or other subdivision thereof.”
Otherwise, the last line of 22 CNCA § 152 A applies, i.e. “or the crime of embezzlement,
pursuant to 21 CNCA §§ 1451 through 1462, shall be commenced within five (5) years after the

discovery of the crime.”’ Therefore, the determination of whether the statute of limitations for

122 CNCA § 152. Limitations in general
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the additional Counts of the proposed Amended Complaint expires in seven (7) or five (5) years
turns on whether CNEC is a subdivision of the Cherokee Nation.

The Amended Complaint alleges offense dates as follows: Count X (July 12, 2013), '
Count X1 (June 12, 2013), Count XII (January 28, 2013), Count XIII (January 29, 2012), Count
XIV (April 28, 2013), and Count XV (June 3, 2013). The new offenses charged in the Amended
Complaint are all separate offenses from those charged in the Complaint and Information filed
on July 28, 2016 and occurred longer than five years ago from filing date of the Amended
Complaint. In other words, the five (5) year statute of limitations for the Amended Complaint
allegations expired before July 12, 2018. The five (5) year statute of limitations applies in this
case because CNEC is not a subdivision of the Nation.

The Nation’s highest court, the Judicial Appeal Tribunal (“JAT”) in In Re: Legislative
Acts 2-96, 11-96 and 17-96- JAT 02-09 (2005) answered the question of whether or not CNEC
was “an independent corporation separate from the Cherokee Nation” or was a “defacto an
instrumentality of the Cherokee Nation.” See Opinion at page 1. The pivotal issue in the case
was whether the “Cherokee Nation Non-Profit Corporations Act” and its amendments (“Act”)
were constitutional because it provided that the funds raised by CNEC were not funds of the
Nation and were not subject to the restriction of the Cherokee Nation Constitution Article X,
Section 7 prohibiting “any donation by gift or otherwise, to any individual firm, company,

corporation or association without the approval of the Tribal Council.” Opinion at page 2.

A. Prosecutions for the crimes of bribery, embezzlement of public money, bonds, securities, assets or property of the
Cherokee Nation or other subdivision thereof, or of any misappropriation of public money, bonds, securities, assets
or property of the Cherokee Nation or other subdivision thereof, falsification of public records of the Cherokee
Nation or other subdivision thereof, and conspiracy to defraud the Cherokee Nation or other subdivision thercof in
any manner or for any purpose shall be commenced within seven (7) years after the discovery of the crime;. . .

or the crime of embezzlement, pursuant to 21 CNCA §§ 1451 through 1462, shall be commenced within five (5)
years after the discovery of the crime.
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The JAT held the “funds raised (by CNEC) are the funds of the Corporation (CNEC) and
not subject to the Council’s approval for receipt or disbursement.” The JAT further held it was a
conflict of interest for the Principal Chief and Councilmembers to sit on CNEC’s board. In other
words, the JAT ruled that CNEC was “an independent corporation separate from the Cherokee
Nation” and was not a defacto “instrumentality of the Nation.” Because CNEC is an

" independent corporation separate from the Nation, it is not a subdivision of the Nation.

So that there is no question about the JAT’s decision that CNEC was an independent and
separate entity, the Petitioner Councilmembers? framed their appeal as:

1. The first issue in this case to be decided is whether the Cherokee Nation has

any control of the Cherokee Nation Education Corporation (CNEC) or whether

the CNEC is an entity separate from the Cherokee Nation that may operate

independent and without any control from the Cherokee Nation. I Re: Legislative

Acts 2-96, Petitioners’ Trial Brief, (April 8, 2004), paragraph 1, page 1.
The Respondent Nation® replied:

9. The record requires the conclusion that the Council authorized the operation of

the administration of CNEC as an independent entity. Respondent’s Trial Brief

(May 23, 2003), paragraph 9, page 8.
Squarely before the JAT was the question of whether or not the CNEC was independent and
separate from the Nation and the JAT ruled that it was.

Because CNEC is independent and separate from the Nation, it is not a subdivision of the

Nation. Therefore, the applicable statute of limitation pursuant to 22 CNCA § 152 A in this case

is five (5) years of the alleged offense.

2 Petitioners were seven Cherokee Nation Councilmembers represented by Todd Hembree as attorney for the
Council and who is now the Nation’s Attomey General who appointed A. Diane Hammons and Ralph Keen as
Special Prosecutors for his office in this case.

3 The Nation was represented by Julian K. Fite, Cherokee Nation General Counsel, and A. Diane Hammons,
Director Cherokee Nation Justice Department who submitted the Trial Brief.
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On March 20, 2019, the Nation through its attorney Defendant’s attorney filed an
Amended Complaint adding five counts of “Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation, 21 CNCA
1452 to the original Complaint and Information. Each of those additional counts alleged an
offense date before July 28, 2013.

The statute of limitations expired for new alleged offenses (Count X-XV) in the Nation’s
Amended Complaint and Information before it filed it. Because the prosecution was not
commenced within the time required by 22 CNCA § 152 A, the Court has no subject matter
jurisdiction and must strike its Amended Complaint.

Submitted this 3™ day of April, 2019.

/ss/
Chadwick Smith
CNBA #08
22902 S494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464

chad@chadsmith.com
918 453 1707

Certificate of Delivery

I, Chadwick Smith, do hereby certify that on the 3™ of April, 2019, pursuant to CNDC
Rule 7, I emailed a true and complete copy of the foregoing document to the persons listed
below:

/ss/
Chadwick Smith

Diane Hammons

Special Prosecutor

Cherokee Nation

Office of Attorney General
P.O. Box 141

Tahlequah OK 74465
adianchammons@gmail.com

Ralph Keen II

Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
KeenLawOK@gmail.com
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EXHIBIT A-13
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION

CRIMINAL DIVISION
CHEROKEE NATION, )
Plaintiff, ;
. ; CM 2016-54
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, ;
Defendant. ;

SECOND DEMURRER TO COMPLAINT AND AMENDED COMPLAINT

ON GROUNDS NO CRIME IS ALLEGED AND MOTION TO DISMISS BECAUSE THE
EMBEZZLEMENT STATUTE DENIES DEFENDANT DUE PROCESS

Comes now Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland, (“Gilliland”) and demurs to the criminal
Complaint filed herein on July 28, 2016 and the Amended Complaint filed on March 20, 2019;
and moves the Court to dismiss the above styled and numbered case.

On March 19, 2019, this Court deferred ruling on Defendant’s Demurrer to Complaint
and Motion to Dismiss until after the Nation had the opportunity to file an Amended Complaint.
The Nation’s Amended Complaint filed March 20, 2019 is identical to the Complaint with the
exception of the addition of additional Counts X-XV. Therefore, the Nation has had the benefit
of the arguments of Gilliland’s demur filed on February 14, 2019 but has continued to elect
charging Defendant pursuant to 21 CNCA §1452 and not 1o provide any specific allegations
regarding Gilliland’s intent and appropriation required by due process. It is abundantly clear the
Nation had notice that it failed to provide specific facts in its Complaint necessary to afford
Gilliland due process but wholly failed to do so with the filing of its Amended Complaint.

Gilliland committed no crime as alleged by the Nation because the Nation’s criminal law

provides that embezzlement over $50 value is nof punishable by law. The Complaint is defective

because it makes no factual allegations to prove Gilliland’s fraudulent intent and appropriation.
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Without any uncertainty or ambiguity, the Complaint fails to apprise Gilliland of the punishment
she faces if convicted in violation of the U.S. Constitution Fifth and Sixth Amendments and the
Cherokee Nation Constitution Article 111, Section 3. For these reasons, the Court should dismiss
this case.
The Nation charged Gilliland with criminal embezzlement pursuant to 21 CNCA §1452.'

The specific punishment for embezzlement is found at 21 CNCA § 1462.2 Although 21 CNCA
§1452 deems embezzlement a crime and provides some elements, 21 CNCA § 1462 provides for
additional elements and the criminal punishment for embezzlement.> The Nation alleges the
Complaint’s offenses are punishable as prescribed by 21 CNCA §10; however, special statutory
punishment provisions supersede general punishment provisions, which in this case is 21 CNCA

§ 1462.°

21 CNCA § 1452. Embezzlcment by officer, etc.. of corporation. etc.
If any person, being an officer. director. trustee. clerk. servant or agent of any association, society or corporation,
public or private. fraudulently appropriates to any use or purpose not in the due and lawful execution of his trust,
any property which he has in his possession or under his control by virtue of his trust, or secretes it with a fraudulent
intent to appropriate it to such use or purpose he is guilty of embezzlement.
221 CNCA § 1462. Punishment for embezzlement
Every person guilty of embezzlement is punishable in the manner prescribed for feloniously
stealing property of the value of that embezzled. except that every person convicled of cmbezzlement of any item
valued at less than Fiftv Dollars ($50.00) shall be punished for a crime. And where the property embezzled is an
evidence of debt or right in action. the sum due upon it. or secured to be paid by it. shall be taken as its value.
? Cherokee Nation Codification Act of 2016 LA-02-16 2/18/2016
Section 3. Substantive Provision of Law: Repeals: Additions: and Amendments. All laws included in the Cherokee
Nation Code Annotated (2014). and laws appended thereto. are hereby affirmed as the positive law of the Cherokee
Nation. All laws and parts of laws not included in the Cherokee Nation Code Annotated (2014) publication arce
repealed. The repeal shall not revive any law previously repealed. nor shall it affect any right already existing or
accrued or any action or proceeding already taken. unless otherwise provided in the Cherokee Nation Code
Annotated (2014).

21 CNCA § 11. Specilic statutes in other titles as governing—Acts punishable in diflerent ways—Acts not
otherwise punishable by imprisonment
A. If there be in any other titles ol the laws of this Nation a provision making any specific act or omission criminal
and providing the punishment therctor. and there be in this penal code any provision or scction making the same act
or omission a criminal offense or prescribing the punishment therefor. that offense and the punishment thereof. shall
be governed by the special provisions made in relation thereto. and not by the provisions of this penal code.
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It is fundamental only those actions which are precisely described and enacted as crime
are punishable.” Any question as to what the statute identifies as a crime and punishment must
be construed against the Nation.

L. ARGUMENT

Proposition One: The Nation’s allegations of embezzlement over $50 per offense are not
punishable.

21 CNCA § 1462 provides only those acts of embezzlement where the property or asset
is less than $50 is a crime. 21 CNCA § 1462 provides:

Every person guilty of embezzlement is punishable in the manner prescribed for

feloniously stealing property of the value of that embezzled, except that every

person convicted of embezzlement of any item valued at less than Fifty Dollars

(850.00) shall be punished for a crime. (Emphasis added.)

The “exception” provision of 21 CNCA § 1462 is the operative and controlling language
of the section, therefore its meaning is that only those embezzlement offenses where the
property is less than $50 is punishable.

Why? First, the Nation has no crime of “feloniously stealing property.”

Second, even if the Nation had enacted a crime of “feloniously stealing property,” under
21 CNCA § 1462 punishment would be administered in the same “manner,” contemplated in
first part of 21 CNCA § 1462. This means the process of administering punishment not the
substantive term of punishment.

Third, 21 CNCA § 1462 provides an exception that controls the entire first section, i.e.

“every person convicted of embezzlement of any item valued at less than Fifty Dollars ($50.00)

shall be punished for a crime.”” 21 CNCA § 1462 provides for no other “prescribed or

>21 CNCA § 2. Criminal acts arc only those prescribed—"This code” defined No act or omission shall be deemed
criminal or punishable except as prescribed or authorized by this code.
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authorized” crimes or punishment. See 21 CNCA § 2. 21 CNCA § 1462 clearly provides that an
allegation of embezzlement is only punishable as a crime if the property or asset is valued under
850.00; there is no crime specified in the Nation’s criminal code for embezzlement of property
valued over $50. In other words, if the property or asset is valued over $50.00, the allegation of
embezzlement is not punishable under the Nation’s laws.

The Nation has the sovereign right to define the terms of a crime and in this instance, it is
consistent with a policy of judicial economy for the Nation to prosecute minor offenses of
embezzlement in the Nation’s court and defer prosecutor of allegations of embezzlement of
greater value of property or assets to the State of Oklahoma pursuant to 21 OK Stat § 21-1451
(2014) or the federal government pursuant to 18 U.S. Code § 1163. The victim alleged in this
case is a non-Indian and not an instrumentality of the Nation. It should be noted the Nation
alleges for each Count of the Complaint that property or asset value exceeds $50 for that Count.

Therefore, the Complaint herein fails to state a punishable crime against Gilliland and the
case should be dismissed.

Proposition Two: The Complaint against Gilliland is defective and the Court should
dismiss the criminal prosecution pursuant to Fed. Rules Crim. Pro. 12 (b) (3) (B) (iii) and

(v)-
The Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provides that a defect in the Complaint may be

raised by Motion.®

8 Rule 12. Pleadings and Pretrial Motions
(a) PLEADINGS. The pleadings in a criminal proceeding are the indictiment. the information. and the (b) PRETRIAL
MOTIONS.

(3) Motions That Must Be Made Before Trial. The following defenses. objections. and requests must be raised
by pretrial motion if the basis tor the motion is then reasonably available and the motion can be determined
without a trial on the merits :

(B3) a defect in the indictment or information. including:
(iii) tack of specificity:

(v) tailure to state an oflense
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1. The Complaint does not specify the facts for each element for the crime of
embezzlement.

The first defect in the Complaint is that it does not specify for each Count the elements
of how Gilliland: 1) fraudulently, 2) did not use CNEC property in the due and lawful execution
of her trust, and 3) appropriated the property for her use or purpose. In many of the Counts, the
Nation merely alleges Gilliland went on a trip paid for by CNEC. There is no allegation that
CNEC officials disapproved of the travel, that she hid the expenses from CNEC or that the trip
was solely for her benefit and not the benefit of CNEC. It is common for organizations’ staff to
go on business trips paid by the organization and often take family or associates with them.
Those actions only become criminal when the facts that show that Gilliland fraudulently used
CNEC’s credit card by deceit and for her use without the consent of the Board and failed to
reimburse the Board when requested.

For example, the Nation wholly failed to allege any facts for the Counts involving travel
expenses that Gilliland deceived the Board, the Board did not consent, and they were not for the
benefit and purpose of CNEC. There is no allegation the Board ever denied the authorization of
the travel expenses or use of its credit card, or asked Gilliland for reimbursement. Without clear
and specific facts alleged showing that she traveled at CNEC’s expense without its consent and
by deceit, there is no crime and the case must be dismissed.

For example, Count 1 alleges Gilliland defrauded CNEC by taking a trip to California
from February 9 to 12, 2012. The Complaint fails to allege that this trip was not for the purpose
or benefit of CNEC or it was disapproved by the CNEC Board. The Complaint fails to allege she
was not authorized to use CNEC’s credit card for the expenses or that she was not allowed to
reimburse CNEC for personal expenses on its credit card. The Complaint characterizes the trip as

a “family trip”” but wholly fails to allege the trip was not a business trip authorized by the Board
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or within Gilliland’s authority as Executive Director to decide to go on that trip, or that Gilliland
deceived the Board from authorizing, ratifying, or approving the expenditures.

To demonstrate the insufficiency of the Complaint, Gilliland made three presentations in
behalf of CNEC on February 11, 2012, and February 12, 2012 during the trip that the Nation
charges in Count I as criminal embezzlement. A brochure mailed by the Cherokee Nation was
sent to all Cherokee citizens in the southern California area inviting them to attend a presentation
by Gilliland, as Executive Director of CNEC, on scholarship opportunities. See Exhibit “B”
Brochure to February 14, 2019 Demurrer. In Count I, the Nation charges that the usual and
customary expenses for a routine and common business trip such as airport parking, car rental,
hotel costs, gasoline for the rental car and meals were paid from embezzled funds. Count I
wholly fails to allege facts that show these common, ordinary and necessary expenses connected
with a business trip for CNEC were criminally appropriated and without the consent of the
Board. In fact, Count I fails to allege this trip was not approved, authorized or ratified by the
CNEC Board even for Gilliland, its Executive Director.

The Complaint must contain sufficiently detail alleged facts to adequately apprise
Gilliland of the nature of the charges against her. Did CNEC not approve her travel to promote
its scholarship efforts in its behalf? Did CNEC not approve her husband’s and children’s air
fare? Did Gilliland’s husband and children contributed to the program authorized by CNEC?
Did CNEC deny Gilliland authority as Executive Director to pay for reasonable and customary
travel expenses for the trip promoting CNEC and providing its services? Did CNEC not benefit
from the presentations? Where these expenses not reviewed and ratified by the Board? Did
CNEC not allow Gilliland to use its credit for personal expenses and then be reimbursed?

What makes these expenditures criminal?
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Without the Nation pleading the facts constituting deceit by Gilliland and the lack of
CNEC’s consent to use its credit card for alleged expenses, there is no crime. Even if CNEC did
not consent, there is no crime without facts showing Gilliland deceived CNEC. The allegations
of the Complaint without showing of deceit and lack of CNEC’s consent would be the subject for
a civil action which CNEC #has filed contemporaneously with this criminal case for the same
allegations. The Nation must plead facts in this case which show Gilliland’s intent to deprive
wrongfully the owner or the person who entrusted the property or else the Complaint if defective
and must be dismissed.

The Nation must afford Gilliland not only a Complaint that contains all of the elements of
the offense (whether or not such elements appear in the statute), but one that is sufficiently
descriptive to permit the defendant to prepare a defense. Hamling v. United States, 418 U.S. 87,
117, reh'd denied, 419 U.S. 885 (1974); Russell v. United States, 369 U.S. 749, 763-72 (1962);
United States v. Hernandez, 891 F.2d 521, 525 (5th Cir. 1989), cert. denied, 495 U.S. 909
(1990).

What is required in the Complaint are factual allegations rather than a mere recitation of
the acts or practices proscribed by the offense allegedly committed. An example of an
indictment that failed this test is provided by United States v. Nance, 533 F.2d 699 (D.C. Cir.
1976). The indictment in Nance charged a false pretense violation pursuant to the D.C. Code. It
listed the name of each victim, the date of the false representation. the amount each victim lost,
and the date the sum was paid to the defendants, but was fatally defective as a consequence of its
failure to specify the false representation which induced the victims to pay the money to the
defendants. See also United States v. Brown. 995 F.2d 1493, 1504-05 (10th Cir.)(indictment

charging controlling premises and making them available for storing and distributing cocaine
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base insufficient because failed to state how control was exercised), cert. denied, 114 S.Ct. 353
(1993).

Because the Nation’s Complaint fails to allege specify facts showing Gilliland’s intent to
deceive CNEC and take its funds and credit cards for her use and without consent of the Board,
the Complaint is defective and the case must be dismissed.

2. The Complaint fails to apprise Gilliland of the punishment she faces if convicted.

The United States Constitution Sixth Amendment provides that “In all criminal
prosecutions, the accused shall . .. be informed of the nature and cause of the accusation.”

The United States Constitution Fifth Amendment and the Cherokee Nation Constitution
Article III, Section 3 provisions for due process requires that a criminal statute may be
constitutionally void for vagueness.

In United States v. Batchelder, 442 U.S. 114, the U.S. Supreme Court stated:

It is a fundamental tenet of due process that "[n]Jo one may be required at peril
of life, liberty or property to speculate as to the meaning of penal statutes.”
Lanzetta v. New Jersey, 306 U.S. 451, 453, 59 S.Ct. 618, 619, 83 L.Ed. 888
(1939). A criminal statute is therefore invalid if it "fails to give a person of
ordinary intelligence fair notice that his contemplated conduct is forbidden.”
United States v. Harriss, 347 U.S. 612, 617, 74 S.Ct. 808, 812, 98 L.Ed. 989
(1954). See Connally v. General Construction Co., 269 U.S. 385, 391-393, 46
S.Ct. 126, 127-128, 70 L.Ed. 322 (1926); Papachristou v. Jacksonville, 405 U.S.
156, 162, 92 S.Ct. 839, 843, 31 L.Ed.2d 110 (1972); Dunn v. United States, 442
U.S,, at 112-113, 99 S.Ct., at 2197. So too, vague sentencing provisions may post
constitutional questions if they do not state with sufficient clarity the
consequences of violating a given criminal statute. See United States v. Evans,
333 U.S. 483, 68 S.Ct. 634, 92 L.Ed. 823 (1948); United States v. Brown, 333
U.S. 18, 68 S.Ct. 376, 92 L.Ed. 442 (1948): ¢f. Giuccio v. Pennsylvania, 382 U.S.
399, 86 S.Ct. 518, 15 L.Ed.2d 447 (1966).

In determining whether a Complaint sufficiently informs the defendant of the offense and
punishment, courts require the Complaint to have a common sense construction. United States v.

Drew, 722 F.2d 551, 552-53 (9th Cir. 1983). The Nation must apprise Gilliland of what she
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must be prepared to meet includes the Sixth Amendment’s specificity requirement. The
specificity requirement ensures that Gilliland only has to answer to charges alleged with specific
facts in the Complaint in order to permit preparation of her defense, and that she is protected
against double jeopardy. See United States v. Haas, 583 F.2d 216 (5th Cir.), reh’g denied, 588
F.2d 829, cert. denied, 440 U.S. 981 (1978).

In United States v. Carl, 105 U.S. 611 (1881), the United Supreme Court held that "in an
indictment... it is not sufficient to set forth the offense in the words of the statute, unless those
words of themselves fully, directly, and expressly, without any uncertainty or ambiguity, set
forth all the elements necessary to constitute the offense intended to be punished." Vague
wording, even if taken directly from a statute, does not suffice.

In Apprendi v New Jersey, 530 U.S. 466, (2000), the U.S. Supreme Court held that any
fact that increases the maximum penalty for a crime must be charged in an indictment submitted
to a jury, and proven beyond a reasonable doubt." Also see United States v. Cook, 84 U.S. (17
Wall.) 168, 174 (1872), (If an offense cannot be accurately and clearly described without an
allegation that the accused is not within an exception contained in the statutes, an indictment that
does not contain such allegation is defective.)

Although the Court may allow the Nation to amend the Complaint to provide specificity
as to some elements which the Nation has elected not to do. there is no way for the Nation to
change the punishment provisions of 21 CNCA § 1462. 21 CNCA § 2 provides, that “No act or
omission shall be deemed criminal or punishable except as prescribed or authorized by this
code.” Under the Nation’s law, embezzlement over $50 value for property is not a crime. Other

than construing 21 CNCA § 1462 as providing that embezzlement is punishable for offences
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where the value of the property or assets are less than $50, there is no common sense or logical
interpretation to apprise Gilliland of the nature and punishment of embezzlement.

21 CNCA § 1462 is the specific punishment provision for embezzlement- not 21 CNCA
§ 10, the general punishment provision. 21 CNCA § 1462 refers to a non-existing crime
(feloniously stealing property) for the manner of punishment then provides only where the
property is valued at less than $50 is punishable. Other than interpreting that 21 CNCA § 1462
punished embezzlement only for property under $50.00, it is incongruent, void for vagueness,
and cannot “fully, directly, and expressly, without any uncertainty or ambiguity” inform
Gilliland as to the property value element and punishment for embezzlement.

Because 21 CNCA § 1462 is not clear and understandable on its face, it violates the U.S.
Constitution Fifth and Sixth Amendment and Cherokee Nation Constitution Article I1I, Section
3 due process requirements for adequate notice.

IL. CONCLUSION

Because the Complaint and Amended Complaint are defective as to providing facts as to
the Fifth and Sixth Amendment specificity requirement of how Gilliland deceitfully appropriated
CNEC'’s assets to her use including lack of consent by the Board, the Court should dismiss this
case. In the Complaint or the Amended Complaint, there are no factual allegations that the
Board did not authorize, approve (explicitly or implicit) or ratify the expenditure of the subject
funds or that Gilliland deceived the Board. The Court gave the Nation the opportunity to correct
this defect by operation of its February 14, 2019 ruling and it chose not to provide any specificity
as to intent or grounds for misappropriation. In spite of the Nation have notice of the infirmities

of its Amended Complaint, it did not change one word except to add Counts X- XV.

-10-
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Incurable by amendment of the Complaint as charged, Gilliland committed no crime
because each Count alleges embezzled property was valued in excess of $50, but pursuant to 21
CNCA § 1462, to constitute a punishable offense, the embezzled property value must be less
than $50.

The Court must dismiss this case because the Nation alleges offenses not a crime
pursuant to 21 CNCA § 1462 and 21 CNCA § 1462 is unconstitutionally vague and
incomprehensible as to the punishment imposed. Unless those words of (21 CNCA § 1462)
themselves fully, directly, and expressly, without any uncertainty or ambiguity provide notice of
the property value element and punishment, then Complaint is unconstitutionally void for
vagueness and must be dismissed.

If the Court must pause and scratch its head trying to figure out what 21 CNCA § 1462
means then it is constitutional void by vagueness.

This Court should sustain Gilliland’s Demurrer and dismiss this case.

Submitted this 3" day of April, 2019.

/ss/
Chadwick Smith
CNBA #08
22902 S 494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464

chad@chadsmith.com
918 453 1707

Certificate of Delivery

I, Chadwick Smith, do hereby certify that on the 3nd of April, 2019, pursuant to CNDC
Rule 7, I emailed a true and complete copy of the foregoing document to the persons listed
below:

/ss/
Chadwick Smith

Diane Hammons

-11-
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Special Prosecutor
Cherokee Nation

Office of Attorney General
P.O. Box 141

Tahlequah OK 74465
adianehammons@gmail.com

Ralph Keen 1

Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
KeenLawOK@gmail.com

-12 -
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EXHIBIT A-14
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATISN PR 26 PRI

CRIMINAL DIVISION - ] “ROUEE K LTi0N
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CHEROKEE NATION, ; KR‘%E h Mpgiggg ({ EA
Plaintiff, )

vs. 3 CM 2016-54

KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, ;
Defendant. ;

DEFENDANT’S REPLY BRIEF TO MOTION TO DISQUALIFY
RALPH KEEN II AS SPECIAL PROSECUTOR

Comes now Defendant Kimberlie¢ A. Gilliland, (“Gilliland™) and submits this Reply Brief
in support of her Motion to Disqualify Ralph Keen II (“Keen”) from representing the Cherokee
Nation (“Nation”) in the above style case because he is disqualified by Jaw.

Proposition One: Keen prosecuting the companion civil case subsequent to criminal case
increases his conflict of interest.

Predictably, Keen argues he can see no conflict of interest and because Gilliland’s civil
and criminal cases are not being tried simultaneously, there is no conflict. However, trying the
criminal case first increases his conflict. His duty in the civil case is to recover over 1 million
dollars in damages, including $928,000 in punitive damages.

By having the authority of the Special Prosecutor, Keen can weld the weight and power
of the Cherokee Nation to drive Gilliland to an unjustified trial seeking a verdict which can be
used against her in the civil case. Keen’s duty to seek justice in the criminal case is conflicted by
his duty in the civil case to get $928,000 in punitive damages. The demand for such an amount
for punitive damages in the civil case is ludicrous considering the charges including allegations
CNEC awarded scholarships to students unrelated to her and Gilliland paid for gas for a rental

car on a business trip.
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Keen is in the position to abandon a common sense of justice in the criminal case for
leverage in the civil case. Keen cannot serve two masters- one to pursue justice and fairness for
the Nation and the other to seek $928,000 in punitive damages for CNEC.

It appears the criminal case, with the threat of incarceration, was filed to gain unfair
leverage in the civil case. On November 2, 2018, Special Prosecutor Diane Hammons emailed
Gilliland’s attorney stating, “Attached is a Motion to Amend the criminal complaint (and draft
complaint) in Gilliland; we've added in some of the things that were mentioned in the civil
action.” Evidence of the criminal case being improperly used to gain advantage in the civil case
is the sobering fact that the criminal case has NEVER been investigated by any law enforcement
agency. This is an unheard-of breach of well-established criminal prosecution protocol and
procedure. This criminal case was not referred to the Federal Bureau of Investigation or even the
Cherokee Nation Marshal’s Office. Note that not one law enforcement officer is endorsed as a
witness in this case. The criminal case is nothing but an accommodation for CNEC; all the
Special Prosecutor did was take the civil petition, insert alleged violations of Cherokee law and
file it. There was no investigation or due diligence interviewing witnesses. The Nation didn’t
start any witness interviews until 30 months after it filed the case.

Even U.S. Special Prosecutor Mueller in his investigation of Russian collusion, had the
FBI performing investigations.

This criminal case has not been prosecuted as a criminal case, i.e., referral to law
enforcement for investigation, including interviewing witnesses, gathering and assembling of
evidence, and a recommendation for prosecution of a crime. This criminal case has proceeded as
an extension of the civil case, i.e., the addition of an occasional witness, continuing discovery,

and amendment of the criminal complaint to reflect the civil action.
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The Nation has not responded to dispositive motions in this case which require
independent judgement; not by the judgment of counse] motivated by recovering $1 million in
civil punitive damages. Those motions include:

1. Motion to Strike Amended Complaint on Grounds the Statute of Limitations
Expired for Additional Counts Charged, filed April 2, 2019.

2. Second Demurrer to Complaint and Amended Complaint on Grounds No Crime is

Alleged and Motion to Dismiss because the Embezzlement Statute Denies Defendant

Due Process, filed April 2, 2019.

Keen’s conflict is real and serious.
Proposition Two: Gilliland’s due process rights are not protected by a stay in the civil case.

Keen argues somehow his conflict goes away because there is a stay in the civil case
pending resolution of the criminal case. It does not. His conflict is the present conflict of his
duty in the criminal case, conflicting with his duty in the civil case. In his Response Brief at
footnote 1, Keen gives an example that after O.J. Simpson was acquitted of criminal charges, his
family brought a civil action. In the Simpson case, the prosecutors were not the attorneys in the
civil case and the cases were not brought simultaneously.

In Young v. U.S. Ex Rel. Vuitton Et Fils S. A., 780 F.2d 179 (1987), the U.S. Supreme -
Court addressed the case of where a federal court appointed the law firm representing a party in a
civil case to criminally prosecute the same opposing party for contempt in the same underlying
civil case. The Court held, “In a case where a prosecutor also represents an interested party;
however, the legal profession's ethical rules may require that the prosecutor take into account an
interest other than the Government's. This creates an intolerable danger that the public interest

will be compromised and produces at least the appearance of impropriety.’ See pages 802-809.

! https://caselaw. findlaw.com/us-supreme-court/481/787.html

-3-
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Keen’s conflict is greater in this case because the Attorney General appointed him to criminally
prosecute Gilliland not this Court.

Keen’s effort to distinguish Young is misplaced. The subject matter of Gilliland’s
criminal and civil case is identical just as was the case in Young case. Keen cannot see the
appearance of impropriety created when private civil counsel is invested with prosecutorial
authority of the Cherokee Nation to punish an adverse civil party in the same legal matter. This
Court should. Keen’s myopia about this conflict is evidence of his conflict. It should be the
highest duty and concern of the Office of Attorney General to avoid the appearance of conflict;
however Keen does not even consider his conflict should be reviewed.

Proposition Three: Keen is an employee of the Nation and has a constitutional conflict.

Keen thumbs his nose at the legal opinion of the Attorney General which carries the
weight of law until reversed by a court;” this is the same Attorney General who appointed him as
Special Counsel. According to Attorney General Opinion 2017-CNAG-01, contracted attorneys
of the Nation are employees of the Nation.® As a Special Prosecutor employed by the Attorney
General’s Office, Keen is an employee of the Nation. Urging this Court to ignore his boss’s
Opinion in this case demonstrates Keen’s conflict of interest by placing his interest to stay in this
case above following the law pronounced by his boss. Keen seems to be arguing the law does
not apply to him; that is an abandonment of the public interest and his duty to the Attorney

General’s Office. Is Keen arguing that his boss’s Opinion is wrong, or the constitution does not

226 § 105. B (4). To give an official opinion upon all questions of law submitted to the Attorney General by any
Member of the Tribal Council, the Principal Chief, the Deputy Principal Chief, or by the Group Leader or equivalent
of any Cherokee Nation board, commission or executive branch department, and only upon matters in which the
requesting party is officially interested. Said opinions shall have the force of law in Cherokce Nation until a
differing opinion or order is entered by a Cherokee Nation Court;

* Attorney General Opinion 2017-CNAG-01 (Jan. 10, 2017), footnote 1 states, “The Chief’s independent legal
counsel is an independent contractor and not typically considered an “employee™ for legal purposes; however, this
Constitutional provision includes “any person employed in any capacity” by the Nation or its entities. For the
purpose of the Constitutional analysis regarding conflict of intcrest, an independent contractor of the Nation is

-4-
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apply to him?

Keen tries to explain away Attorney General Opinion 2017-CNAG-01 because the
spouse of an employee can do business with the Nation; however, that does not change the fact
that Keen is in the same circumstance as Kalyn Free, i.e., a contract employee of the Executive
Branch. See attached Attorney General Opinion 2017-CNAG-01.

Contrary to Keen’s unfounded assertion that his status as an employee of the Cherokee
Nation “hinges his analysis on footnote No. 1 of the Opinion,” Attorney General Hembree stated
in the body of his Opinion:

In 2012, Cherokee Nation Tribal Council passed the "Cherokee Nation Ethics Act

of 2012." That Act repealed all previous ethics acts and amendments and is the

statute under which we analyze the question before us. Because this Act does not

include a separate definition of "employee" and is a continuation of limits

contained in Article X. 10 of the Constitution, it is correct to include "any person
employed in any capacity" as an employee under this Act” Therefore, the Chief’s
independent legal counsel is an employee for the purpose of this Act.

In reliance on the Cherokee Nation Constitution, the Attorney General opined that for
conflicts of interest purposes, contracted attorneys of Executive Branch are employees of the
Nation.

Keen tries to explain away his conflict by arguing the Election Commission determines
his eligibility to run for office. The question as to whether Keen disclosed to the Election
Commission that he was employed by the Nation and the Attorney General had opined he was an
employee of the Nation under the Constitution for purposes of identifying conflicts is not before
this Court. Regardless of the issue of Keen’s candor with the Election Commission, Gilliland is
not requesting this Court to disqualify him from his candidacy for office; she is moving to

disqualify him from representing the Nation in this case.

Mr. Keen was required by the Cherokee Nation Election code, 26 CNCA § 31, to resign

considered an employce.”
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his employment from the Cherokee Nation prior to filing for office.® He did not.

Keen further grasps at straws arguing that the Employees Administrative Procedures
Act, 52 CNCA Section 4 (L.A. 03-10) excludes employees who are considered independent
contractors. However, that definition is for the sole purpose of the Employees Appeal Board
extending a quasi-judicial termination hearing for Cherokee Nation employees. That act was
repealed by the Employee Access to Justice Act of 2017, (“EAJA™) LA 30-17, (11/21/2017).3
For purposes of the EAJA limited-term contract employees are excluded from having their
termination cause heard under its expedited provisions. The EAJA does not apply to Keen
because he is not being terminated by the Cherokee Nation. As a contract employee, Keen must
bring his termination action as a breach of contract in the District Court. The EAJA does not
change Keen’s constitutional status as an employee of the Cherokee Nation; all it does is change
his remedy for termination.

CONCLUSION

The legal principle that when anyone is vested with the power of the government,

especially to incarcerate someone, the standard for conflict of interest and appearance of

impropriety is greater, applies to the the Special Prosecutor. The role of the Court is to protect

26 CNCA § 31 B. Prerequisites for Filing. In addition to the general eligibility qualifications set forth in
subsection A herein, a candidate must not be in violation of any of the following at the time of filing:

1. The candidate shall not be an employee of the Cherokee Nation, including any corporation, ageney or other
entity which is at least fifty-one percent owncd by the Cherokee Nation, as of the date of filing or at any time
thercafter if elected provided, that an incumbent serving in an elective office shall not be deemed to be an employee
for purposcs of this Section.

* § 1002. Purpose

The purpose of this act is to expedite the judicial review of employment terminations and involuntary demotions by
employees of the Cherokee Nation and included entities as defined herein while providing due process and for cause
removal protections guaranteed by the Cherokee Nation Constitution.

§ 1003. Definition

As used in the Employee Access to Justice Act:

F. “Employee” shall mean a person who has been directly employved by the Cherokee Nation or included entities on
a regular, permanent, full-time basis for at lcast one (1) continuous year immediately prior to termination or
involuntary demotion. This term shall not include pari-time, seasonal, temporary, or limited-term contract
employees, regardless of the length of the contract.

-6-
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people from the overreach of the government including the Cherokee Nation.

The Court should disqualify Keen as Special Prosecutor because he is prohibited from
employment with the Cherokee Nation after he filed for Council office pursuant to 26 CNCA §
31, and he presents an appearance of impropriety, if not an actual conflict, by representing the
Nation in the criminal action and CNEC in the civil action on the same factual basis.

Submitted this 26™ day of April 2019.

/ss/
Chadwick Smith
CNBA #08
22902 S494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464
chad@chadsmith.com
918 453 1707

Certificate of Delivery

I, Chadwick Smith, do hereby certify that on the 26" day April 2019, pursuant to CNDC
Rule 7, I emailed a true and complete copy of the foregoing document to the persons listed
below:

/ss/
Chadwick Smith

Diane Hammons

Special Prosecutor
Cherokee Nation

Office of Attorney General
P.O. Box 141

Tahlequah OK 74465
adianehammons@gmail.com

Ralph Keen I1

Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
KeenLawOK@gmail.com
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Kristi Moncooyea

From: Chad Smith <chad@chadsmith.com>

Sent: Friday, April 26, 2019 10:02 AM

To: Kristi Moncooyea; Keen Law OK; Diane Hammons

Subject: <EXTERNAL> Gilliland CN 2016-54

Attachments: Exhibit to Gilliland Reply Brief 2017-CNAG-01-Conflict of Interest-Legal Counsel for

Principal Chief.pdf; 2019-04-26 Reply Brief to Disqualify Keen.pdf
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NOTICE: THIS EMAIL CONTAINS AN ATTACHMENT SENT FROM AN EXTERNAL SENDER.
IF YOU DO NOT KNOW THE SENDER OR WERE NOT EXPECTING THIS EMAIL,

DO NOT OPEN ANY EMAIL ATTACHMENTS AND DELETE THIS MESSAGE.

Thank you: The Cherokee Nation - Information Technology Department
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Please find attached for filing, a Reply Brief in the above case. Thanks Chad

Chad Smith,

OBA # 8312, CNCA #08
22902 S. 494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464
cell 918.453.1707
chadsmith.com
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EXHIBIT A-15
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION

CRIMINAL DIVISION
CHEROKEE NATION,
Plaintiff,
VS. Case No. CRM-2016-54
KIMBERLIE GILLILAND,
Defendant.

NATION’S RESPONSE IN OPPOSITION
TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO STRIKE AMENDED COMPLAINT
ON GROUNDS THAT THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS EXPIRED
FOR ADDITIONAL COUNTS CHARGED

COMES NOW Ralph F Keen II, the duly-appointed Special Prosecutor for Cherokee
Nation, who responds in opposition to the Defendant’s Motion to Strike Amended Complaint on
Grounds the Statute of Limitations Expired for Additional Counts Charged, and in support
thereof, would show the Court as follows:

Without debating whether Foundation is a governmental subdivision or not, the
Defendant was in fact charged with amended counts X through XV within five years afier the
discovery of the crime as required by 22 CNCA § 152, thus making counsel’s seven-year
arguments a moot point.

The Defendant, Kimberlie Gilliland, first assumed the responsibilities as Foundation’s
Executive Director on October 5, 2009. She continued in that position until her final departure
from employment on July 12, 2013. Her multiple acts of embezzlement as charged in the
Amended Complaint and Information occurred during her tenure as Executive Director, but were
concealed and went undiscovered until after her departure and completion of an independent
third-party audit, which was released on April 24, 2014 (attached hereto as Exhibit “A”). This

was specifically pled in paragraph no. 13 of the civil petition:

Page 1 of 5
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On April 24, 2014, an independent audit of the Foundation was
released. The audit report included a schedule of findings and
questioned costs. The findings noted the defendant "exercised
substantial control over all phases of the organization and was
able to circumvent board authority on a number of issues." The
report indicated that Foundation computers, data files and a printer
had been removed from the corporate offices. The report further
questioned travel expenses paid for non-employees and checks
issued to "Cherokee Media," a business owned and operated by
defendant.'

Only then did the Foundation B<->ard and Cherokee officials discover her criminal acts of
embezzlement as an officer of the corporation. The Cherokee statute of limitations regarding
criminal acts of embezzlement is found in 22 CNCA § 152, and is unambiguous:

Limitation in general

A. Prosecutions for the crimes of bribery, embezzlement of
public money, bonds, securities, assets or property of the Cherokee
Nation or other subdivision thereof, or of any misappropriation of
public money, bonds, securities, assets or property of the Cherokee
Nation or other subdivision thereof, falsification of public records
of the Cherokee Nation or other subdivision thereof, and
conspiracy to defraud the Cherokee Nation or other subdivision
thereof in any manner or for any purpose shall be commenced
within seven (7) years after the discovery of the crime; provided,
however, prosecutions for the crimes of embezzlement or
misappropriation of public money, bonds, securities, assets, or
property of any school district, including those relating to student
activity funds, or the crime of falsification of public records of any
independent school district, the crime of lewd or indecent
proposals or acts against children, pursuant to 21 CNCA § 1123,
the crimes of involving minors in pornography, pursuant to 21
CNCA § 1021.2 and 21 CNCA § 1021.3, the crime of sodomy, the
crime of criminal conspiracy, or the crime of embezzlement,

pursuant to 21 CNCA §§ 1451 through 1462 of Title 21 shall be
commenced within five (5) years after the discovery of the crime.’

Debating whether Foundation is a Nation subdivision or not is superfluous because the

Defendant has been charged within five years of discovery of the crimes. The independent audit

' Cherokee Nation District Court, CV-16-397, Cherokee Nation Foundation v. Gilliland; Pefition file marked July
27, 2016.
222 CNCA § 152 (A). Source, LA 10-90, eff. November 13, 1990. Amended, LA 24-02, eff. August 21, 2002.

Page 2 of 5
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was released on April 24, 2014, commencing the five year statute of limitations which would
have theoretically expired on April 24, 2019. The Nation’s motion to amend its original
complaint and information was filed on November 2, 2018, and upon the Court granting leave to
amend, the Amended Complaint and Information was filed on March 20, 2019, well within the
five-year period allowed under the statute.

In his motion, Mr. Smith erroneously argues that the date of occurrence triggers the five-
year statute, completely disregarding the discovery rule specifically sanctioned in the statute.
The discovery rule in white collar crimes such as embezzlement is well founded in public policy.
Without such a rule, astute criminals could affectively avoid criminal prosecution simply by
concealing their bad acts (as the Defendant was successful in doing up until the release of the
attached audit) until the statute expires. Counsel Smith is just simply wrong to suggest the
charges must be filed within five years of the date of occurrence. The proper trigger date was
upon discovery of the crime, which is this case was April 24, 2014. As a result, all amended
charges are timely filed within five years of discovery of the crimes, and the Defendant’s motion
should be denied in its entirety.

The Nation recognizes that the statute of limitations for criminal acts is distinct from the
statute for civil actions; however, both statutes are comparable in that they each provide for five-
years from the date of discovery.” When the two-year statute of limitation was raised as a
defense in the civil action, Foundation successfully persuaded the civil Court, the Honorable Bart

Fite (deceased) presiding, that the five-year statute applied, and that the 2013 audit release date

3 Comprehensive Access to Justice Act of 2016, Legislative Act 16-16, eff. August 12, 2016, § 11(D) states:
“Statute of limitations shall begin to run from the date when the plaintiff knew, through the exercise of reasonable
diligence, of all the elements of the particular cause of action. Whether a plaintiff knew of a particular element is a
Jact question to be determined by a jury.”

Page 3 of §
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was the date of discovery for all claims related to the unauthorized pay increases.* Judge Fite
found: “that the five (5) year statute of limitations applies to all of the causes of action contained
in Plaintiff’s Petition, and therefore, Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss is denied.” The Defendant
attempted to bring an interlocutory appeal of this decision before the Cherokee Supreme Court,
but by unanimous decision, the Court declined to hear it.* The criminal counts arise out of the
same transactions and occurrences as the civil case. Thus, the District Court has already adopted
the audit release date of April 24, 2014 as the date of discovery in the civil proceedings, and in
the sound discretion of stare decisis, this Court should likewise find in these criminal
proceedings.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays this Court deny Defendant’s Motion to Strike Amended
Complaint on Grounds the Statute of Limitations Expired for Additional Counts Charged in its
entirety.

Respectfully Submitted,

alph FKeen II,
Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960

(918) 696 - 3355

(918) 696 - 3576 Fax
KeenLawOK@gmail.com
For Cherokee Nation,
Office of the Attorney General
PO Box 948

Tahlequah, OK 74465

NBA 009

4 Cherokee Nation District Court, CV-16-397, Cherokee Nation Foundation v. Gilliland; beginning at the last
sentence of page lof Plaintiff"s Response and Combined Brief in Opposition to Defendant's Motion to Dismiss file
marked September 6, 2016, “The breach of her employment agreement went undiscovered until the release of the
2013 independent audit, and her severance agreement was executed in 2013, thus, both of these claims have been
timely brought within a five-year period.”

3 Id. Order Denying Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss and Motion to Stay file marked December 9, 2016.

6 See Cherokee Nation Supreme Court, SC-16-25, Cherokee Nation Education Corporation vs. Gilliland.
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Nation’s Response in
Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Strike Amended Complaint on (Grounds the Statute of
Limitations Expired for Additional Counts Charged was mailed the day of April, 2019, by
depositing it in the U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, or otherwise personally delivered to:

Chadwick Smith, Esq.
22902 S 494 Road

Tahlequah, OK 74464
chad@chadsmith.com

Megan [Lucas
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CHEROKEE NATION EDUCATION CORPORATION
TAHLEQUAH, OKLAHOMA

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTES
For Year Ended December 31, 2013

Audited By:

Robert St, Pierre, C.P.A,, P.C,
Certified Public Accountant
1113 N. Second Street

Stilwell, Oklahoma 74960
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ROBERT ST. PIERRE, CP.A,, P.C.
1113 N. Second Strect

Certified Public Accoimtant
' ' Stilwell, Oktshoma 74960

Phonc: (918) 696-4983
Fox: (918) 696-4867

1

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Cherokee Nation Education Gorporation
Tahlequah, Oklahoma

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial stétements of Cherokee Nation Education Corporation.
(a non-profit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31,
2013, and the related statement of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related

notes to the financial statements.
Managements Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.
Auditor’s Respansibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements In order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effecliveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly we express no such oplnion. An audit also
includes evaluation the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the financlal statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Basls for Qualified Opinion

No Accounting Controls are exercised over restricted funds and the disbursements of those funds.
We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate Audit evidence about the amounts recorded as
restricted funds. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to those

amounts were necessary.
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Accounting controls over the disbursement of funds for the payment of expenditures and payroll were
not sufficient and a great deal of those expenditures did not have appropriate supporting
documentation. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to those

amounts were necessary.

Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Opinion
paragraph, the financlal statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Cherokee Nation Education Corporation as of December 31, 2013, and the
changes in Its net assels and its cash flows for the year then ended In accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

A= 2~

Rabert St. Pierre, C.P.A., P.C.
April 28, 2014



Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 167 of 426

FINANCIAL
SECTION



Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 168 of 426

CHEROKEE NATION EDUCATION CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2013

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Checking/ Savings (Note B)
Restricted Cash
Schwab Investment Account
Accounts Recelvable (Note D)

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS
Equipment
Vehlcles
Accumulated Depreciation
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITES
Payroll Taxes Payable
Accrued Expenses

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Restricted Net Assels
Unrestricted Nel Assets

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2013

$ 55,255

3,850

684,962
___fol424

845,491

5,147
18,000

(13,575)

9,572

___ 855063

1,288
8,400

9,688
456,743
388,634

845,377

$ 855,063

The Accompanying Notes and Auditor’s Report are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements




Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 169 of 426

CHEROKEE NATION EDUCATION CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Period Ended December 31, 2013

2013
REVENUE & SUPPORT
Contribution - Cherokee Natlon Business 478,185
Contribution - Other 85,894
Unrealized Gain on Investments 114,053
Investments Earnings 35
TOTAL REVENUE & SUPPORT 678,167
PROGRAM SERVICES
Higher Education 187,017
ACT Preparation 75,284
Other Projects 97,661
Cherokee Natlon Business Projects 79,258
TOTAL PROGRAM SERVICES 439,220
MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL
Salaries & Benefits 46,602
Board & Personnel Expense 153,371
Rent and Maintenance 576
Supplles 116,388
Occupancy 21,059
Depreclation 4,501
Fundraising 79,555
TOTAL MANAGEMENT & GENERAL 422,052
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS (183,105)
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT . (695,551)
NET ASSETS PRIOR PERIOD 1,724,033
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 845,377

The Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements
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CHEROKEE NATION EDUCATION CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase in Net Assets (183,105)
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation 4,501
(Increase) Decrease Accounts Receivable (70,553)
Increase (Decrease) Accounts Payable (333,033)
Increase {Decrease) Payroll Liabilities (6,440)
Increase (Decrease) Accrued Expenses 4,200
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (584,430)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES '
(Increase) Decrease inInvestment Account 157,172
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 157,172
NET CHANGE IN CASH (427,258)
CASH AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 486,363
CASH AT THE END OF THE YEAR 59,105
ADDITIONAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest Paid -

The Accompanying Notes and Auditor’s Report are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements
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CHEROKEE NATION EDUCATION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

The Cherokee Nation Education Corporation was incorporated in 1998, as a
nonprofit Corporation under Title 18 of the Cherokee National Code Annotated.
In the year 2010, the Corporation started doing business as the Cherokee Nation

Foundation.

The Cherokee Nation Foundation is a nonprofit organization serving the
Cherokee Nation, a federally recognized tribe of more than 300,000 citizens. Its
mission is to provide higher educational assistance to the Cherokee people and
help revitalize the Cherokee language. The foundation is committed to financial
transparency and operates in accordance with a board of directors and a
Cherokee Nation Tribal Council advisory board. The Cherokee Nation
Foundation is a nonprofit, tax-exempt charitable organization under Section

501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The financial statements of Cherokee Nation Education Corporation have been
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, and accordingly, reflect all
significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Organization reports is financial position and activities in three classes of net
assets: (unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and
permanently restricted net assets) based upon the existence or absence of

donor-imposed restrictions.

The Organizations contributions received are recorded as unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the
existence and nature of any donor restrictions. In addition, the Organization has
received contributions with donor-imposed restrictions that would result in
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include restricted and unrestricted cash in demand deposit accounts, money
market accounts and certificates of deposit.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

There is no set policy to capitalize equipment. Purchased property and
equipment are capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment are
recorded as revenue at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported
as unrestricted contributions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset fo
a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use
and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment
are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how
long those donated assets must be maintained, the organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed
in service as instructed by the donor. The organization reclassifies temporarily
restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that time. Property and
equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method and Usage Allowance
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 40 Years

Equipment 5 Years

Vehicles 5 Years
ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

INCOME TAXES

Cherokee Nation Education Corporation is a Non-Profit Corporation of the
Cherokee Nation. The Tribe is exempt status is by treaty and implicit in its being
a Federally Recognized Indian Tribe. The Tribe does not hold, nor do it's
Corporations hold, nor is it required to obtain, a tax exemption letter from the

Internal Revenue Service.

EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through April 28, 2014 the date
which the financial statements were available to be issued.
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NOTE B: CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

Cash consists of the following:

2013
Arvest (Operating Account) ) 14,304
Arvest (Money Market Account) - 40,951
Arvest (Temporary Restricted) 3,850
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED CASH 59,105

NOTE C: INVENTORY

Expendable items are reflected as expenditures when purchased. Merchandise
on hand at December 31, 2013, is determined as immaterial; therefore no
inventories have been reflected in the financial statements.

NOTE D: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At Fiscal Year-end there were no accounts receivables outstanding. When an
account is determined to be uncollectible it is written off and charged to the
current year's operations or to allowance for doubtful accounts.  Accounts
Receivable, net of the estimated allowance at December 31, 2013, consisted of

the following:
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 2013
Current Receivables 101,424

30-60 Days Old .
Over 60 Days Past Due- -
Allowance For Doubtful Accounts -

TOTAL RECEIVABLES 101,424
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NOTE E: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Cherokee ‘Nation Education Corporation currently participates in a number of
private grant and contract programs. These programs are subject to audit by the
grantors or their representatives. Such audits could lead to requests for
reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenses disallowed under the terms of
the grant. Presently, Cherokee Nation Education Corporation has no such
requests pending, and in the opinion of management, any such amounts would

not be considered material.

NOTE F: INVESTMENTS

Cherokee Nation Education Corporation, currently values investments at market
value at the date of financial statements presentation. All accrued gains or losses
are reflected in the carrying amount of the investment. At year end the
Organization only had one investment account that was held by Charles Schwab.

NOTE G: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT -

A prior period adjustment is used to correct balances of prior issued financial
. statements when a material error is found in the current financial statements.

During 2013 it was discovered that endowment funds to OSU and TU were
carried on the books of Cherckee Nation Corporation. These funds were given
to OSU and TU as endowments for scholarships to be given to Native American
students. When Cherokee Nation Corporation gave these funds to OSU and TU,
they gave up all rights to the funds and authority over them, therefore they should
not be on the books of The Cherokee Nation Corporation, the result of this error
was to overstate assets by 666,767 in the prior year.

There was also errors in relation to restricted funds in the prior years the result of
this error was that Temporarily Restricted Net Assets was overstated by 28,784,

Both of these errors are corrected on the current financial statements on the
Statement of Activities.
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SUPPLEMENTARY

INFORMATION
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ROBERT ST. PIERRE C.P.A., P.C.
Certified Public Accountant

1113 N. Second St
Stilwell, Oklahoma 74950
Phone: (918) 656-4983
Fax: (918) 696-4867

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED :
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Cherokee Nation Education Corporation
Tahlequah, Okiahoma

We have audited the financial statements of Cherokee Nation Education Corporation (a non-profit
organization), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and have issued our report
thereon dated April 28, 2014 which was qualified. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards, issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Cherokee Nation Education Corporation's
internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinicn of the effectiveness on Cherokee Nation Education Corporation’s Internal
control over financlal reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion an the effectiveness
of the organization’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in the Internal control that might be,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However as described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deflclencles in internal control
that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A malerial weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficlencies described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses. (2013 - 1)

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance. We consider the deficiencies described In the accompany schedule of findings
and questioned costs to be significant deficlencies. (2013-2, 2013-3, 2013-4, 2013-5)
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Cherokee Nation Education
Corporation's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provislons of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinfon cn compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items (2013-6, 2013-7, 2013-8, 2013-9).

Cherokee Nation Education Corporation’s Response to Findings

Cherokee Nation. Education Corporation’s response to the findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Cherokee Nation
Education Corporation’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, We express na opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards In considering the entity's internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication [s not suitable for any other purpose.

iy VT

Robert St. Pierre, C.P.A., P.C.
April 28, 2014
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Cherokee Nation Education Corporation
Tahlequah, Oklahoma
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS & QUESTIONED COST
December 31, 2013

2013 - 1 Substantial Control by Executive Director

During the audit year the auditor became aware that the Executive Director exercised substantial
control over all phases of the organization and was able to circumvent board authority on a

number of issues.

Response

There Is one remaining board member from the prior Executive Director's tenure. The new board
has committed to improve oversight of the organization, including the executive director. For
instance, the executive director no longer has check signing authority. Also see our response to

2013-2 below.
2013 — 2 Segregation of Duties

The inherent limitation resulting from one employee performing functions that would normally be
divided among several employees were a larger number available presents a proper segregation
of accounting functions deficiency. A much larger staff would be necessary in order to assure
adequate internal accounting controls.

Response

Management plans to stari presenting a list of all disbursements to the board at each meeting
that details the check number, amount of the check, the vendor name and supparting
documentation for the disbursement. This listing will contain the range of check numbers to be
approved. The board of directors will alse have access to a copy of the bank statement and a

copy of the bank reconciliation.

New internal controls have also been implemented to address this recommendation. An outside
accountant was hired in December of 2013. We are in the process of writing procedures and
policies regarding the receipt of mail, deposits and disbursements of Foundation Funds.

This condition dictates that the board remains actively involved and continue to clesely monitor
the financial transactions of the organization.
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2013 - 3 Board Minutes

In conducting the audit field work it was noted that the board minutes were not very detailed. The
minutes did not provide enough detail to allow an oulside party to know everything that was
discussed at the board meetings. The minutes also did not note how each member voted.

Response:

Management plans to implement procedures to ensure that all board minutes are sufficiently
detailed to allow the reader of the minutes to determine what action was taken and how each
member voted on the action item. Management will also consider sending a member of
management to one of the open meeting open records classes that the Attorney General

conducts each year.
2013 - 4 Prior Year Audit

The prior year audit and recerds reflected endowment funds for both TU and OSU, these funds
were reported as assets on the books for CNEC, the amount reported was 666,766. This error
caused the prior year audit as well as the current year's assets to be materially overstated.

Response

We agree, Previous staff and auditor evidently did not have the knowledge and or skill to prepare
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. As noted
earlier, we have hired an ouiside accountant to prepare our monthly financial statements who is a
CPA and has expertise with nonprofit organizations. .

2013 — 5 Health Insurance Payments

When the Executive Director reached agreement on a severance package it does not appear that
any type of health insurance was a part of the agreement, however CNEC continued to pay the
former Executive Directors health insurance for the remainder of the year. -

Response

We agree that the health insurance was not part of the severance package. For part of the audit
year the organization either had an interim director or did not have a director at all. Because
there was an inadequate management transition and several accountant changes, the automatic
withdrawals to pay the former executive director's health insurance was not stopped upon her

termination.
2013 - 6 New and Surplus Computers

During the year the Executive Director replaced all the computers in the offices. The purchase
price of the computers was 8,231.00, this purchase does not appear to have been approved by
the board and it does exceed the spending authorization limit that was established by the board

for the Executive Director.

The Executive Director also took possession of some of the old computers and also removed
data files from the offices, the Executive Director paid CNEC 1,496, there does not appear {o be
board approval for this transaction and the iterns were not declared surplus by the board.

There also was a printer purchased in the prior year, possibly with grant funds, that we were
made aware of that was purchased with CNEC funds, this printer was not at CNEC offices and
we were fold it was taken by the former Executive Director and possibly given to another
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Cherokee Nation program. There was no board approval of the removal of the printer from
CNEC. -

Response

We agree. We are developing procedures for controls over assels of the foundation that will
include board approval regarding the dispasition of foundation assets.

2013 — 7 Donor Restricted Funds

During the course of operations CNEC receives contributions with donor imposed restrictions.
The management and board of directors of CNEC Is responsible for insuring that these funds are
expended according to the donor's wishes. The records available at CNEC offices were not
sufficient to determine if the donor Intentions were fulfilled. There Is good reason to believe that
funds were not expended in accordance with terms as set forth at the time of contribution.

Response

We partially agree. The records that are available are not sufficient to determine all donor
restrictions. However, we believe that all funds donated for scholarships have been expended to
provide scholarships according to donor instructions. As a matter of fact, the foundation has
expended more funds for certain scholarships than what the donors actually funded, due to poor
tracking of the remaining balances by the foundation. We believe that as of this date, we have
reconstructed the correct balances for all donor restricted funds.

All though we have memorandums of understandings{(MOU), with several donors, we are working
ta contact the donors of other funds that we still hold to develop a written MOU for each restricted
donation. Up to this point, we have been acting on verbal instructions from some donors. ’

2013 — 8 Travel Expenses

While traveling for various reasons the Executive Director appeared to have been paying
expenses, such as air fare, meals, and lodging for persens not affiliated with CNEC. : There were
not adequate records to determine if there was a business purpose or reason for the additional

traveling companions.

It was also noted that travel receipts were sometimes in the name of Cherokee Media (a
company partially owned by former executive director) however they were paid for with a CNEC

credit card.

Response

As of December of 2013 our documentation of travel expenses has improved tremendously. An
employee's request for travel expenditures includes documentation of the business purpose.
Although we do not know the business purpose for the Cherokee Media travel mentioned above,
we can foresee the possibility of the foundation paying other entities/persons travel relating to
foundation business. We will document the business purposes for those unusual trips.
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2013 — 9 Sunshine Ethics Act

Under the Sunshine Ethics Act we believe that employees of Cherokee Nation and CNEG are
prohibited from contracting with CNEC uniess they enter intc an extra duty contract. The former
Executive Director was aware of this via email from Chrissy Nimmo dated September 1, 2009,
however CNEC did issue at least one check to Cherokee Media for 988.00 of which the Executive

Director is a partner.

Response

We agree and will follow the Sunshine Ethics Act.
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EXHIBIT A-16
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION
CRIMINAL DIVISION

CHEROKEE NATION,
Plaintiff,
CM 2016-54

V.

KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND,

N N ma ' ' st St '

Defendant.

SUPPLEMENT TO SECOND DEMURRER TO COMPLAINT AND AMENDED
COMPLAINT N GROUNDS NO CRIME IS ALLEGED AND MOTION TO DISMISS
BECAUSE THE EMBEZZLEMENT STATUTE DENIES DEFENDANT DUE PROCESS

Comes now Defendant Kimberlic A. Gilliland, (*Gilliland™) and supplements her demur
to the criminal Complaint filed herein on July 28. 2016 and the Amended Complaint filed on
March 20, 2019; and moves the Court to dismiss the above styled and numbered case.

Gilliland committed no crime as alleged by the Nation because the Complaint is
delective; it makes no factual allegations to prove Gilliland's fraudulent intent and appropriation.

The Nation charged Gilliland with criminal embezzlement pursuant to 21 CNCA §1452."

The first defect in the Complaint is that it docs not specify for each Count the elements
of how Gilliland: 1) fraudulently. 2) did not use CNEC property in the duc and Iawfui cxecution
of her trust. and 3) appropriated the property for her use or purpose.

In fact. the record the Nation submitted shows Gilliland committed no fraud.

In the Nation’s Response in Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Strike Amended

Complaint on Grounds that the State of Limitations Expired for Additional Counts Charged.

' 21 CNCA § 1452, Embezzlement by officer. elc.. of corporation. cic.

If any person, being an officer, director. trustee, clerk. servant or agent of any association. society or corporation,
public or private. fraudulently appropriates (o any use or purpose not in the due and fawful execution of his trust.
any property which he has in his possession or under his control by virtue of his trusl. or seeretes it with a fraudulent
intent to appropriate it to such use o purpose he is guilts of embeszziement.

-
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("Response™) filed April 30. 2019, the Nation offered into the record as Exhibit “A™ the 2013
CNEC audit report by Robert St. Pierre. CPA. In the audit report, St. Pierre declares, “We
conducted our audit in accordance with audit standards generally accepted in the United States of
American and the standards applicable to financial audit contained in the Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (“Audit Standards™).? See
Response, Exhibit “A” page 10. The federal Audit Standards require:

9.40 Auditors should report a matter as a finding when they conclude, based on

sufficient, appropriate evidence, that fraud either has occurred or is likely to have

occurred that is significant to the audit objectives.
Nothing in St. Pierre’s 2013 CNEC' audit report indicates any fraud. See 2013 CNEC audit
report “Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cost™ pages 11-14. Under a duty of federal Audit
Standards, St. Pierre did not report any fraud which shows no crime was committed. He did not
report that Gilliland misused CNEC property in the due and lawful execution of her trust, or she
appropriated the property lor her use or purposc. i.c. the other elements of embezzlement. As a
CPA. St. Picrre also had a duty to report fraud as part of his audit report.?

In fact, St. Pierre’s 2013 audit report indicates Gilliland was within her authority to
travel, allow unaffiliated persons travel to be paid by CNEC. and award scholarships. It is telling
that the Board in responsc to CNEC audit report finding 2013-7 regarding whether donor funds

were restricted 1o donor’s wishes. responded. “lowever. we believe that all funds donated for

? United States Government Accountability Oftice by the Comptroller General of the United States. July 2018
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, 2018 Revision hiips: . www.gao.goviassets/700/693 136.pdf

AU Section 110 Responsibilities and Funcuons of dic Iidependdont Auditor
.02 The auditor has a responsibility to plan and pertorm the audit 10 obiain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. whether caused by error or fraud. 1 1 See section 312, Audi
Risk and Mareriality in Conducting an Andic. wnd section 316, Consideration of Frand in a Financial Staremen
Audir. The auditor's consideration of itlegal acts and responsibility Jor detecting misstalements resulting from illegal
acts is defined in section 317, Hlegal Acts by Ciienis. I or those Hlegal acts that are defined in that section as having
a dircct and material effect on the determination ol financial statement amounts, the auditor's responsibility to detect
misstatements resulting from such illegal acts is the same as that for error or fraud. [Footnote added. effective for
audits of financial statements for periods ending on or alter December 13, 1997, by Statement on Auditing Standards
No. 82. hitps:/“www.aicpa.org/Research/Standards AuditAtiest DownloadableDocuments /AU-001 10.pdf



Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 186 of 426

scholarships have been expended 1o provide scholarships according to donor instructions.”
Therefore, CNEC’s response to finding 2013-7 acknowledging the proper granting of
scholarships occurred contradicts the Nation’s allegation in Count XII that Gilliland gave,
“unauthorized scholarships to three different students who did not meet the criteria for the
scholarships.”

The Board in responding to finding 2013-8 that the Executive Director appeared to pay
travel expenses of persons not affiliated with CNEC, stated, “An employee’s request for travel
expenditures includes documentation of the business purpose. Although we do not know the
business purpose for Cherokee Media travel mentioned above, we can foresee the possibility of
the foundation paying other entities/persons travel] relating to foundation business.” Therefore,
CNEC’s response to finding 2013-8 acknowledges travel requests were reviewed by the Board
without objection and that it was not against Board policy for CNEC to pay for unaffiliated
person’s travel.

St. Pierre. the expert that the Nation relies on found no fraud. Fraud is the critical element
of embezzlement.

In addition. CNEC’s 2012 audit report reports no fraud. See Exhibit “A” is the 2012
CNEC Independent Auditor’s Report by Jim Rush. CPA released June 7. 2013. Rush was under
the same obligation to report lraud according the federal Audit Standards and CPA standards as
was St. Pierre. Ne found none.

Therefore. in addition to the many other reasons argued in previous and companion
motions. this Court should sustain Gilliland’s Demurrer and dismiss this case.

Submitted this 3" day of May. 2019.

/ss/

(o8]
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Chadwick Smith
CNBA # 08

22902 S 494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464
chad@chadsmith.com
918453 1707

Certificate of Delivery

1. Chadwick Smith. do hereby certify that on the 3nd of May, 2019, pursuant to CNDC
Rule 7. I emailed a true and complete copy of the foregoing document to the persons listed
below:

/ss/
Chadwick Smith

Diane Hammons

Special Prosecutor
Cherokee Nation

Office of Attorney General
P.O. Box 141

Tahlequah OK 74465
adianchammons@gmail.com

Ralph Keen 11

Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
KeenLawOK ¢igmail.com
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Member of the American Institute Member of the Ok{ahoma Society
of Certified Public Accountants of Certified Public Accountants
JIM RUSH
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

9726 East 42™ Street, Suite 230
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74146-3645
Telephone (918) 664-9180

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Cherokee Nation Foundation

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cherokee Nation Foundation
(a nonprofit organization) which comprise the statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2012, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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To the Board of Directors of
Cherokee Nation Foundation
Independent Auditors’ Report
Page 2

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Cherokee Nation Foundation as of December 31, 2012,
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

o ot

Certified Public Accountant
Tulsa, Oklahoma
June 7, 2013
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CHEROKEE NATION FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents — restricted $ 142,683
Cash and cash equivalents 343,680
Accounts receivable 30,881
Total current assets 517,244
Investments:
Unrestricted 344,960
Restricted : 525,949
Total investments 870,909
Other assets:
OSU Endowment - restricted 333,433
TU Endowment — restricted 333,333
666,766
Fixed assets:
Furniture and equipment 5,147
Automotive 18,000
23,147
Less: accumulated depreciation < 9,074>
. 14,073
Total assets $2,068,992
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals $ 344,960
Total current liabilitics/total liabilities 344,960
Net assets:
Unrestricted 388,634
Temporarily restricted 1,335,398
Permanently restricted -
Total net assets 1,724,032
Total liabilities and net assets $2,068,992

See notes to financial statements,
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CHEROKEE NATION FOUNDATION
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Income:
Contribution — Tribal Nation
Contribution — Other
Unrealized Gain on Investments
Investment Eamings

Total Income

Program Expenses:
Salary and Benefits

Continuing Education
Higher Education
ACT Preparation
Other Projects
Cherokee Nation Business Projects
Art Market Awards
Total Program Expenses

Management and General Expenses;
Salaries and Benefits

Board and Personnel Expenses
Rent and Maintenance
Supplies
Depreciation
Fundraising
Total Management and General Expenses

Total Expenses

Net Decrease in Net Assets
Net Assets: Beginning of Year

Net Assets: End of Year

See notes to financial statements,

$ 377,147
81,782
153,708

20,834

634,071

136,009
10,845
88,091
73,749
17,635
90,494
74,200

491,023

45,962
10,103
24,656
5,897
7,716

' 118,435
212,769

703,792

<69,721>

51,793,753

$1,724,032
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S
CHEROKEE NATION FOUNDATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
DECEMBER 31, 2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Change in Net Assets <§ 69,721>
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 7,716
Donated investment included in contributions -
Interest and dividends on investments < 20,834>
Net unrealized gain or (loss) on investments <153,708>
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts Receivable 21,619
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts Payable 340,335

Net cash provided by (used by) operating activities:

125,407

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Sale of investments 590,000

Addition of endowment <333,333>
Net cash provided by investing activities 256,667
Net increase or (decrease) in cash 382,074
Beginning cash 104,289
Ending cash 486,363

Supplemental Disclosure

Interest expense -

See notes to financial statements.
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CHEROKEE NATION FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Nature of Activities

Cherokee Nation Education Corporation (the Corporation) was incorporated in 1998, as a
nonprofit corporation under Title 18 of the Cherokee National Code Annotated. It has been
granted tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. In the
year 2010, the corporation started doing business as the Cherokee National Foundation.

The Corporation is organized exclusively for charitable and educational purposes with the
meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the United Sates Internal Revenue Code of 1996, as
amended, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code. In furtherance of
such purpose may:

a. Make distributions to corporations that qualify as exempt corporations under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or to individuals, or on behalf of
community groups under the provisions of the Cherokee Nation Education
Corporation.

b. Encourage and promote educational opportunities which shall include, but not be
limited to provision of instruction, educational services, and scholarships to
enrolled adult and minor citizens of the Cherokee Nation and any other federally
recognized tribe.

¢. To promote and preserve the Cherokee language, culture and history of the
Cherokee people.

Basis of Accounting

The Corporation’s accounting records are kept according to generally accepted accounting
principles found in the United States of America.

Financial Statements Presentation

The financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of Financial Accounting
Standards Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117,
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Corporations. Under SFAS No. 117, the
Corporation is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and
permanently restricted.




Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ  Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 195 of 426

CHEROKEE NATION FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Unrestricted net assets — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets -- Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that
will be met either by actions of the Corporation and/or the passage of time.

Permanently restricted net assets — Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations
that must be maintained permanently by the Corporation. The Corporation has no
permanently restricted net assets,

Revenues are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the related assets
is limited by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets.
Gains and losses on assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in
unrestricted net assets unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law.
Expirations of temporary restrictions on net assets (i.e., the donor-stipulated purpose has
been fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported as net assets
released from restrictions.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the
reported revenues and expenses. Accordingly, actual results could vary from those
estimates, ’

Income Taxes

Cherokee Nation Education Corporation has been granted tax-exempt status under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. No income tax is payable by the Corporation at
either the Federal or State level unless the income is unrelated to its exempt purpose. The
Corporation has no unrelated business income during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of preparing the statements of cash flows, cash includes demand deposits,
money market accounts and certificates of deposit with an original maturity date of three
months or less.
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CHEROKEE NATION FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost. Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated using either the
straight-line or an accelerated method over the estimated life of each asset. Maintenance
and repairs are charged to income as incurred, and renewals and betterments that extend
the life of existing fixed assets are capitalized. All fixed assets are depreciated for three
years.

Bad Debts

Management uses the “direct write-off” method in recognizing bad debts. Receivables are
charged to expense in the year they are deemed uncollectible.

Contributions, Grants and Promises to Receive

Contributions and grants are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the
Corporation that is, in substance, unconditional. The Corporation has adopted SFAS No.
116, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. Contributions
reccived are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
support depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. Support that is
restricted by the grantor or donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the
restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All other
restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net
assets, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when
a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement
of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Notc 2 — Temporarily Restricted

The Board of Directors has designated approximately $1,335,398 of temporarily restricted
net assets as funds functioning as endowment. This amount is invested, together with
future gifts to the fund, to accumulate income and capital within the fund to provide for
future support of programs and services.
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CHEROKEE NATION FOUNDATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012
Note 2 — Temporarily Restricted (Continued)
Restricted Applications

Balance 1-1-12 $1,360,323
Additions:

Donations 312,390

Income (loss) from investments 153,708

Available 1,826,421
Removals:

Programs < 491,023>
Balance 12-31-12 $1,335,398

Note 3 — OSU Endowment

The Cherokee Nation Foundation has donated $333,433 to the Oklahoma State University
Foundation to qualify for the Pickens Legacy Scholarship Match. The matching amount
will be contributed to the Fund when it is received by the University following
administration of Mr. Pickens’ estate. The purpose of this endowment is to provide
scholarships to the citizens of the Cherokee Nation.

Note 4 — TU Endowment

The Cherokee Nation Foundation has donated $333,333 to the University of Tulsa. The
University will match this amount with $666,667 in additional scholarships. The purpose
of this endowment is to provide scholarships to the citizens of the Cherokee Nation.
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EXHIBIT A-17
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION 013 AY |1, pjj o: 1,5
CRIMINAL DIVISION . !
CHEROKEE NATION

CHEROK.EE. NATION, ; K R?%@T'O%E?g@gz\
_ Plaintiff, ) o
V. ; CM 2016-54
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, ;
Defendant. g
ADDITIONAL BRIEFING

Comes now Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland, (“Gilliland”) and in accordance with the
Court’s May 6, 2019 Order allowing additional briefing files this brief.

The Amended Complaint is “void by vagueness” because it fails to adequately apprise
Gilliland of the elements of the crime and the punishment she faces if convicted in violation of
the U.S. Constitution Fifth and Sixth Amendments and the Cherokee Nation Constitution Article
111, Section 3. For these reasons, the Court should dismiss this case.

L STATUTES
21 CNCA § 2 provides, that “No act or omission shall be deemed criminal or punishable except
as prescribed or authorized by this code.”
21 CNCA §1452 provides: Embezzlement by officer, etc., of corporation, etc.

If any person, being an officer, director, trustee, clerk, servant or agent of any

association, society or corporation, public or private, fraudulently appropriates to

any use or purpose not in the due and lawful execution of his trust, any property

which he has in his possession or under his control by virtue of his trust, or

secretes it with a fraudulent intent to appropriate it to such use or purpose he is

guilty of embezzlement.

21 CNCA § 1462 is the specific punishment provision for embezzlement- not 21 CNCA § 10,

the general punishment provision which provides one year in jail and $5,000 fine.
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21 CNCA §1452 deems embezzlement a crime and provides some elements, 21 CNCA § 1462
provides for additional elements and the criminal punishment for embezzlement.!

21 CNCA § 1462 provides:

Every person guilty of embezzlement is punishable in the manner prescribed for
feloniously stealing property of the value of that embezzled, except that every
person convicted of embezzlement of any item valued at less than Fifly Dollars
(350.00) shall be punished for a crime. (Emphasis added.)

21 CNCA § 1703, provides:
Degrees of larceny. Larceny is divided into two degrees; the first of which is
termed grand larceny, the second petit larceny.

21 CNCA § 1704, provides:
Grand and petit larceny defined. Grand larceny is larceny committed in either of
the following cases:
1. When the property taken is of value exceeding Five Hundred Dollars
(8500.00);
2. When such property, although not of value exceeding Five Hundred Dollars
($500.00) in value, is taken from the person of another.
Larceny in other cases is petit larceny.

21 CNCA § 1705, provides:
Punishment for grand larceny. Grand larceny is punishable as a crime.

21 CNCA § 1706 provides:

Punishment for petit larceny. Petit larceny shall be punishable by a fine of not less

than Ten Dollars ($10.00) or more than Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00), or

imprisonment in the penal institution not to exceed six (6) months, or by both

such fine and imprisonment, at the discretion of the Court.

ARGUMENT

The Nation charged Gilliland with criminal embezzlement pursuant to 21 CNCA §1452.

The Nation argues that the part of 21 CNCA § 1462 which provides, “Every person guilty of

embezzlement is punishable in the manner prescribed for feloniously stealing property of the

! Cherokee Nation Codification Act of 2016 LA-02-16 2/18/2016

Section 5. Substantive Provision of Law; Repeals; Additions; and Amendments. All laws included in the Cherokee
Nation Code Annotated (2014), and laws appended thereto, are hereby affirmed as the positive law of the Cherokee
Nation. All laws and parts of Jaws not included in the Cherokee Nation Code Annotated (2014) publication are
repealed. The repeal shall not revive any law previously repealed, nor shall it affect any right already existing or

-2-
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value of that embezzled” refers to 21 CNCA § 1703; it provides, “Larceny is divided into two
degrees; the first of which is termed grand larceny, the second petit larceny.” There is no
pleading in the Amended Complaint that refers to 21 CNCA §§ 1703,1704, 1705, 1706.

However, the Nation by referencing 21 CNCA § 1703, 21 CNCA § 1462 becomes more
vague as to the elements and punishment of the alleged crimes and leads to an idiotic conclusion
that the punishment for embezzling property valued at less than $50 is the same for embezzling
property for over $500. The results of 21 CNCA §1462 incorporatiné 21 CNCA §§1704, 1705,
1706 based on the value of the embezzled property is:

o Less than $50, it is a crime punishable by 1 year and $5000 fine.

o Less than $500, but more than $50, it is Petit larceny punishable by a fine of not less than
Ten Dollars ($10.00) or more than Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00), or imprisonment in
the penal institution not to exceed six (6) months.

» More than $500, it is Grand Larceny punishable by 1 year in the penal institution and
$5,000 fine.

The Nation cannot make a straight face argument that the Council intended the same
punishment for embezzlement of property less than $50 and property more than $500, but half as
much jail time and fine for property between $50 and $500. 21 CNCA § 1462 is constitutionally
void because of its vagueness.

The Nation’s Special Prosecutor argued at the March 6, 2019 hearing that the criminal

statutes are written for judges and lawyers who must interpret and argue the statutes. That is not

accrued or any action or proceeding already taken, unless otherwise provided in the Cherokee Nation Code
Annotated (2014).
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true. A criminal statute is invalid if it "fails to give a person of ordinary intelligence fair notice
that his contemplated conduct is forbidden.”

There is no fair notice to defendants that 21 CNCA § 1462 refers to a non-existing crime
(feloniously stealing property) for the manner of punishment but the Amended Complaint on its
face only provides where the property is valued at less than $50, the offense is punishable. Other
than interpreting that 21 CNCA § 1462 punishes embezzlement only for property under $50.00,
it is incongruent, void for vagueness, and cannot “fully, directly, and expressly, without any
uncertainty or ambiguity” inform Gilliland as to the property value element and punishment for
embezzlement. 21 CNCA § 1462 becomes even more confusing and leads to an absurd result by
incorporating the larceny statutes, 21 CNCA §§1704, 1705, 1706.

Because 21 CNCA § 1462 is not clear and understandable on its face to a person of
ordinary intelligence, it violates the U.S. Constitution Fifth and Sixth Amendment and Cherokee
Nation Constitution Article III, Section 3 due process requirements for adequate notice.

This Court should sustain Gilliland’s Demurrer and dismiss this case.

Submitted this 14" day of May, 2019.

/ss/
Chadwick Smith
CNBA #08
22902 S 494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464

chad@chadsmith.com
918 453 1707

2 In Unifed States v. Batchelder, 442 U.S. 114, the U.S. Supreme Court stated: A criminal statute is therefore invalid
if it “fails to give a person of ordinary intelligence fair notice that his contemplated conduct is forbidden." United
States v. Harriss, 347 U.S. 612, 617, 74 S.Ct. 808, 812, 98 L.Ed. 989 (1954). See Connally v. General Construction
Co., 269 U.S. 385, 391-393, 46 S.Ct. 126, 127-128, 70 L.Ed. 322 (1926); Papachristou v. Jacksonville, 405 U.S.
156, 162, 92 S.Ct. 839, 843, 31 L.Ed.2d 110 (1972); Dunn v. United States, 442 U.S., at 112-113, 99 S.Ct., at 2197.
So too, vague sentencing provisions may post constitutional questions if they do not state with sufficient clarity the
consequences of violating a given criminal statute. See United States v. Evans, 333 U.S. 483, 68 S.Cl. 634, 92 L.Ed.
823 (1948); United States v. Brown, 333 U.S. 18, 68 S.Ct. 376, 92 L.Ed. 442 (1948); ¢f. Giaccio v. Pennsylvania,
382 U.S. 399, 86 S.Ct. 518, 15 L.Ed.2d 447 (1966).
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Certificate of Delivery

I, Chadwick Smith, do hereby certify that on the 14™ of May, 2019, pursuant to CNDC
Rule 7, I emailed a true and complete copy of the foregoing document to the persons listed
below:

/ss/
Chadwick Smith

Diane Hammons

Special Prosecutor

Cherokee Nation

Office of Attorney General
P.O.Box 141

Tahlequah OK 74465
adianehammons@gmail.com

Ralph Keen 11

Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
KeenLawOK@gmail.com
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EXHIBIT A-18
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION

CRIMINAL DIVISION
CHEROKEE NATION, )
Plaintiff, ;
\2 ; CM 2016-54
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, ;
Defendant. ;

DEFENDANT’S REPLY TO THE NATION’S RESPONSE
IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO STRIKE AMENDED COMPLAINT
ON GROUNDS THE STATUTE OF
LIMITATIONS EXPIRED FOR THE AMENDED COMPLAINT

In accordance with the Court’s May 6, 2019 Order allowing additional briefing, comes
now Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland, (“Gilliland”) and files this Reply Brief to the Nation's
Response to Defendant's "Response In Support Of Motion to Strike Amended Complaint on
Grounds the Statute of Limitations Expired for the Amended Complaint” (“Nation’s Brief™).

Proposition One Response: The Cherokee Nation Judiciary has not rejected the "Delayed
Discovery Rule.”

Although the Cherokee Nation courts have not adopted the "Delayed Discovery Rule,” it
is evident they have not rejected the rule as shown by the Nation’s the failure to cited any case
law supporting its position. Many decisions this court must make are ones of first impression for
this jurisdiction. Because the modern Cherokees Nation courts are young (since 1976), there is
not the body of case law that its sister jurisdictions have. That is why the Nation and Gilliland
cite foreign cases.

However, the bench mark for this case is the Cherokee Nation Constitution Article IlI,
Sections 2 and 3 which require due process. Due process requires a foreseeable and certain

statute of limitations. Does an open-ended statute of limitations comply with Cherokee Nation
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Constitutional standards for due process? It does not. The United States Constitution Fifth and
Sixth Amendments and the Cherokee Nation Constitution Article 111, Sections 2 and 3 provisions
for due process require that a criminal statute may be unconstitutionally void for vagueness.

As argued in companion briefs, a criminal statute that does not provide the defendant
notice of the elements of the crime, including the statute of limitations, that are “fully, directly,
and expressly, without any uncertainty or ambiguity” is void for vagueness. See United States v.
Carl, 105 U.S. 611 (1881).

In United States v. Batchelder, 442 U.S. 114, the U.S. Supreme Court stated, “It is a
fundamental tenet of due process that "[n]Jo one may be required at peril of life, liberty or
property to speculate as to the meaning of penal statutes." A criminal statute is therefore invalid
if it "fails to give a person of ordinary intelligence fair notice that his contemplated conduct is
forbidden.”

In essence, Special Prosecutor Keen argues that 21 CNCA §1452 has no statute of
limitations because it does not start until the allege victim subjectively “discovers” the offense.
In other words, the Nation is the only one who can say when and how they discover the alleged
offense and the defendant must take the Nation’s word for it. Pursuant to Keen’s argument, the
Nation could “discover” offenses twenty years from now when CNEC installs a new board and
the Nation finally got around to reading archived audit reports, and then the statute of limitations
would be begin thirty years after the date of the alleged offense.

Even under that theory, the Amended Complaint should be dismissed because the Nation
was required to plead when and how it discovered the offense after concealment or fraud; it
failed to do so. even when it was granted leave to file its Amended Complaint.

As a non-profit board, CNEC has a duty to read the financial and program reports before
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it and ask questions. The CNEC Board is a fiduciary board, not an advisory board. The CNEC
board was responsible for the fiscal affairs of the foundation and to use due diligence to execute
their responsibilities. It is telling that the Nation has not pled, averred, or argued that the CNEC
board did not discharge its due diligence. 1f the CNEC board discharged its fiduciary duty and
found no wrongdoing, then there is no crime. There are no factual allegations that Gilliland
concealed any financial records from the Board; fiscal transactions reports were prepared by an
outside accountant and submitted to the Board.

There is no averment in the Amended Complaint of any concealment by Gilliland to
justify extending the statute of limitations. Keen argues the 2013 Audit Report alerts the CNEC
Board as to alleged embezzlement. However, the Audit findings cited by Keen do not. Keen
cites the 2013 audit finding which supposedly charged CNEC with knowledge of embezzlement,
i.e. Gilliland "exercised substantial control over all phases of the organization and was able to
circumvent board authority on a number of issues."" This language hardly excused the CNEC
Board from exercising its duty of diligence to discover any offense for the previous two years
when the financial documents were presented to it on a periodic basis. Further, it is a Directors’
job to have “substantial control over all phases of the organization” especially a small one like
CNEC, and the audit did not say how or what issues she was “able to circumvent board
authority.” In fact, the audit report Finding 2013-2 states, “A much larger staff would be
necessary in order to assure adequate internal accounting controls.” The 2013 Audit report did
not say anything or report any activities different than what was presented to the Board
periodically during the previous two years. The CNEC board supervising Gilliland and two
CPAs did not find any wrongdoing; the Amended Complaint does not give any facts that the

actions Gilliland took, with oversight of the Board, which constitutes criminal concealment.
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In other words, the 2013 Audit report did not discover any embezzlement and it provided
no more of an opportunity for the CNEC, by exercising reasonable due diligence, to discover
wrongdoing than it had by reviewing the periodic financial and program reports it received the
previous two years.

Keen exposes weakness of his case in the Nation’s Brief where he states, “Thus, to the
extent Horn applies, the statute began to run only after offense had been "discovered" by way the
2013 audit, released on April 24, 2014, when the board was charged with knowledge of both (1)
the act and (ii) its criminal nature.” What acts and what criminal nature are reported in the Audit?
See Nation’s Brief at page 4. The Delayed Discovery Rule would charge the Board “with
knowledge of both (i) the act and (ii) its criminal nature” every time it did or should have
reviewed financial statements, signed checks, reviewed invoices, reviewed credit card
statements, outside accounts posted quick book entries, issued 1099s and w-2s, signed and
certified tax returns, and heard operational and program reports. The transcript excerpts in
Keen’s civil case against Gilliland do not illustrate concealment, they demonstrate that the
witnesses did not remember events that took place five (5) years prior to the deposition. No
witness testified that Gilliland hid any information from or deceived CNEC board members.

It is telling that Keen argues that “sworn testimony confirms that the Defendant was so
thorough in her concealment and deception that the Board of Directors had no idea of her
multiple acts of embezzlement until after her departure from employment and the release of the
2013 audit,” but none of the statements cited by Keen remotely supports his irresponsible and
hollow hyperbole. See Nation’s Brief page 2. In essence, because a board member did not
remember about Gilliland’s severance pay five years later is not an excuse for not knowing about

it and the rest of the Amended Complaint allegations in 2012. Apparently, the CNEC board
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signed Gilliland’s severance check, issued her W-2 for the year, and completed the non-profit
corporation tax returns which with the exercise of minimal diligence would have alerted them to
any offense, if any had existed. If Gilliland actually paid herself the severance that Keen claims,
he would have presented the check signed by her. He has not, because it was signed by a Board
member. The reality of this case is that the CNEC Board did not discover “multiple acts of
embezzlement” because there were none.

The proper date of discovery is identified by Keen in the Exhibits to the Nation’s Brief.
In Exhibit “C,” the partial Deposition of Shelley Butler-Allen, she testified the Board was given
spreadsheets prepared by accountants at their quarterly board meetings.  See page 38. That is
the date of discovery unless a specific expenditure was earlier noticed to Board members such as
travel requests, contract approvals and payments signed by Board members, oral reports, and
other such documents approved by Board members.

Further, if the Nation is confident in 21 CNCA §1452 as written, there is no need for the
Nation to pepper the record with excuses of the Board’s ignorance of the alleged offenses after
five years from the date of occurrence. See Nation’s Brief pages 3-5. All the Nation had to do is
plead the specifics of fraud or concealment by Gilliland. It did not.

Proposition Two Response: Criminal pleading standards must be more strictly construed
that the pleadings in civil actions.

Citing Oklahoma statutes, Keen argues civil pleading standards do not apply to criminal
cases. However, where the Nation is trying to imprison a defendant, the criminal statute must be
construed narrowly. Even the Attorney General agrees with this principle of law as illustrated in
his opinion, “Because the Election Code section in question may attach criminal penalties to any
violation thereof, the statue must be narrowly construed. “ Attorney General Opinion 2015-

CNAG-04 (March 5. 2015). The same principle applies to 21 CNCA §1452. Therefore, Keen’s
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argument is without merit.

Proposition Three Response: Judge Fite did not previously find that the 2013 Audit Release
Date was the date of discovery for claims relating to the alleged unauthorized pay
increases.

The Nation’s Brief on this point confirms that Judge Fite did not find “that the 2013 audit
release date was the date of discovery for certain claims in the civil petition.” Keen argues,
“While his order does not specifically address it, the briefs and oral arguments before the Court
confirm that claims relating to the unauthorized pay increases (as did all of acts of
embezzlement) went undiscovered until the release of the 2013 audit.”

It should go unsaid that if a Judge’s order does not state a finding of fact or law, then the
Judge did not make a finding of fact or law. Most lawyers would be delighted that by the mere
filing a brief with an argument means the Court found in the lawyer’s favor. If that is how it
works, the parties do not need a record or a Judge. Further, this is a separate case; it is not
Keen’s civil case against Gilliland. The parties are not the same. The rulings in the civil case do
not apply in this case, especially where Keen has not plead with specific facts in the Amended
Complaint why the 2013 Audit is the date of discovery.

In her “Response in Support of Motion to Strike Amended Complaint on Grounds the
Statute of Limitations Expired for the Amended Complaint,” filed May 3, 2019, Gilliland

provided exhibits of Judge Fite’s order showing he did not make the finding that Keen alleges.

Proposition Four and Five Responses: CNEC had a duty of reasonable diligence to
discover the alleged offense.

Keen argues that the victim has no duty to exercise reasonable diligence to discover
offenses and provides transcripts which show absolutely no concealment. Gilliland adopts the
arguments she made in Proposition One Response of this brief regarding CNEC’s duty of due

diligence.
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It is worth noting that although Mr. Keen makes inflammatory and baseless accusations
that “the Board was continuously mislead and deceived by Defendant Gilliland” and
“(Gilliland’s) skill as being a master manipulator “(Nation’s Brief page 6), the Amended
Complaint does not plead one allegation with facts of concealment. CNEC, the Nation and the
Special Prosecutors (as Keen asserts is a team of four including Diane Hammonds and two
Assistant Attorney Generals) have had five years since the 2013 Audit Report to investigate and
plead concealment. All that Keen has to show for five years of investigation is wild hyperbole
and several board members saying they don’t remember what happened five years ago.

The Delayed Discovery Rule is the Nation’s affirmative defense that the five year statute
of limitations beginning with the date of offense does not apply. Even after this Court gave the
Nation the opportunity to file an Amended Complaint, the Nation failed to plead with specificity
why it did not file the charges within the stature of limitations.

What is lost on the Nation is that it has the burden of proof and pleading. 1t has failed to
allege when and how Gilliland concealed any offenses from the CNEC Board to entitle it to file
any of the charges outside the five-year statute of limitation.

After the blustering is over, the Nation’s argument boils down to that the statute of
limitations for 21 CNCA §1452 is five years or whenever we get around to it.

This Court should dismiss this case on grounds of denial of due process.

Submitted this 24" day of May, 2019.

/ss/
Chadwick Smith
CNBA #08
22902 S 494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464

chad@chadsmith.com
918 453 1707
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Certificate of Delivery

1, Chadwick Smith, do hereby certify that on the 24th of May, 2019, pursuant to CNDC
Rule 7, I emailed a true and complete copy of the foregoing document to the persons listed
below:

/ss/
Chadwick Smith

Diane Hammons

Special Prosecutor
Cherokee Nation

Office of Attorney General
P.O. Box 141

Tahlequah OK 74465
adianehammons@gmail.com

Ralph Keen I1

Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
KeenLawOK@gmail.com
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In The District Court of Cherokee Nation

Cherokee Nation, /e JuL -2 PH 3 30
Plaintiff, ACKEE KA o
3 [RICT COURT
V. CM 2016-54 KPL»TI mTof*é(l;OOYtA
Kimberlie A Gilliland,
Defendant.

Order on Demur to Complaint

Demur to complaint is overruled. The law is sufficient to provide a defendant the
knowledge not to commit embezzlement. The information is sufficient to provide the defendant
with full due process and knowledge of the complaint against her. The District Court is the
appropriate court for this case to be heard and has full jurisdiction over it and the parties hereto,
including but not limited to the authority to declare a provision of law constitutional or
unconstitutional subject to appellate review. :

It is so ordered. %

District Court Judge

Certificate of Mailing

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that on the date file stamped above, that I emailed,
faxed, hand delivered, and or mailed a true and correct file stamped copy of the foregoing
document to the following person(s):

Chadwick Smith, chadf@chadsmith.com

Diane Hammons, adianehammons@gmail.com
Ralph Keen II, keenlawok@gmail.com

Todd Hembree, todd-hembree{@cherokee.org
Chrissi Nimmo, chrissi-nimmo(@cherokee.org
John Young, john-young@cherokee.org

Courtney Jordan, courtney-jordan(@cherokee.org C—(Eg V\/(ﬁ
W W)(M\/

District Court Clerk \_
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In The District Court of Cherokee Nation
MIJUL -2 PH 3:30
Cherokee Nation,

Nat CHIROAEE HATION
Plaintiff, DISTRICT COURT
KRISTI MONCOOYEA
v, CM 2016-54 COURT CLERK

Kimberlie A Gilliland,
Defendant.

Order on Motion to Disqualify

Motion to disqualify denied in part and dismissed in part as moot. Young v. U.S. Ex Rel.
Vuitton Et Fils S. A., 780 F.2d 179 (1987), is not Cherokee Nation law, but is also
distinguishable from the case at hand in that in Young counsel within the same case,
concurrently, was appointed to prosecute opposing party on a contempt charge within the same
exact case. In other words in Young the Court gave one party power over the other party in the
same case giving the power welding party an unfair advantage. In the cases at hand counsel’s
goal is similar in the civil and the criminal case, not to push for a different allegation because of
legal posturing in an underlying matter. Further, the civil case has been stayed until after the
criminal case has been disposed of, and if restitution is awarded in the criminal case it would be
unrecoverable in the civil case. Therefore the motion to disqualify is denied. Counsel is not a
candidate for office at this time therefore arguments regarding said issue are dismissed as moot.

de ity

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that on the date file stamped above, that I emailed,
faxed, hand delivered, and or mailed a true and correct file stamped copy of the foregoing
document to the following person(s):

It is so ordered.

Dlstrlct Court Judge

Certificate of Mailing

Chadwick Smith, chad@chadsmith.com

Diane Hammons, adianehammons(@gmail.com
Ralph Keen 11, keenlawok(@gmail.com

Todd Hembree, todd-hembree(@cherokee.org
Chrissi Nimmo, chrissi-nimmo{cherokee.org

John Young, john-young{@cherokee.org
Courtney Jordan, courtney-jordan/@chcrokee.org CH I v/(()w h

Distric{ Court Cletk ™
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In The District Court of Cherokee Nation
018 UL -2 PH 3 30

Cherokee Nation, €E HATION
1nti v 133
Plaintiff, , IéICT COURT
OEJCOGY‘-'A
v. CM 2016- §4 STIRT Bl R
Kimberlie A Gilliland,
Defendant.

Order on Motion to Strike Amended Compliant

Motion to strike is denied. Amendment was filed within the statute of limitations.
Because of the alleged deception on the part of the defendant the clock does not start running on
embezzlement cases until the discovery of the alleged wrong doing. Defendants do not get to
hide behind their own alleged wrong doing as a defense to a crime being committed.

Dlstnct Court Judge %%

Certificate of Mailing

1t is so ordered.

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that on the date file stamped above, that | emailed,
faxed, hand delivered, and or mailed a true and correct file stamped copy of the foregoing
document to the following person(s):

Chadwick Smith, chad@chadsmith.com

Diane Hammons, adianechammons{@gmail.com
Ralph Keen I1, keenlawok(@gmail.com

Todd Hembree, todd-hembree(@cherokee.org
Chrissi Nimmo, chrissi-nimmodcherokee.org

John Young, john-voung@cherokee.org y

Courtney Jordan, courtney-jordan@cherokee.or \./\(& W(
C oo |
<

District Cdurt Clerk
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Cherokee Nation,
Plaintiff,

V.

Kimberlie A Gilliland,
Defendant.

In The District Court of Cherokee Nation

Order Re-Setting Arraignment

2013 JUL -2 PH 3: 31

CM 2016-54

CHERORLE NATIOH
DISTRICT CGURT
KRISTI MOMCOOYEA
COURT CLERX

Defendant was previously set to be arraigned on May 6, 2019 at 10:00AM. Before the
arraignment could take place Defendant filed a motion to strike the complaint and a demur to the

complaint.

Pursuant to 22 CNCA §§ 497 and 498, the motion to strike the complaint and the demur
to the complaint were heard without the defendant being arraigned. The Court has now denied
the motion to strike the complaint and overruled the demur to the complaint, and pursuant to 22
CNCA §§ 503 and 511 the defendant must now plead forthwith. Further, if defendant does not
plead, judgment may be pronounced.

The Court hereby Orders Defendant, Kimberlie A Gilliland, to present herself for
arraignment on July 19, 2019 at 10:00AM, at the Cherokee Nation Courthouse, located on the
second floor of the WW Keeler Tribal Complex at 17675 S Muskogee, Tahlequah, OK 74464.

Any and all other previous orders of the Court, including the Criminal Trial Notice and
Scheduling Order filed herein on March 6, 2019, shall remain in full force and effect.

T ihe Lot

District Court Judge

It is so ordered.
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Certificate of Mailing

1, the undersigned, do hereby certify that on the date file stamped above, that I emailed,
faxed, hand delivered, and or mailed a true and correct file stamped copy of the foregoing
document to the following person(s):

Chadwick Smith, chad/chadsmith.com

Diane Hammons, adianechammons@gmail.com
Ralph Keen II, keenlawok@gmail.com
Todd Hembree, todd-hembree@cherokee.org

Chrissi Nimmo, chrissi-nimmo(@cherokee.org

John Young, john-young@cherokee.org
Courtney Jordan, courtney-jordan(@cherokee.org

District Court Clerk
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION
‘ WI9AUG -1 A 9: 13

CRM-2016-54 CHERGHEE KATION
DISTRICT COURT
CHEROKEE NATION v. KRIST! HORCODYEA
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND COURT CLERK
COURT MINUTE

This matter came on for arraignment on the 19 day of July, 2019. Appearing were
John Young and Ralph Keen representing the Cherokee Nation; the defendant fails to

appear.

Upon request of the nation, the Court forfeits the or bond and a bench warrant is
issued for defendant’s failure to appears. The scheduling order entered on March 6, 2019

is set aside.
IUDGE OF THE DISTRICT c%%




Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 224 of 426
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1

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION .

CRIMINAL DIVISION
CHEROKEE NATION,
Plaintiff, -
Vs, ' Case No. CRM-2016-54
KIMBERLIE GILLILAND,
Defendant.
BENCH WARRANT

TO THE CHEROKEE NATION MARSHALS OR SHERIFF OR DEPUTY SHERTFF OR
ANY OTHER OFFICER AUTHORIZED BY LAW TO SERVE CRIMINAL PROCESS:

WHEREAS, complaint has been made in writing, and has charged the Defendant,
KIMBERLIE GILLILAND, did then and there unlawfully and contrary to the laws of the
Cherokee Nation, commit the offenses of: .

COUNT I: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452,

" COUNT II; Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452,

COUNT II: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452,
COUNTIV: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452,
COUNT V: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452,
COUNT VI: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA §1452,
COUNT VII: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452, -
COUNT VI: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452,
COUNT IX: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452,
COUNT X: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452,
COUNT XI: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452,
COUNT XII: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452,
COUNT XIII: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452,
COUNT X1V: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452,
COUNT XV: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452, and FAILED
TO APPEAR in the said Court.

YOU ARE THEREFORE COMMANDED forthwith to arrest the said KIMBERLIE
GILLILAND and bring her before the Court of the Cherokee Nation, 17675 S. Muskogee
Avenue, 2™ Floor, Tahlequah, Oklahoma, or if the Court be adjourned or be not in session that
you retain her in your custody in the County Jail in the County in which you arrest her or that
you deliver her in to the custody of the Cherokee Nation, subject to the further order of this
Court.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the above-identified Defendant be arrested by
and be detained in the custody of the Cherokee Nation Marshal Service or its agents, day or night
pending appearance before the Cherokee Nation District Court. :

Page 1 of 2
Bench Warrant: CN v Giltiland CRM-2016-54 .
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o T, ~~WITNESS my hand and seal of the Cherokee Nation District Court this \g
oo day of August— 2019

- By /
‘ JUDGE OF THE DISTRICT COURT
DESCRIP’I‘ION ‘
Name: | Kimberlie Gilliland )
DL/SSN: -~ 446-66-9476-

) . Address: . 1417 E 46" St. Tulsa, OK 74105
| DOB: _08/13/1963 MHeight: 5’8" Weight: 160 Ibs Hair: Blonde/Graying Eyes: Grey Blue Race: ALF

. -Page 2 of 2
Bench Warrant: CN v-Gilliland CRM-2016-54 )
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, ' IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION 3 -
' CRIMINAL DIVISION = o = i
. . DOZ  3a g
QBHE;. = ¥,
© CHEROKEE NATION, 8225 @ m
Plaintff, 25w o [
28cx » ¢
vs. Case No. CRM-2016-54'£8?:§ = e
x;(.‘ﬁ% 0O - ’
K]MBERLIBGILLILAND > 2
-Defendant,
" COURT MINUTE ORDER
: (SUMMARY) )
DATE: July 19, 2019 TIME: __10:00 A.M.
JUDGE: 1. Luke Barteaux _ REPORTER: N
Plaintiff’s Aitorney: Ralph FKeen 1.
Defendant’s Attomey: _Chadwick Smith, gpp- earing not
CAUSE COMES ON FOR: __Ara{gnment
IND) : Dafendan a"ll;sd to_appear afier receiving ‘notice - of aid.

arrai. 2 019. Nation’s motion f i ce of 1C warrantanq evocation of he
prior_personal recognizance bond is here

ted. Bench wariant shall issue for fail

- v 0
d new cash bond is set at § /2 O 0’%‘

revious Schedulj r entered

ear,
ersonal recognizanée bond is hereby revoke:

The Court further finds

arc 9. shoul and js

J'UDGE OF THE DISTRICT Cé%

bereby set aside.

CHEROKEE NATIO

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT

DEFENDANT
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION

CRIMINAL DIVISION
CHEROKEE NATION, )
Plaintiff, ;
v. ; CM 2016-54
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, ;
Defendant. ;

MOTION TO WITHDRAW BENCH WARRANT

Comes now Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland, (“Gilliland”) by her attorney, Chadwick
Smith and moves the Court to withdraw its bench warrant to arrest Gilliland for failure to appear
at an arraignment hearing on July 19, 2019 because Gilliland did not know of her arraignment
date.

On July 2, 2019, after this Court denied certain dispositive motions filed by Gilliland, the
Court issued its Order Re-Setting Arraignment and the District Court Clerk emailed the attorneys
of record in this case the Court’s orders, including Gilliland’s attorney Chad Smith (“Smith™).!
The certificate of mailing for these Orders reflects that they were emailed to the parties and not
mailed by regular mail. See Exhibit A, Order Re-setting Arraignment. Smith received no July 2,
2019 Orders in the regular mail.

Smith did not communicate to Gilliland her arraignment date because he did not received
the email with the Court’s Order for Re-setting Arraighment. It is undisputed that the Court
Clerk emailed the Court’s Order for Re-setting Arraignment on July 2, 2019 to Smith.

Smith uses as his business email chad@chadsmith.com hosted by a private company on

' Order on Motion 1o Strike Amended Complaint. Order of Demur to Complaint. Order on Motion 10 Disqualify. and
Order for Re-Setting Arraignment.
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its computer servers which after receipt, it forwards the emails to Smith’s gmail email account
which he uses daily and does not check the chad@chadsmith.com server because of the difficulty

in accessing it. Smith has had the chad@chadsmith.com email for over eight years and has not

had the problem of emails not being forwarded to his gmail account before May 25, 2019.

On September 25, 2019 in anticipation of pre-trial conferences, Smith requested and the
District Court Clerk emailed him copies of the docket sheet in each of his cases pending in the
District Court, including Gilliland. Upon review of the Gilliland docket sheet, Smith for the
first time discovered that on July 2, 2019, the Court entered orders on several motions, set an
arraignment date, and subsequently issued a bench warrant for Gilliland on motion of the
Cherokee Nation when Smith and Gilliland did not appear on July 19, 2019. The Cherokee
Nation did not give notice to Gilliland of its Motion for Bench Warrant. Smith did not receive
the August 1, 2019 Court minute or August 16, 2019 Court Minute Order issuing the bench
warrant signed by the Court and Ralph Keen until Smith requested the docket sheet.

Smith receives hundreds of emails at chad@chadsmith.com each month and he has
discovered on September 26, 2019 approximately thirteen (13) emails not forwarded by the

chad@chadsmith.com server to his gmail account since May 25, 2019 including the District

Court’s and Assistant Attorney General John Young’s replies by to Smith’s emails to him.?
Smith also made efforts to discuss the status of his pending cases with the Cherokee Nation prior
to reviewing the docket sheets.’

Smith takes full responsibility for the failure to notify Gilliland. However, Smith was not

* Emails not forward by the chad@chadsmith.com server to Smith primary email include: 9/19/2019 from Sarah
Hill. 9/10/2019 from Kristi Moncooyea, 9/09/2019 from Kristi Moncooyea, 9/05/2019 from John Young. 8/19/2019
from John Young, and 7/02/2019 from Kristi Moncooyea.

* On July 15. 2019. August 10, 2019 and September 4. 2019. Smith emailed John Young a letter requesting
consultation on pending cases and left a phone message for John Young in August. 2019 and for Sarah Hill in
Scptember. 2019. Young and Hill did not return the calls. Smith did not received John Young's response emails that
he sent August 19. 2019 and September 5, 2019.
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aware of the Court’s orders because of this email anomaly and he had no reasonable cause to

suspect a chad(@chadsmith.com server malfunction.

As soon, as Smith discovered the error, he contacted Ralph Keen and John Young,
attorneys for the Cherokee Nation.

Therefore, Gilliland through her attorney moves the court to withdraw its bench warrant
for the arrest of Gilliland.

Smith contacted Ralph Keen by phone and John Young by phone message and email on
September 26, 2019, and John Young again by phone message and email on September 27, 2019
asking if the Cherokee Nation objected to the Court withdrawing the bench warrant. As of
submission of this motion, they have not advised Smith of their position.

Submitted this 27" day of September, 2019.

/ss/
Chadwick Smith
CNBA # 08
22902 S 494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464

chad@chadsmith.com
918 453 1707

Certificate of Delivery

I. Chadwick Smith, do hereby certify that on the 27 "™ of September, 2019, pursuant to
CNDC Rule 7. | emailed a true and complete copy of the foregoing document to the persons
listed below:

/ss/
Chadwick Smith

John C. Young

Assistant Attorney General
Sarah Hill

Attorney General
Cherokee Nation

Office of Attorney General
P.O. Box 141

Tahlequah OK 74465
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john.young(@cherokee.org
sarah.hill@cherokee.org

Ralph Keen 11

Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
KeenLawOK@gmail.com
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EXHIBIT A-27
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATIONG{90CT -9 M 8: 37
CRIMINAL DIVISION

CHEROKEE NATION, ) ST R I
) KRIST | TUKCBIYEA
Plaintiff, ) COLET CLERK
)
V. ) CM 2016-54
)
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, )
)
Defendant. )

AGREED MOTION TO ALLOW DEFENDANT TO APPEAR
TELEPHONICALLY AT SECOND ARRAIGNMENT

Pursuant to CNDC Rule 50, Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland, (“Gilliland”) by her
attorney, Chadwick Smith moves the Court to allow her to present herself and appear
telephonically for a second arraignment in the above case set for October 18, 2019 at 11.00 a.m.

The Nation does not object if her attorney appears in person. See Exhibit “A”, Email
from Ralph Keen. Also, CNDC Rule 43 provides that the parties may telephonically participate
with consent of the opposing counsel.

Gilliland affirms that she will be in attendance for the trial of this matter and has a
compelling interest to attend trial to seek an acquittal to clear her name so that she may regain
meaningful employment.

Submitted this 8™ day of October, 2019.

/ss/
Chadwick Smith
CNBA #08
22902 S 494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464

chad@chadsmith.com
918 453 1707

Certificate of Delivery
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I, Chadwick Smith, do hereby certify that on the 8" of October, 2019, pursuant to CNDC
Rule 7, I emailed a true and complete copy of the foregoing document to the persons listed
below:

/ss/
Chadwick Smith

John C. Young

Assistant Attorney General
Sarah Hill

Attorney General
Cherokee Nation

Office of Attorney General
P.O. Box 141

Tahlequah OK 74465

john.young@cherokee.org
sarah hill@cherokee.org

Ralph Keen II

Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
KeenLawOK@gmail.com

Exhibit “A”

@ Keen bLaw OK 07,2015, 316 PI (1 0ay 300)  ¥¥ 4
ame -

Chad, after conlerring with AAG Young, and providing you altend in person, we have no edjection to your client appeating via phone or vided al the anraigniment
on October 181h

Bast Regards,
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION

CRIMINAL DIVISION 28190CT -9 AMI0: 25
CHEROKEE NATION, ) . £ HATIGH
) Mo G
Plaintiff, ) grALNEL CLERK
)
V. ) CM 2016-54
)
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, )
)
Defendant. )

ORDER ALLOWING DEFENDANT TO APPEAR
TELEPHONICALLY AT SECOND ARRAIGNMENT

Pursuant to CNDC Rule 50, the Court grants Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland’s motion
to present herself and appear telephonically for a second arraignment in the above case set for
October 18, 2019 at 11.00 a.m.. The Cherokee Nation does not object if her attbmcy appears.

THEREFORE, the Court orders Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland, to present herself
and appear telephonically for a second arraignment in the above case set for Octobpr 18, 2019 at

11.00 a.m. by calling the Court Clerk at phone number 918 207-3900 and remain connected by

Ny

‘Judge Barteaux

phone until excused by the Court.

Ordered this ; day of October, 2019.
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EXHIBIT A-28
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION

CRIMINAL DIVISION
CHEROKEE NATION, )
Plaintiff, ;
v. ; CM 2016-54
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, ;
Defendant. ;

MOTION TO CERTIFY ORDERS FOR INTERLOCUTORY APPEAL
Comes now Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland, (“Gilliland™) by her attorney, Chadwick
Smith and moves the Court to find its interlocutory Order on Motion to Strike Amended
Complaint and Order on Demur to Complaint filed in this case on July 2, 2029 are dispositive of
the issues in this case and are subject to immediate appeal.
Submitted this 10" day of October, 2019.
/ss/
Chadwick Smith
CNBA #08
22902 S 494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464

chad@chadsmith.com
918 453 1707

Certificate of Delivery

I, Chadwick Smith, do hereby certify that on the 10 ™ of October, 2019, pursuant to

CNDC Rule 7. 1 emailed a true and complete copy of the foregoing document to the persons
listed below:

/ss/
Chadwick Smith

John C. Young

Assistant Attorney General
Sarah Hill

Attorney General
Cherokee Nation
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Office of Attorney General
P.O. Box 141

Tahlequah OK 74465
john.young(@cherokee.org

sarah.hill@cherokee.org

Ralph Keen 11

Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
KeenLawOK@gmail.com
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EXHIBIT A-29
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION

CRIMINAL DIVISION
CHEROKEE NATION,
Plaintiff,
Vs, Case No. CRM-2016-54
KIMBERLIE GILLILAND,
Defendant.
NATION’S OBJECTION TO

DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO REINSTATE
PERSONAL RECOGNIZANCE BOND

COMES NOW Ralph F Keen II, the duly-appointed Special Prosecutor for Cherokee
Nation, who objects to the Defendant’s Motion to Reinstate Personal Recognizance Bond, and in
support thereof would show the Court as follows:

Cherokee Nation objects to the Defendant’s motion requesting her personal recognizance
bond be reinstated. Attempted service of the Bench Warrant on the Defendant at her home in
Tulsa revealed that she no longer resides in Tulsa and has apparently rented the home out. By her
counsel’s own admission, the Defendant has left the United States and is currently residing in
Poland. The Defendant neither sought leave of Court nor notified the Nation of her leaving the
jurisdiction and traveling outside of the United States. As a result, the Defendant is now a
confirmed flight risk who has absconded from the jurisdictional reach of the Cherokee criminal
justice system. To reinstate her prior personal recognizance bond under these conditions would
be an insult to the Court and offer no assurance that she will return to the United States and stand
accountable for the criminal acts she is charged with. The word of her legal counsel, as sincere as
it may be, is no guarantee of appearance.

The Court should enforce its current cash bond sctting of $10,000.00 to ensure that the

Defendant will return from overseas and appear for trial.

Page 1 of 2
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WHEREFORE, premises and precedence considered, the Nation prays the Court deny
Defendant’s Motion to Reinstate Personal Recognizance Bond and enforce the present cash bond
setting of $10,000.00 to ensure that the Defendant will return to the United States and appear for

trial.

Respectfully Submitted,

Ralph F Keen II, CNBA oww
Special Prosecutor ‘
205 West Division

Stilwell, OK 74960

(918) 696 - 3355

(918) 696 - 3576 Fax
KeenLawOK@gmail.com

For Cherokee Nation,

Office of the Attorney General

PO Box 948

Tahlequah, OK 74465

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Nation's Response to
Defendant’s Motion to Reinstate Personal Recognizance Bond was mailed the | ,= day of
October, 2019, by depositing it in the U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, or otherwise personally delivered
to:

Chadwick Smith, Esq.
22902 S 494 Road

Tahlequah, OK 74464
chad@chadsmith.com

chief.chad.smith@gmail.com m //
o[, LU LD

Mcgan Lycas

Page 2 of 2
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In The District Court of Cherokee Nation
S0 ‘ 10 :
Cherokee Nation, B50CT 22 PHI2: 10

Plaindf CHERTKED HATION
IAYAY B2 M .\h't], 8
" CM2016-54 "RRT I FAK

Kimberlie A Gilliland,
Defendant.

Order Denying Certification for Interlocutory Appeal
Defendant filed her Motion to Certify Orders for Interlocutory Appeal on or about
October 9, 2019. Oral arguments were held on October 21, 2019. Defendant’s request for
certification for interlocutory appeal is denied. It was previously Ordered that this matter shall
not be stayed for possible interlocutory appeals unless by motion and good cause is found by the
Court. Good cause has not been found. The Defendant has already appealed this matter once

based on jurisdiction and the District Court was affirmed. See Gilliland v. Cherokee Nation, SC-

17-08 (August 13, 2018).

Cherokee Nation Supreme Court Rule 70 (B) states that “Any party in a criminal case,
may appeal a judgment or sentence.” Defendant has not received a judgement and or sentence.

Additional authority for denial of interlocutory appeal certification. See Takeda
Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc. v. Cherokee Nation, SC-16-02 (November 22, 2016), and Cherokee

Nation Education Corporation v. Gilliland, SC-16-25 (March 31, 2017) the Cherokee Nation

Supreme Court does not favor interlocutory appeals as they foster multiple appeals before the
record is fully established.

Done and Ordered in Chambers on October 21, 2019.

T Ate Dtz

District Court Judge

1
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Certificate of Mailing

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that on the Mday of ‘ )_( & )‘_l )e r- ,2019 that I

emailed, faxed, hand delivered, and or mailed a true and correct file stamped copy of the
foregoing document to the following person(s):

Chadwick Smith
22902 S 494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464
chad@chadsmith.com

Ralph Keen II, keenlawok@gmail.com

Sara Hill, sara-hillZacherokee.org

Chrissi Nimmo, chrissi-nimimo(@cherokee.org

John Young, john-voung(@cherokee.org

Courtney Jordan, courtney-jordan(@cherokee.org

District Eourt Clerk
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In The District Court of Cherokee Nation
25007 22 PHIZ: 10
Cherokee Nation, -

o pEAGIEE HATION
Plaintiff, g,t,S{l‘:%!‘JT oOURT
K@1STH MONTCON.A

v. CM 2016-54  COURT FLF

Kimberlie A Gilliland,
Defendant.

Order Denying Motion to Reinstating Personal Recognizance Bond
Defendant filed her Motion to Reinstate Personal Recognizance Bond on or about
October 9, 2019. Oral arguments were held on October 18, 2019. Said motion is denied.
Defendant shall deposit a cash bond of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) with the Cherokee Nation

District Court by 4:30pm on November 20, 2019. A bench warrant shall issue if bond is not paid.

T At Ponitin

District Court Judge

Ordered on October 21, 2019.

Certificate of Mailin

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that on the && day of OC:I’_( )l ﬂ , 2019 that I

emailed, faxed, hand delivered, and or mailed a true and correct file stamped copy of the
foregoing document to the following person(s):

Chadwick Smith
22902 S 494 Road
Tahlequah, OK 74464
chad{@chadsmith.com

Ralph Keen II, keenlawok(@gmail.com
Sara Hill, sara-hill{@)cherokee.org

Chrissi Nimmo, chrissi-nimmo@cherokee.org
John Young, john-voung(@cherokee.org
Courtney Jordan, courtney-jordan@cherokee.org Oj{/@%

sttnct%ourt Clerk
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= =
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION & =
Eggi § mh{nﬁ
@38 | ——
83 o
KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, ) 88 = [T
) g e O
Petitioner, ) A
) , 2 0=
v. ) Case No. SC - }i éi”ls
)
CHEROKEE NATION, ) District Court CM 2016-54
)
and )
)
LUKE BARTEAUX, )
Judge of the District Court, )
)
Respondents. )

PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS AND APPEAL FROM
INTERLOCUTORY ORDERS

1. TRIAL COURT HISTORY
COURT/ COMMISSION: District Court,
CASE NO.: CM-2016-54
JUDGE/ HEARING OFFICER: Judge Barteaux
NATURE OF CASE: Criminal
NAME OF PARTY(IES) FILING THIS PETITION: Kimberlie Gilliland
THE APPEAL IS BROUGIHT FROM: (check one)
Judgment, Decree or Final order of the District Court
Appeal from order granting summary judgment or motion to dismiss
Final Order of Other Tribunal. Commission, or Hearing Board

Interlocutory Order Appealable
Other

[><

II. TIMELINESS OF APPEAL

07/09 Supreme Court Petition in Error Page 1 of 6
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1. Date judgment. decree, or order appealed was filed: October 22, 2019

2. Does the judgment or order on appeal dispose of all claims by and against all parties?
Yes X No

Were any post-trial motions filed? No.

L

4. This Petition is filed by: Delivery to Clerk, or
X Mailing to Clerk by U.S. Certified Mail,
Return Receipt Requested

I[II. RELATED OR PRIOR APPEALS
Appeal in this case filed October 10, 2017.
IV. SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE
Is the Petitioner willing to participate in a Settlement Conference? X Yes No
V. RECORD ON APPEAL

A transcript will be ordered
No Transcript will be ordered because no record was made and/or
no transcript will be necessary for this appeal
Narrative Statement will be filed
X Audio and video file of District Court proceeds are designated in record.

VI. JUDGMENT, DECREE OR ORDER APPEALED-- EXHIBIT “A”
Attach as Exhibit “A” are copies of the July 2, 2019 Order of Motion to Strike Amended
Complaint and July 2, 2019 Order on Demur to Complaint and October 22, 2019 Order Denying
Motion to Reinstating Personal Recognizance Bond.

VH. SUMMARY OF CASE -- Exhibit “B™
Attach Exhibit “B” a brief summary of the case.

VIIL. ISSUES TO BE RAISED ON APPEAL -- Exhibit “C™
Attach as Exhibit “C” the issues proposed to be raised.

IX. NAME OF COUNSEL OR PARTY. IF PRO Sk

ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER
Name: Chad Smith

CBNA: 08

Firm: Chad Smith

Address: 22902 S 494 Road

City: Tahlequah

07/09 Supreme Court Petition in Error Page 2 of 6
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State: OK Zip: 74464
Phone: 918 453 1707
Email: chief.chad.smith@gmail.com

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT
John C. Young

Assistant Attorney General

Sarah Hill

Attorney General

Cherokee Nation

Office of Attorney General

P.O. Box 141

Tahlequah OK 74465
john.youngf@cherokee.org

sarah.hill@cherokee.org

Ralph Keen 11

Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
KeenLawOK@gmail.com

DATE: October 31, 2019 e

(Signature of Attorney or Pro Se Party)
CNBA: 08
Firm: Chad Smith
Address: 22902 S 494 Road
City: Tahlequah
State: OK Zip: 74464
Phone: 918 453 1707
Email: chief.chad.smith@gmail.com

X. CERTIFICATE OF MAILING TO ALL PARTIES AND COURT CLERK
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the Petition for Habeas Corpus, was
mailed or hand-delivered this 31st day of" October 2017 to the following:

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT
John C. Young

Assistant Attorney General

Sarah Hill

Attorney General

Cherokee Nation

Office of Attorney General

P.0O. Box 141

07/09 Supreme Court Petition in Error Page 3 of 6
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Tahlequah OK 74465
john.voungiwcherokee.ore
sarah.hill‘@cherokee.org

Ralph Keen 11

Special Prosecutor

205 West Division
Stilwell, OK 74960
KeenLawOK{@gmail.com

I further certify that a copy of the Petition in for Habeas Corpus was mailed to, or filed in,
the office of the Court Clerk of the Cherokee Nation Supreme Courl on Qctober 31, 2019.

%

Chad Smith —

07/09 Supreme Court Petition in Error Page 4 of 6
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A
ST A

In The District Court of Cherokee Nation Fhe

Cherokee Nation, 2019 JUL -2 PH 3:30

Plaintiff, : 1._?rnEr. < ATION

DISTRICT COLRT
Ve CM 2016-54 KRISTI Mo~4coom
COURT CI F

Kimberlie A Gilliland,

Defendant.

Order on Demur to Complaint

Demur to complaint is overruled. The law is sufficient to provide a defendant the
knowledge not to commit embezzlement. The information is sufficient to provide the defendant
with full due process and knowledge of the complaint against her. The District Court is the
appropriate court for this case to be heard and has full jurisdiction over it and the parties hereto,
including but not limited to the authority to declare a provision of law constitutional or
unconstitutional subject to appellate review. .

It is so ordered. %

District Court Judge

Certificate of Mailing

1, the undersigned, do hereby certify that on the date file stamped above, that I emailed,
faxed, hand delivered, and or mailed a true and correct file stamped copy of the foregoing
document to the following person(s):

Chadwick Smith, chad{@chadsmith.com

Diane Hammons, adianehammons(@gmail.com
Ralph Keen I1, keenlawok(@email.com

Todd Hembree, todd-hembree@cherokee.org

Chrissi Nimmo, chrissi-nimmo(@cherokee.org
John Young, john-young(@cherokee.org

Courtney Jordan, courtney-jordan(@cherokee.org C% %
WL «/U\(Mx/

District Court Clerk \_
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o

i

I
In The District Court of Cherokee Nation

L-2 PH 3:30
Cherokee Nation, n3 1o
Plaintiff, CHERGHEE HATIO)
- “DISTRICT COURT
FISTI MOKCOOYEA
v, CM 2016-54 CQURT £LERK

Kimberlie A Gilliland,
Defendant.

Order on Motion to Strike Amended Compliant

Motion to strike is denied. Amendment was filed within the statute of limitations.
Because of the alleged deception on the part of the defendant the clock does not start running on
embezzlement cases until the discovery of the alleged wrong doing. Defendants do not get to
hide behind their own alleged wrong doing as a defense to a crime being committed.

/ %
District Court Judge %%

.y

Certificate of Mailing

It is so ordered.

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that on the date file stamped above, that I emailed,
faxed, hand delivered, and or mailed a true and correct file stamped copy of the foregoing
document to the following person(s):

Chadwick Smith, chadZ)chadsmith.com

Diane Hammons, adianechammons@gmail.com
Ralph Keen II, keenlawok@gimail.com

Todd Hembree, todd-hembree@cherokee.org
Chrissi Nimmo, chrissi-nimmo(@cherokee.org
John Young, john-youngi@cherokee.org

Courtney Jordan, courtney-jordani@cherokee.or ,\
Ly
C/(, ol

District Court Clerk
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In The District Court of Cherokee Nation
MIJL -2 PH 3: 30

Cherokee Nation,

Plaintiff, CHIROREE NATIOR

i ?lSTTIKI‘éiil “GURT
i\ \'4

v CM2016-54  COURT RUCSYEA
Kimberlie A Gilliland,

Defendant.

Order on Motion to Disqualify

Motion to disqualify denied in part and dismissed in part as moot. Young v. U.S. Ex Rel.
Vuitton Et Fils S. A., 780 F.2d 179 (1987), is not Cherokee Nation law, but is also
distinguishable from the case at hand in that in Young counsel within the same case,
concurrently, was appointed to prosecute opposing party on a contempt charge within the same
exact case. In other words in Young the Court gave one party power over the other party in the
same case giving the power welding party an unfair advantage. In the cases at hand counsel’s
goal is similar in the civil and the criminal case, not to push for a different allegation because of
legal posturing in an underlying matter. Further, the civil case has been stayed until after the
criminal case has been disposed of, and if restitution is awarded in the criminal case it would be
unrecoverable in the civil case. Therefore the motion to disqualify is denied. Counsel is not a
candidate for office at this time therefore arguments regarding said issue are dismissed as moot.

It is so ordered.

Dlstnct Court Judge

Certificate of Mailing

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that on the date file stamped above, that I emailed,
faxed, hand delivered, and or mailed a true and correct file stamped copy of the foregoing
document to the following person(s):

Chadwick Smith, chad@chadsmith.com

Diane Hammons, adianehammons(@gmail.com
Ralph Keen 11, keenlawok(@gmail.com

Todd Hembree, todd-hembree@cherokee.org
Chrissi Nimmo, chrissi- mmmo@cherokee org

John Young, john-young/@cherokee.org
Courtney Jordan, courtney-jordan{@cherokee.org

] .' VUC@()%W

I/
Dlstnc( Court Clerk
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F
FILED
IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATIO
CRIMINAL DIVISION 818 AUG |2 AMID: 58
CHEROKEE NATION, 4 'If )
Plaintiff,
Vs. CM 2016-54

KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND,

Defendant.

ORDER OF ARRAIGNMENT, SURRENDER AND
RELEASE OF CUSTODY ON PERSONAL RECOGNIZANCE

On this Q_ of August, 2016, the Court acknowledges the surrender of the Defendant,
Kimberlie A. Gilliland and the Cherokee Nation does not object to releasing her on her personal
recognizance. The Court arraigns Defendant upon her waiving the reading of the charges the
Cherokee Nation brings against her in the above-styled and numbered case and being advised of
her constitutional and statutory rights. Defendant reserves further time to file motions and enters
a plea of not guilty subject to motions she may file.

Defendant demands a jury trial.

THEREFORE IT IS ORDERED BY THE COURT, Defendant is released on her own
recognizance, no bond is required and this case is set for jury trial

Ordered this |L_day of August, 2016.
Py
m‘aﬁ@b =X

Approved —_—
e ——
Chadwick Smith :
Wfor Defenz;n‘

Diane Hammons
Attorney for Cherokee Nation
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Exhibit “B” Statement of Case

On March 20, 2019. the Cherokee Nation filed an Amended Complaint charging
Gilliland with accusations of embezzlement from Cherokee Nation Education Foundation.
Gilliland filed a Demurrer to the Amended Complaint arguing that it was void due to vagueness
and failed to state a crime thus violating thc due process right of notice guaranteed by the
Cherokee Nation Constitution and the Indian Civil Rights Act. Gilliland further moved to
dismiss the prosecution on grounds the various charges of the Amended Complaint were filed
after the statute of limitations had run.

The District Court overruled both motions. Gilliland's freedom is impaired by reason
that on October 22, 2019 the District Court ordered her to deposit $10,000 cash in the District
Court to avoid incarceration pending trial although the Amended Complaint is void and invalid
for a number of reasons.

07/09 Supreme Court Petition in Error Page 5 of 6
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Exhibit “C” Issues Raised on Appeal

The District Court has unconstitutionally restrained Gilliland’ liberty because the Court’s
custody order required petitioner to appear at times and places restricting her to come and go as
she pleased and was subject to restraints not shared by the public generally. A Petition for
Habeas Corpus is a proper method to challenge the legality of orders issued by the District Court.
The District Court had no authority to restraint Gilliland’s liberty because the Amended
Complaint was void for vagueness, failed to state a crime, was filed outside the statute of
limitations, and violated federal law. The issues on appeal include:

A. THE BAIL SET BY THE DISTRICT COURT VIOLATES THE NATION'S LAW.,

1. Gilliland complied with her personal recognizance bond and imposition of a
$10,000 cash bond is excessive and punitive.
2. The District Court had no authority to issue a bench warrant outside the Nation.

B. THE CRIMINAL CHARGES FOR WHICH BAIL IS REQUIRED ARE
UNCONSTITUTIONAL OR ILLEGAL.
1. The District Court erred by not dismissing the case because the Amended
Complaint fails to provide Gilliland due process because allegations do not apprise her of
the particulars of the crime she is charged.
2. In its July 2, 2019 Order, the District Court erred because the Amended
Complaint violates constitutional and statutory requirements for due process because the
charging statute does not state a crime as alleged and is void by vagueness.

a. The Amended Complaint does not state a crime under the embezzlement
statute.
b. The embezzlement statue is void for vagueness.
3. In its July 2, 2019 Order, the District Court crred because the Amended
Complaint fails to apprise Gilliland of the factual allegations of the charges.
a. There is no specificity as to facts to apprise Gilliland of the alleged
criminal conduct.
b. There are no allegations of criminal intent or action.

4. In its July 2. 2019 Order, the District Court erred by denying Gilliland’s Motion
to Strike Amended Complaint because the Amended Complaint was filed after the statute
of limitations expired.

a. The Nation is subject to the “Delayed Discovery Rule” for the
embezzlement statute of limitation.
b. The Nation failed to allcge or plead facts to prove it exercised reasonable

diligence and that the offence was concealed from the CNF to invoke the Delayed
Discovery Rule.
c. The record oftered by the Nation shows no fraud.
5. The Amended Complaint violates the JICRA limitation on punishment.
6. The District Court erred by declining to find the Nation™s Attorney had a conflict of
interest

07/09 Supreme Court Petition in Error Page 6 of 6
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EXHIBIT A-33
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LIST OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit “A”, Chronology of the Case

Exhibit “B”, Order of Arraignment, Surrender and Release of Custody on Personal Recognizance
Exhibit “C”, Subpoena Proof of Service

Exhibit “D”, July 2, 2019 Order on Demurrer to Amended Complaint

Exhibit “E”, July 2, 2019 Order on Motion to Strike Amended Compliant (sic)

Exhibit “F”, Complaint and Information

Exhibit “G”, Amended Complaint

Exhibit “H”, Order Re-Setting Arraignment.

Exhibit “I”’, Bench Warrant
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Exhibit “A”, Chronology of the Case



Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 263 of 426

Exhibit “A” Chronology
July 27, 2016- Keen, representing CNF filed a companion civil casc based on the same
allegations of the instant criminal case. See Case No. CV 2016-397. On September 6, 2016,
Keen on behalf of CNF stated to the Court in its “Plaintiff’s Response and Combining Brief in
Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Stay” (at page 4) that “Admittedly, eight counts in the civil
petition involve the same transaction or occurrence as in the criminal information” and in the
civil case he sought from Gilliland a breathtaking $1.160,000 in damages of which $928,000 was
punitive damages.
July 28, 2016- The Nation filed nine counts of criminal charges against Gilliland alleging that as
Director of the Cherokee Nation Foundation, (“CNF™), she embezzled CNF property by traveling
on trips with family members promoting the work of the Foundation, attended an online Master
degree class, and did not account for certain office equipment. The Complaint was verified by
A. Dianne Hammons, Special Prosecutor who was appointed by Todd Hembree, Cherokee
Nation Attorney General. No law enforcement officer was endorsed as a witness or did an
investigation of the matter. See Exhibit “F”, Complaint and Information, CRM 2016-54.
August 12, 2016- The District Court acknowledged Gilliland surrendered to the Court, and
entered its order releasing Gilliland on her own recognizance without restriction. See Exhibit
“B”, Order of Arraignment, Surrender and Release of Custody on Personal Recognizance. The
Nation knew at the time of filing the Complaint that Gilliland resided outside the Cherokee
Nation in Tulsa, Oklahoma.
February 14, 2019- Gilliland filed her Demurrer to Criminal Complaint on Grounds No Crime
is Alleged and Motion to Dismiss because the Embezzlement Statute Denies Defendant Due

Process.



Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 264 of 426

March 7, 2019- Gilliland filed Motion to Disqualify Keen based on conflict of interest.

March 20, 2019- The Nation filed an Amended Complaint with six additional counts alleging
that Gilliland embezzled funds from CNF for giving scholarships to Cherokee students without
any allegation that she received any funds or benefited in any fashion from the award of the
scholarships, and she paid the expenses of a Cherokee Nation Council member to present a
program on scholarships to a Cherokee community. See Exhibit “G”, Amended Complaint.
April 3, 2019- Gilliland filed her Motion to Strike Amended Complaint of Grounds the Statute
of Limitations Expired for Additional Counts Charged, Demurrer to Amended Complaint.

July 2, 2019- The District Court issued orders denying Gilliland’s Demurrer, Motion to Strike
Amended Complaint, and Motion to Disqualify Keen and issued its Order Re-Setting
Arraignment for July 19, 2019. No notice by email or regular mail was sent to Gilliland who
was on her own personal recognizance bond by email or regular mail. See Exhibit “H”, Order
Re-Setting Arraignment. Smith did not discover these Orders until September 25, 2019 when he
discovered the emailed Orders were blocked by his email as suspicious as possibly having a
virus.

July 19, 2019- Smith and Gilliland did not appear for Gilliland’s arraignment on the Amended
Complaint.

August 1, 2019- The District Court filed its Minute Order issuing a Bench Warrant for Gilliland
for failure to appear.

August 8, 2019- The District Court filed its Court Minute Order and on motion of the Nation

issued a Bench Warrant for failure to appear at the July 19, 2019 arraignment 1o be served “Day



Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 265 of 426

or Night” and listed Gilliland’s address to be 1417 E. 46" Street, Tulsa, OK 74105, a location
outside the Cherokee Nation. See Exhibit “I”*, Bench Warrant.

Sceptember 25, 2019 - Smith discovered the District Court’s July 2, 2019 Order to appear for
arraignment on July 19, 2019.

October 9, 2019- On Gilliland’s Motion to Appear by Telephone, the Nation did not object to
allow Gilliland to appearing for Arraignment on the Amended Complaint by phone and the Court
ordered that she be allowed to appear by phone. See Agreed Motion to Allow Defendant to
Appear Telephonically at Second Arraignment and Order Allowing Defendant to Appear
Telephonically at Second Arraignment.

October 16, 2019- Gilliland moved to certify Orders for Appeal, the District Courts Order
Denying Motion to Strike Amended Complaint on Grounds the Statute of Limitations Expired
for Additional Counts Charged, and Demurrer to Amended Complaint.

October 18, 2019- Gilliland appeared for arraignment by phone and her counsel waived the
reading of the Amended Complaint, acknowledged receipt, and entered a plea of non-guilty.
October 22, 2019- The District Court denied Gilliland’s Motion to reinstate her Personal
Recognizance bond and ordered her to deposit $10.000 cash with the court as bail before
November 20, 2019 or else a Bench Warrant would be issued.

October 22, 2019- Thc District Court denied Gilliland’s Motion for Certification for

Interlocutory Appeal.
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Exhibit “B”, Order of Arraignment, Surrender and Release of
Custody on Personal Recognizance
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FILED

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION
CRIMINAL DIVISION 16 AUG |12 AMID: S8

[ £
+ i

CHEROKEE NATION,
Plaintiff,

Vs. CM 2016-54

KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND,

Defendant.

S S Nt N Nt Nt Nt Nt g

ORDER OF ARRAIGNMENT, SURRENDER AND
RELEASE OF CUSTODY ON PERSONAL RECOGNIZANCE

On this 2_ of August, 2016, the Court acknowledges the surrender of the Defendant,
Kimberlie A. Gilliland and the Cherokee Nation does not object to releasing her on her personal
recognizance. The Court arraigns Defendant upon her waiving the reading of the charges the
Cherokee Nation brings against her in the above-styled and numbered case and being advised of
her constitutional and statutory rights. Defendant reserves further time to file motions and enters
a plea of not guilty subject to motions she may file.

Defendant demands a jury trial.

THEREFORE IT 1S ORDERED BY THE COURT, Defendant is released on her own
recognizance, no bond is required and this case is set for jury trial

Ordered this_]2_day of August, 2016.

.- Approved: o
Chadwick Smith =~ =
Attoze?fo_r Defengt

Diane Hammons
Attorney for Cherokee Nation
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Exhibit “C”, Subpoena Proof of Service
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PROOF U_/F SERVICE
Crigia / County Stasz /7% Feders] (éﬁ/ﬁ.{/ﬁ /44::& Ko. C’z/ Z///Z ’.5 7 7

DOCUMENTS SERVED: I, being dnl_/ sworn, sartify thai recmvcd ll'x: foragomg, to th o
Summons W/ Pxdton or Cophiing hjuncon/ Yicam Frowcsve Order Modon o ModRy Ipacsrogatorica
—_ Awmeked Petition / Corrphaing Garnihnen/fiis dondens Modon for lnvmo andzmq- Bric/-PLintfT o/ Defendan’ 3
" Petition / 3rd Party Defencda Subpoces Ducss Teoum M oton/S: Y Journs} Eagy/Anyesy
7 Semall Claims Affdavi f Money Judgement Ew Subpcena M otion/Deficiney Msdpement Cros/Counser Clam
Smll Chaims Repicvin Frea/Subpocua Rexqueat {07 Atmimions Writ/Habeas Corpus
"~ Hearing on Asexs Morice 10 Tars Degosition —_ Roipucex for Production Leties/Notice m Quit
—___Cindon for Consemp! Notee Replevin Nodee/Ordx \pplicaion/Temparary Orter
T Wimess Fx / Amount Peion / Guardizoship — Resusining Order Order for Haring
Other Fomhle Emn & Detaines -

METHOD OF SERVICE: Service mads pursuant io: gﬁ‘:; 1
t]
£ OKlahoma/Title 12 0.5. Section 158.1 [JFederal Rule 4 Other

(A) That on JaNptLy ZZ 257 a_ff73 _ (Amdpm., 1 icated dommmt(s)on
ramed % ek V7 By L BT g
a.m. p.m., lscrvcdthcdommcmfs)mdzcawdqnﬂr:mlhm

B) Additionally, on at .
pamed ar__ : 7%/ f

ANNER 0 SEVC: ' d served rn 1o law in follog anncr. 10 wit:
PERSONAL SERVICE
(7 by delivering a true copy of said process to the above named and informing such person of their contents.

USUAL PLACE OF RESIDENCE

{3 by leaving a copy of said process for the above pamed with ,
a resident/family member, who is fificen years of age or older at the above llstad addrws which is the usual place

of abode or dwelling house of the above named, and mformmg such person of their contents.
LORPORATION / PARTNERSHIP / UNDNCORPORATED ASSOCIATION / GOYERNMENT ENTITIES, ETC.
O by delivering a copy of said process 1o

he / she being the service agent authorized 10 accept service, managing agent in charge, and officer, a partner, owner,
or the Attorney of Record for the above named entify/individual, and informing such person of their contents.

POS SERYVICE :
; y affixing a copy of said process lo the premiscs al the address indicated, which is in the possession of the above
named individual.

MNQ SERVICE
[J Said process WAS NOT SERVED on the above named for reason(s) stated: [ Evading Service [J Not at Home
[ Bad Address / No Such Address [IService Canceled [ Other

Tz &/Z/’ 547794%% s %/c)/é’f/fﬂq//f/»/f“//%zzgfg@/

Undersigned declafes under penalty of perjury i
that the foregoing is true and correct.

C~— ] T

Namé of Server .
License # PS 28151

BAD ADDRESS / ENCEAYOR: %

SZiP / LOCATE / RESEARCH:  §
COVRIER ) COURE FILING:  §_____
FESS/COSTADVANCED:  §___

ADDITIONAL SERVICE:  § - 70

. A . K /

CELL PHONE “John 316" TOTAL DUE: 3} /2(7 ]
$15-880-000t :

E-mai) R.L.G. PROCESS SERVICE

rigorucssssstvives@lydico.com
P.0. Box 911 » STILWELL, OK 74%6G » HOME PHONE $15-696-7442  Fax 018-696-2514
ko A BRI S YT AT TROR I RY
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Exhibit “D”, July 2, 2019 Order on Demurrer to Amended
Complaint
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In The District Court of Cherokee Nation

Cherokee Nation, 2019 JUL -2 PH 3: 30
Plaintiff, LHL%KEL W ATION
gis " CT \.»341\
v CM 2016-54 msn MDHCOOYEA
COURT CLFRR
Kimberlie A Gilliland,
Defendant.

QOrder on Demur to Complaint

Demur to complaint is overruled. The law is sufficient to provide a defendant the
knowledge not to commit embezzlement. The information is sufficient to provide the defendant
with full due process and knowledge of the complaint against her. The District Court is the
appropriate court for this case to be heard and has full jurisdiction over it and the parties hereto,
including but not limited to the authority to declare a provision of law constitutional or
unconstitutional subject to appellate review. .

It is so ordered. 7 ;

District Court Judge

Certificate of Mailing

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that on the date file stamped above, that I emailed,
faxed, hand delivered, and or mailed a true and correct file stamped copy of the foregoing
document to the following person(s):

Chadwick Smith, chad@chadsmith.com
Diane Hammons, adianehammons@gmail.com
Ralph Keen I1, keenlawok@ginail.com

Todd Hembree, todd-hembree@cherokee.org
Chrissi Nimmo, chrissi-nimmo(dcherokee.org
John Young, john-young(@cherokee.org
Courtney Jordan, courtney-jordan(@cherokee.org

District Court Clerk
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Exhibit “E”, July 2, 2019 Order on Motion to Strike Amended
Compliant (sic)
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In The District Court of Cherokee Nation

, 2019 JUL -2 PH 330
Cherokee Nation, KEE NATION
. . .'\-E_t "RO 4 .‘r.l H
Plaintif, CORTRICT COURT
§§ISTI HGHCQOYEA
v. CM 2016-54 CQURT LLFRK

Kimberlie A Gilliland,
Defendant.

Order on Motion to Strike Amended Compliant

Motion to strike is denied. Amendment was filed within the statute of limitations.
Because of the alleged deception on the part of the defendant the clock does not start running on
embezzlement cases until the discovery of the alleged wrong doing,. Defendants do not get to
hide behind their own alleged wrong doing as a defense to a crime being committed.

/ %
District Court Judge %%

Certificate of Mailing

It is so ordered.

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that on the date file stamped above, that ] emailed,
faxed, hand delivered, and or mailed a true and correct file stamped copy of the foregoing
document to the following person(s):

Chadwick Smith, chad@chadsmith.com

Diane Hammons, adianehammons@gmail.com
Ralph Keen I1, keenlawok@gmail.com

Todd Hembree, todd-hembree@cherokee.org
Chrissi Nimmo, chrissi-nimmo(@cherokee.org

John Young, john-young@cherokee.org )
Courtney Jordan, courtney-jordan@cherokee.org /
N |
C/(, vy
District Court Clerk
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Exhibit “F”, Complaint and Information



Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 275 of 426

FILED

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION

CRIMINAL DIVISION W6JUL 28 AM B: 15
*f.;f*;'.‘zi.“iihg- B s
CHEROKEE NATION, ) Mt s
Plaintiff, )
) "”L{
v. ) CRM-2016- b
)
)
KIMBERLIE A, GILLILAND, )
D.O.B. 08/13/1969, )
Defendant. )

COMPLAINT AND INFORMATION
IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CHEROKEE NATION,

comes now, A. Diane Hammons, specially appointed prosecutor acting by the power of the
Attorney General for the Cherokee Nation, Todd Hembree, and upon her oath gives this Court
reason to know and be informed that KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND did, within the territorial
boundaries of the Cherokee Nation including within Indian Country as defined by 18 U.S.C. §
1151, and the laws of the Cherokee Nation , commit the hereinafter described crimes. At all
times pertinent hereto, Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland was serving as Executive Director of
the Cherokee Nation Education Corporation a/k/a Cherokee Nation Foundation (“CNF”), a non-
profit corporation organized under the laws of the Cherokee Nation, whose officers are appointed
by the Principal Chief and approved by the Tribal Council, and whose principal place of business
is in Tahlequah, Oklahoma, and which, at all times pertinent hereto received partial funding from
the Cherokee Nation government and Cherokee Nation Businesses, both entities being located on

Indian Country within the boundaries of the Cherokee Nation.
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COUNTI: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

From a period from January 24, 2012, through February 14, 2012, Kimberlie A.
Gilliland, did willfully and knowingly convert, misappropriate, and embezzle funds
of CNF for her own and her family’s use, to wit: By using CNF funds to pay for a
family trip to California for herself, her husband, Andrew Sikora, and their two minor
children, S.S. and S.S; said trip taking place from February 9, 2012, through
February 13, 2012. Said conversion included the following transactions.

On approximately January 24, 2012, the Defendant purchased
American Airlines tickets for herself, her husband, Andrew
Sikora, and her two minor children, S.S. and S.S. from Tulsa,
Oklahoma, to Los Angeles, California, in the approximate
amount of $329.20 per ticket plus $56.00 in airline fees, fora

travel date of February 9, 2012, all paid out of CNEC funds

with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

From February 9, through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid
$70.54 to Fine Airport Parking out of CNEC funds with the use of
a CNEC business credit card, and;

From February 9, through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid
$157.95 to Enterprise Rent a Car at the Los Angeles International
Airport, Los Angeles out of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC
business credit card, and;

From February 9, through February 10, 2012, the Defendant paid
$414.05 to Marriott Hotels and Resorts, Anaheim, California, out
of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;
On February 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $47.93 for gasoline
purchased at OSD Enterprises Inc, in Anaheim, California, out of
CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;
On February 11,2012, the Defendant paid $25.86 to a restaurant,
Bangkok Bay, in Solana Beach, California, out of CNEC funds
with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

On February 11,2012, the Defendant paid $46.94 to Oggis Pizza &
Brewing Co. in Garden Gove, California, for four (4) guests, out of
CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;
On February 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $21.30 to Starbucks, in
Carlsbad, California, out of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC
business credit card, and;

From February 12 through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid
$314.53 to the Renaissance Montura, Los Angeles, CA, out of
CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

2
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e On February 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $1,408.40 to
Continental Airlines for tickets and ticket fees for travel to begin
on 2/13/12 for herself, her husband Andrew Sikora, and their
minor children, S.S. and 8.S., out of CNEC funds with the use of a
CNEC business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used CNF funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT II: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

During a period from May 17, 2012, through May 19, 2012, Kimberlie A. Gilliland, did
willfully and knowingly convert and embezzle funds of CNEC for her own use, to wit: By
paying for “American Girl” hotel rooms (containing American Girl doll beds, pink
balloons, and cookies) for the benefit of her daughter, and an employee’s daughter, in the
total amount of $291.54 to the Residence Inn Marriott, Addison, Texas, out of CNEC
funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used CNF funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT I1I: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

During a period from July 16, 2012, through August 13, 2012, Kimberlie A.
Gilliland, did willfully and knowingly convert and embezzle funds of CNF for her
own and her family’s use, to wit: By using CNF funds to pay for a trip to California
for herself and her husband, Andrew Sikora; said trip taking place from August 9,
2012, through August 13, 2012. Said conversion included the following transactions:

e Onapproximately July 16,2012, the Defendant purchased Southwest
Airlines tickets for herself and her husband, Andrew Sikora, to
Burbank, California, in the approximate amount of $257.60 per ticket

for a travel date of August 9, 2012, all paid out of CNF funds with

the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

» From August 9, 2012 —August 13, 2012 the Defendant paid $194.45 to
Fine Airport Parking in Tulsa, Oklahoma (including a $125 car wash
charge) all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit
card, and;

¢ On approximately August 9, 2012, the Defendant paid $51.84 to the
Jose Roux Taco Bar at the Sky Harbor International Airport, Phoenix,
Arizona, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business

3
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credit card, and;

» From August 9, 2012-August 10, 2012 the Defendant paid $398.82 to the
Queen Mary Ship, in Long Beach, California, for two nights lodging in
one of their rooms known for “paranormalistic activity,” all paid out of
CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

o From August9,2012-August 13,2012 the Defendant paid $347.33 to
Hertz Rental Car in Oakland, California, all paid out of CNF funds
with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

e On approximately August 10, 2012, the Defendant purchased on the
Queen Mary Ship in Long Beach, California, a toothbrush and deodorant
for $6.74, two bottles of water for $4.78, and $38.80 paid to the Queen
Mary Promenade Café for two guest breakfasts, all paid out of CNF funds
with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

e On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant purchased on the
Queen Mary Ship in Long Beach, California, a “Bellhop Bear” for
$21.99, a “Stack Logo Keyring” for $5.99, and a video entitled “Ghost
Encounters” for $29.99, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF
business credit card, and;

o On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $24.82 on the
Queen Mary Ship in Long Beach, California, for food and beverage for
two persons all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business
credit card, and;

e On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $56.59 to Shell
0Oil in Long Beach, California, paid out of CNF funds with the use of a
CNF business credit card, and;

e On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $12.11 to Denny’s
in Kettleman City, California, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a
CNF business credit card, and;

» On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $92.40 to the Best
Western Inn and Suites, Kettleman, California, paid out of CNF funds
with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

s On approximately August 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $49.40 to
Exxonmobil, in Kettleman, California and $10.45 to “Yellow Card
Services,” paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit
card, and;

o On approximately August 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $133.02 to the
Courtyard by Marriott, in Oakland, California, paid out of CNF funds with
the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

o On approximately August 13, 2012, the Defendant paid $5.35 to La Casita,
in the Denver, Colorado, airport, paid out of CNF funds with the use of a
CNF business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
4
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office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNTIV: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On or about July 16, 2012, the defendant did willfully and knowingly convert and
embezzle funds of CNF for her own and her family’s use, to wit: purchasing a Southwest
Airlines ticket for her husband, Andrew Sikora, in the amount of $367.60 for an August
18, 2012 trip from Portland, Oregon to Tulsa, Oklahoma, paid out of CNF funds with the
use of a CNF business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit,
and not in the due and lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT V: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On or about August 17, 2012, the defendant did willfully and knowingly convert and
embezzle funds of CNF for her own use, to wit: purchasing a “Buckle Bag” for $74.99
and two towels for $46.00 ($23.00 each) from the Pendleton Woolen Mills Employee
Sales Room in Portland, Oregon, paid out of CNF funds with the use of her CNF business

credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT VI: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On or about November 15, 2012, the defendant did willfully and knowingly convert and
embezzle funds of CNF for her own use, to wit: paying for a parking ticket from the City
of Tulsa that was issued to her 2007 Toyota Camry, tag number ****C5, paid out of CNF
funds with a CNF check, signed by defendant, for the amount of $40.00 ($30.00 fine and
$10.00 late fee);

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT VII: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

From a period of time from January, 2011, through April, 2013, the defendant did
willfully and knowingly convert and embezzle funds of CNF for her own use, to wit:

5
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paying for courses in an online master’s degree program for herself from North Park
University, in Chicago, Iilinois, in the total amount of $21,100.36 paid out of CNF funds
with CNF checks signed by the defendant, and with the use of a CNF business credit card.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said funds for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT VIII: Embezziement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

In June of 2013, defendant unilaterally removed a large Hewlett-Packard Designjet
Z3200PS 44" Photo Printer and software disks from the Foundation corporate offices to
an unknown location. Said equipment was fully functional and valued in excess of
$5,000.00.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said property for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

COUNT IX: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

On or about June 10, and July 1, 2013, defendant used Foundation funds to purchase and take
possession of over $10,000.00 of computer equipment from the Apple Store in Tulsa,
Oklahoma.

A substantial portion of said computer equipment purchased with Foundation funds never
appeared for use in Foundation's corporate offices, and the whereabouts of the equipment is
unknown. The missing items include an AppleTV item, Serial No. FO2KGADAFF34,
purchased for $99.00; an Apple laptop computer, Serial No. C02KP36SFFTO, purchased for
$2199.00; a MacBook Pro service agreement, No. 970000020608672, purchased for
$349.00; two Lightning AV digital adaptors, purchased for $49.00 each; an Apple
Thunderbolt to Firewire adaptor, purchased for $29.00; a Thunderbolt Gigabit Ethernet
adaptor purchased for $29.00; a light gray iPad Smart Case, purchased for $49.00; and a red
iPad Smart Case, also purchased for $49.00.

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an
office of trust in CNF, used said property for her personal benefit, and not in the due and
lawful execution of her trust.

ALL OF SAID CRIMES being subject to punishment as defined at 21 CNCA § 10, to wit: a

term of imprisonment for not more than one (1) year or a fine of five thousand ($5,000.00) or both

6
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and any civil remedies as provided by 21 CNCA § 1760(B) for each separate crime
FURTHER, that the Defendant is an “Indian” as defined in 25 U.S.C. § 450b(d), being a
Citizen of the Cherokee Nation, and that the defendant did, within and without the Cherokee
Nation including within Indian Country, commit the above crimes, contrary to the Cherokee

Nation statutes cited above, and against the peace and dignity of the Cherokee Nation.

//WM

Diane Hammons, CNBA 0035
Specxal Prosecutor

Cherokee Nation Office of the Attorney General
P. O. Box 141

Tahlequah, OK 74465
adianehammons@gmail.com

CHEROKEE NATION ) SS.

The undersigned, of lawful age, and being first duly sworn states that she has read the
above and foregoing Complaint, and that the statements contained therein are true and correct to

the best of her information and belief.

Spemal Prosecutor

Subscribed and sworn to before me this%g;\of ) J% 9: , 2016.

'7
Witnesses: Heather Sourjohn, former Cﬁ?
Jennifer Sandoval, CNF, 800 s”m

q,iﬂxkﬂcquah OK

M ve., Tahlequah, OK
Marisa Hambleton, CNF, 800 S. Muskogee Ave., Tahlequah, OK

7
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Robert St. Pierre, CPA, North 2™ St., Stilwell, OK

J.D. Carey, CPA, Tahlequah, OK

Sherri Combs, forensic auditor, Tahlequah, OK

Shelley Butler-Allen, former CNF Board member, Tahlequah, OK
Robin Ballenger, former CNF Board member, Tulsa, OK

Susan Chapman-Plumb, CNF Board member, Tahlequah, OK

Tonya Rozell, CNF Board member, Tahlequah, OK

Casey Ross-Petherick, former CNF Board member, Oklahoma City, OK
Jay Calhoun, former CNF Board member, Cherokee Nation Businesses, Tulsa, OK
John Gritts, former CNF Board member, Colorado

Jackson Crain, Apple Store, Woodland Hills Mall, Tulsa, OK
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Exhibit “G”, Amended Complaint
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; IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE CHEROKEE NATION

CRIMINAL DIVISION
CHEROKEE NATION, ) ; g,”'f; ~
Plaintiff, ) N
) o
v. ) CRM-2016-54 o ¥}
) I
) =
5 KIMBERLIE A. GILLILAND, ) @
n D.O.B. 08/13/1969, )
) Defendant. )
AMENDED

COMPLAINT AND INFORMATION

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CHEROKEE NATION,
comes now, A. Diane Hammons, specially appointed prosecutor acting by the power of the
Attorney General for the Cherokee Nation, Todd Hembree, and upon her oath gives this Court
reason to know and be informed that KIMBERILIE A. GILLILAND did, within the territorial
boundaries of the Cherokee Nation including within Indian Country as defined by 18 U.S.C. §

" 1151, and the laws of the Cherokee Nation , commit the hereinafter described crimes. Atall
times pertinent hereto, Defendant Kimberlie A. Gilliland was serving as Executive Director of
the Cherokee Nation Education Corporation a/k/a Cherokee Nation Foundation (“CNF”), a non-
profit corporation organized under the laws of the Cherokee Nation, whose officers are a[;pointed

! by the Principal Chief and approved by the Tribal Council, and whose principal place of business

is in Tahlequah, Oklahoma, and which, at all times pertinent hereto received partial furding from

the Cherokee Nation government and Cherekee Nation Businesses, both entities being located on

Indian Country within the boundaries of the Cherokee Naztion.

COUNTI: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

willfully and knowingly convert, misappropriate, and embezzle funds of CNF for her own and her
family’s use, to wit: By using CNF funds to pay for a family trip to California for herself, her

]

i

E

! From a period from January 24, 2012, through February 14, 2012, Kimberlie A. Gilliland, did
|

|

i 1
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i husband, Andrew Sikora, and their two minor children, S.S. and S.S; said trip taking place from
February 9, 2012, through February 13, 2012. Said conversion included the following transactions.

° On approximately January 24, 2012, the Defendant purchased
American Airlines tickets for herself, her husband, Andrew Sikora,
and her two minor children, S.S. and S.S. from Tulsa, Oklahoma,
to Los Angeles, California, in the approximate amount of $329.20
per ticket plus $56.00 in airline fees, for a travel date of February
9, 2012, all paid out of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC
business credit card, and; '

e From February 9, through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid
$70.54 to Fine Airport Parking out of CNEC funds with the use of
a CNEC business credit card, and;

» From February 9, through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid
$157.95 to Enterprise Rent a Car at the Los- Angeles International
Airport, Los Angeles out of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC
business credit card, and; ‘

o From February 9, through February 10, 2012, the Defendant paid
$414.05 to Marriott Hotels and Resorts, Anaheim, California, out
of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

s On February 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $47.93 for gasoline
purchased at OSD Enterprises Inc, in Anaheim, California, out of
CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

s On February 11,2012, the Defendant paid $25.86 to a restaurant,
Bangkok Bay, in Solana Beach, California, out of CNEC funds
with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

_ @  OnFebruary 11,2012, the Defendant paid-$46.94 to Oggis Pizza &

| Brewing Co. in Garden Gove, California, for four (4) guests, out of

; CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

) o On February 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $21.30 to Starbucks, in

: . Carlsbad, California, out of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC

‘ business credit card, and;

«  From February 12 through February 13, 2012, the Defendant paid

1 $314.53 to the Renaissance Montura, Los Angeles, CA, out of

: CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business credit card, and;

o On February 12, 2012, the Defendant paid §1,408.40 to
Continental Airlines for tickets and ticket fees for travel to begin
on 2/13/12 for herself, her husband Andrew Sikora, and their
minor children, S.S. and S.S., out of CNEC funds with the use of a
CNEC business credit card.

Szid acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an office of

trust in CNF, used CNF funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit, and not in the

due and lawful execution of her irust.

2




Case 4:22-cv-00257-JFH-JFJ Document 2 Filed in USDC ND/OK on 06/15/22 Page 286 of 426

COUNT II: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

During a period from May 17, 2012, through May 19, 2012, Kimberlie A. Gilliland, did willfully
and knowingly convert and embezzle funds of CNEC for her own use, to wit: By paying for
“American Girl” hotel rooms (containing American Girl doll beds, pink balloons, and cookies)
for the benefit of her daughter, and an employee’s daughter, in the total amount of $291.54 to the
Residence Inn Marriott, Addison, Texas, cut of CNEC funds with the use of a CNEC business
credit card. :

Said acts being a fraudulent appropriation by Kimberlie Gilliland, who while holding an office of
trust in CNF, used CNF funds for her personal benefit and her family’s benefit, and not in the
due and lawful execution of her trust. :

- COUNT III: Embezzlement by Officer of Corporation; 21 CNCA § 1452

During a period from July 16, 2012, through August 13, 2012, Kimberlie A. Gilliland, did
willfully and knowingly convert and embezzle funds of CNF for her own and her family’s use, to
wit: By using CNF funds to pay for a trip to California for herself and her husband, Andrew
Sikora; said trip taking place from August 9, 2012, through August 13,2012, Said conversion
included the following transactions: . .

o On approximately July 16, 2012, the Defendant purchased
Southwest Airlines tickets for herself and her husband, Andrew
Sikora, to Burbank, California, in the approximate amount of
$257.60 per ticket for a travel date of August 9, 2012, all paid out
of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

From August 9, 2012 —August 13, 2012 the Defendant paid $194.45 to
Fine Airport Parking in Tulsa, Oklahoma (including a $125 car wash
charge) all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit
card, and;

e On approximately August 9, 2012, the Defendart paid $§51.84 to the
Jose Roux Taco Bar at the Sky Harbor International Airport, Phoenix,
Arizona, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business
credit card, and;

» From August 9, 2012-August 10, 2012 the Defendant paid $398.82 to the
Quecn Mary Ship, in Long Beach, California, for two nights lodging in
one of their rooms known for “paranonmalistic activity, “ a1l paid out of
CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

e From August9,2012-August 13, 2012 the Defendant paid $347.33 to
Hertz Rental Car in Oakland, California, all paid out of CNF funds
with the use of a CNT business credit card, and;
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o On approximately August 10, 2012, the Defendant purchased on the
Queen Mary Ship in Long Beach, California, a toothbrush and deodorant
for $6.74, two bottles of water for $4.78, and $38.80 paid to the Queen
Mary Promenade Caf¢ for two guest breakfasts, all paid out of CNF funds
with the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

» On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant purchased on the

i Queen Mary Ship in Long Beach, California, a “Belthop Bear” for

$21.99, a Stack Logo Keyring for $5.99, and a video entitled “Ghost

Encounters” for $29.99, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF

business credit card, and;

i o On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $24.82 on the

Queen Mary Ship in Long Beach, California, for food and beverage for

i ' two persons all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business

: “credit card, and; .

, o On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $56.59 to Shell

: ’ Oil in Long Beach, California, paid out of CNF funds with the use of a
CNF business credit card, and;

o On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $12.11 to Denny’s
in Kettleman City, California, all paid out of CNF funds with the use of a
CNF business credit card, and;

e On approximately August 11, 2012, the Defendant paid $92.40 to the Best
Western Inn and Suites, Kettleman, California, paid out of CNF funds

| with the use of a CNF business credit card, and,;

! e On approximately August 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $49.40 to
Exxonmobil, in Kettleman, California and $10.45 to “Yellow Card
Services”, paid out of CNF funds with the use of a CNF business credit
card, and;

o On approximately August 12, 2012, the Defendant paid $133.02 to the
Courtyard by Marriott, in Oakland, California, paid out of CNF funds with
the use of a CNF business credit card, and;

e On approximately August 13, 2012, the Defendant paid $5.35 to La Casita,
in the Denve